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Throughout 12 years, Coteccons has 
become a leader in construction in 
Vietnam market thanks to the 
outstanding values proposition brought 
to our customers and ourselves by 
designing and constructing activities.  
Sustainable construction from years to 
years represents strong commitment to 
our jobs.
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Year/Target 
(billion VND))

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Average 
growth

INCOME STATEMENT      

Revenue 4,477 6,190 7,634 13,669 20,783 47%

Profit before tax 300 393 464 927 1,763 56%

Profit after tax 219 280 357 733 1,422 60%

Profit after tax attributable to 
Shareholders of the Parent company

219 257 327 666 1,422 60%

SHAREHOLDERS’ INCOME

Earnings per share 5,596 6,103 7,769 10,708 20,669 39%

Dividend in cash (%/share capital) 20% 20% 50% 55% 30% *

BALANCE SHEET

Total assets 3,613 4,552 4,863 7,815 11,741 34%

- Current assets 3,048 3,996 3,658 6,486 9,944 34%

- Non-current assets 565 556 1,205 1,329 1,797 34%

Liabilities and equity 3,613 4,552 4,863 7,815 11,741 34%

- Liabilities 1,535 2,084 2,154 4,572 5,507 38%

- Equity 2,078 2,468 2,709 3,243 6,234 32%

FINANCIAL RATIOS (%)

Gross profit margin 7.2% 7.5% 7.3% 8.1% 8.7%

EBIT/Revenue 4.5% 4.0% 4.5% 5.5% 7.2%

EBITDA/Revenue 5.3% 4.6% 4.9% 5.8% 7.5%

Profit before tax/Revenue 6.7% 6.4% 6.1% 6.8% 8.5%

Profit after tax/Revenue 4.9% 4.5% 4.7% 5.4% 6.8%

ROAA (EBIT/Average total assets) 6.6% 6.1% 7.2% 11.8% 15.3%

ROEA (Profit attributable to Shareholders 
of the Parent company/Average equity)

12.4% 11.3% 12.6% 22.4% 30.0%

HigHligHted financial indicators

Profit after taX over tHe years (billion vnd)

Average growth

60%

280

2013

219

2012

357

2014

1,422

2016

733

2015

11,741 

billion vnd

AverAge growth 34%

totAl Assets

20,783 
billion vnd

AverAge growth 47%

revenue oF 2016 

(*) Expected cash dividends approved by General Meeting of Shareholders 2016. 
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transParency
Transparency is well-focused 

in every activity, from 
management, cooperation 

to benefit.

creativity
Coteccons puts a strong emphasis on 
non-stop creation and improvement 
of quality control system in reponse 

to increasingly high demand 
from customers.

 
cooPeration

Mutual cooperation results  
in success.

 
coMMitMent

Coteccons proactively proposes 
solutions for better 

perfomance than earlier 
commitments.

 
conscientioUsness
Coteccons strives to work 

with high sense of passion, 
enthusiasm and 
responsibility.

vision Mission

Coteccons positions itself in 
becoming a leading Construction 
Corporation of Viet Nam on 
both national and international 
scale, being in charge of General 
Contractor, D&B and EPC 
construction.

Based on its prestige, quality and 
customer satisfaction for brand 
value measurement, Coteccons 
commits to offering well-qualified 
products, i.e. constructions with 
high efficiency in time, technology 
and art.

core valUes

vision, Mission, core valUes
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a foreword of oUr cHairMan

Dear Shareholders,

In 2016, the world witnessed many different political 
fluctuations, rendering slow recovery of the global 
economy in a complicated context of risks and 
instabilities. Vietnam was not ruled out off the trend 
while facing a myriad of challenges and difficulties 
along with below-expectation economic growth in 
the last period.

Coteccons, however, rejoiced a different story. 
In 2016, Coteccons continued to strengthen the 
leadership position in Vietnam’s construction 
market with revenue reaching 1 billion dollars, 
profits increasing 113% in comparison with 
figures of 2015. In which, Design and Build 
model accounted for 40% of revenue, affirming 
Coteccons’ superiority in design capability besides 
our existing prestige as the leading contractor in 
Vietnam. We surpassed many well-known foreign 
contractors to win the mega project of the highest 
building in Vietnam, the Landmark 81. This is a 
concrete milestone for Coteccons in particular 
and for Vietnam’s construction industry as a whole, 
opening new doors to larger projects and bigger 
success in the future. Alongside our sustainable 
development, Coteccons has established many new 
functional departments such as Business Division, 
Department of Internal Control, Investment Board, 
Financial Supervisory Board, etc. to optimize 
the Company’s management system. Also, the 
Company has always focused on improving our 
human resource quality and enhancing training 
activities. Coteccons proudly possesses a team of 
high-quality personnel with superior productivity. 
Coteccons’ human capital is an unlimited source 
of energy enabling more brilliant successes for the 
Company in our next adventures.

In 2017, Coteccons shall continue rigorous 
improvements towards the goal of long-term 
sustainability. We shall refine the Design and Build 
model, strengthen R&D, and compete with other 
renowned contractors in the world. Furthermore, 
we shall focus on investment activities in order to 
make optimal uses of the Company’s capital.

The future might accompany with challenges 
and the road ahead us is definitely not an easy 
one, I however heartily believe that Coteccons’ 
sustainability in the long run is an inevitable result 
which we can harvest from our comprehensive 
preparation and strong cooperation among 
all individuals throughout years of continuous 
development of the Company towards the ultimate 
goal of bringing long-term benefits for our beloved 
Shareholders and providing more contributions to 
the society.

Coteccons’ success would not be possible without 
a valuable companionship of beloved Shareholders. 
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like 
to take this opportunity to express our deepest 
gratitude to Shareholders. I look forward to receiving 
continuous trust and long-term engagement from 
Shareholders in our upcoming adventures.

yours Sincerely,

 Chairman

Nguyen Ba Duong

i Heartily believe tHat 
c o t e c c o n s ’ 
sUstainability in tHe 
long rUn is an 
inevitable resUlt wHicH 
we can Harvest froM 
oUr coMPreHensive 
PreParation and strong 
cooPeration aMong all 
individUals tHroUgHoUt 
years of continUoUs 
develoPMent of tHe 
coMPany.
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tHe landMark 81

general inforMation TRUST
In june 2016, Coteccons won over many famous 
foreign contractors and was entrusted to build 
Landmark 81. With a height of 461 meters upon 
completion, The Landmark 81 will be renowned 
as the 8th tallest building in the world, together 
with other ten world- class skyscrapers. With the 
Company’s leading prestige earned through 
the commitment to accompanying the Owners 
on all project completion, Coteccons has 
continued many repeated contracts with its 
trusting clientele. To Coteccons, Customer 
confidence is the foundation stone for our 
sustainability.



compAny InFormAtIon

general inforMation

Vietnamese name:

English name:

Name in short:

Business Registration Certificate: 

Chartered capital: 

Address:

Phone:

Fax:

Email:

Website:

Name in stock trading:

Stock symbol:

CôNG Ty Cổ PHầN Xây DựNG COTECCONS

COTECCONS CONSTRUCTION jOINT STOCK COMPANy 

COTECCONS

0303443233 issued for the 1st time by Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning 
and Investment on August 24, 2004.

VND 770,500,000,000 (Seven hundred seventy billion and five hundred million 
Viet Nam Dong)

236/6 Dien Bien Phu, Ward 17, Binh Thanh Dist., Ho Chi Minh City

(84 - 8) 3 5142255/66

(84 - 8) 3 5142277

contact@coteccons.vn

www.coteccons.vn 

Shares of Coteccons Construction joint-Stock Company

CTD

mAIn BusIness FIelDs

Construction and installation 
of civil and industrial projects; 
Technical infrastructure of 
the city and industrial zones; 
Transport works; Water power 
works.

Construction of water supply 
and drainage, environmental 
treatment.

Installation of mechanical - 
electrical - refrigeration system. 

Architectural and relevant 
engineering consulting activities: 
Design of general construction 
site; Architectural design of civil 
and industrial works; Interior and 
exterior design; Heat, ventilation, 
air conditioning, civil and industrial 
work design; MEP design; Design 
of civil and industrial construction; 
Design and construction of urban 
technical infrastructure.

Business, brokerage, consultancy 
of real estate and owner’s right of 
land usage.

Specializing in export, 
import, export right, import 
right concerning iron, steel, 
constructional structure, 
materials, other installation 
equipment in construction, 
materials - machinery - 
equipment - spare parts, 
technological line in the field 
of building and producing 
construction materials; 
Construction machinery.

vnD 770.5 

chArtereD cApItAl 2016

BIllIon



2004

trAnsFerIng to JoInt 
stocK compAny

Coteccons transformed its operating 
model into a joint stock company 
in accordance with Decision  
No. 1242 / QD-BXD dated 30 
july 2004 of the Ministry of  
Construction with authorized 
capital of 15.2 billion.

2006

unIcons BrAnch 
estABlIsheD

Coteccons pushes its strategy to 
focus on the large segment of 
projects while maintaining and 
enhancing its market share in the 
mid-size segment through capital 
contribution to establishing Uy 
Nam Investment Construction joint 
Stock Company (Unicons).

Coteccons holds 27% of Unicon’s 
total initial charter capital.

2012

2nD prIvAte plAcement 
oFFerIng For strAtegIc 
shAreholDers

The company expanded the area 
of operation with the construction 
of foreign projects (Laos), which 
is considered as the first step to 
conquer Indochina market.

Shares were issued to strategic 
shareholders for the second time. 
Despite the economic downturn 
and the stock market decline, 
Coteccons still succeeded in 
negotiating and signing a strategic 
cooperation agreement with 
Kustocem Pte.Ltd (Singapore) and 
issued 10.43 million shares. The 
total raised capital in the issuance is 
equivalent to US$ 25 million.

2013

IncreAse In eQuIty At 
unIcons up to 51.24%

Signing contract for international 
project contractor: SC VivoCity 
- District 7 by Saigon Co.op 
Investment Corporation (Viet Nam) 
and Mapletree (Singapore) as the 
Employer. The total contract value 
was around VND 1,200 billion.

Coteccons’ equity in Uy Nam 
Investment Construction jSC 
(Unicons) rose considerably to 
51.24%.

2014

FFc’s FounDIng 
shAreholDer 

FCC has invested in building 23km 
of National Road 1 to avoid Phu Ly 
City and strengthening road section 
Km215+775 Km - Km 235+885, 
costing more than VND 2,000 billion.

Performing many design 
and build projects as general 
contractor:

Masteri Thao Dien, worth more 
than VND 3,316 billion, is the strong 
and large scale foundation, setting 
motivation for other Employers to 
trust and appoint Coteccon other 
D&B models such as Regina factory 
phase 1,2,3 (approximately VND 
1,250 billion), First team factory 
(VND 171 billion).

2015

momentum For merger AnD 
AcQuIstIon strAtegy 

3,604,530 shares were issed to swap 
the entire number of shares of Uy 
Nam Investment Construction 
joint Stock Company (Unicons) so 
that the percentage of Coteccons' 
ownership in Unicons has reached 
100%.

Establishing the strongest 
growth level ever

2015 marked the highest growth 
rate in terms of revenue and within 
11 years of operation, reaching a 
growth rate of nearly 100% over 2014. 
Many substantial D & B contracts 
signed and executed with new 
Employers such as: The Gold View,  
T & T Vinh Hung, Duc Viet Resort ...

Many large project contracts valued 
at over VND 1,000 billion were 
consecutively signed: TimesCity 
ParkHill, Vinhomes Central Park, 
Worldon ...

2016

ADDItIons to hIstory 
oF estABlIshment AnD 
Development

The year 2016 continued to mark a 
milestone in Coteccons’ economic 
development. The Company’s 
revenue reached VND 20,783 billion, 
increasing by 52%. Profit increased 
113% compared with that of 2015, 
reaching the level of VND 1,422 
billion. 

Coteccons surpassed many foreign 
contractors to win over the bid 
of The Landmark 81 project, the 
highest building in Vietnam and the 
8th highest building in the world. 

Many D&B projects were signed, 
accounting for 40% of the 
Company’s total revenue. Some 
highlights to be mentioned 
hereafter are Vinhomes Thang 
Long, Regina Manufacture Phase 
5, Panorama Nha Trang, Diamond 
Island Phase 2, The Millenium, and 
D’Capitale. 

Coteccons performed the first 
private placement for strategic 
shareholders and raised VND 1,762 
billion, increasing the Company’s 
charter capital by VND 770.5 billion.

In terms of technical development, 
Coteccons has achieved remarkable 
improvements by the completion 
of many challenging projects, 
including base construction 
packages for The Landmark 81 
and The Spirit of Saigon (formerly 
known as The One). 

Moreover, the application of BIM 
into the transfer beam construction 
for the Landmark 81 project has 
marked initial successes.

2007

InItIAl puBlIc oFFerIng 
(Ipo)

In order to improve corporate 
image and raise more capital 
for implementing big projects, 
Coteccons has issued shares to the 
public attracting many big foreign 
investors such as Dragon Capital, 
Indochina Capital, Tainan Spinning 
Co.,...

Coteccons is a Vietnamese pioneer 
in researching and applying 
successfully the Top-down 
advanced construction method 
to accelerate progress while still 
maintaining good quality of the 
whole works.

2009

coteccons’ shAres were 
oFFIcIAlly lIsteD

Coteccons invested 100% for the 
Commencement and Construction 
of Coteccons Office Building at 
236/6 Dien Bien Phu Street, Ward 
17, Binh Thanh District, Ho Chi Minh 
City.

In compliance with the Decision 
No. 155 / QD-SGDHCM dated 
December 9, 2009, Coteccons’ 
shares were officially listed on the 
Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange 
(HOSE) marking a new milestone in 
the history of Coteccons’ operation. 
The number of shares initially listed 
was 12 million. Stock code: CTD.

2010

coteccons oFFIce BuIlDIng 
put Into operAtIon

Coteccons Office Building was 
constructionally completed and 
put into operation. The new office 
meets the needs for premises 
and operation facilities, bringing 
Coteccons a new position in the 
market. Moreover, Coteccons’ 
Representative Office was also 
opened in Ha Noi, creating an 
outstanding step into the Northern 
Viet Nam market.

2011

golDen cup For the vIet 
nAm constructIon QuAlIty

It was a great honour for Coteccons 
to receive the Golden Cup for the 
Viet Nam Construction Quality.
Ministry of Construction.

Signing contract for General 
Contractor of the Grand Ho 
Tram – Casino Project, the largest 
complex resort project in Viet 
Nam and in the region with 100% 
foreign-invested capital from 
Asian Coast Development Limited 
ACDL – Canada). Coteccons was 
the first ever Vietnamese General 
Contractor to be in charge of 
building and managing other 
overseas subcontractors from 
japan, Singapore, China ...

2004-2006

2007-2009

2012-2013

2014-2015

2016

2010-2011

History of establisHMent and develoPMent
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TRUONG SA
ISLAND

Tay Ninh

HO CHI MINH CITY

CAMBODIA

Long An

Phu Quoc Island

Ha Nam
Thai Binh

Binh Duong

Binh Phuoc

Ha Tinh

Quang Ninh

Hai Phong
Hung Yen

Hai Duong

Nam Dinh

HUE
HOANG SA ISLAND

EAST SEA

Da Nang

Quang Nam

Quang Ngai

Phu Yen

Khanh Hoa

Kien Giang

Can Tho

Hau Giang

Dong Nai
Ba Ria - Vung Tau

Nghe An

Lao Cai

Con Co Island

Ly Son Island

Phu Quy Island

Con Son Island
Hon Khoai Island

HA NOI

LAOS

Bac Ninh

AFter 12 yeArs oF operAtIon In the FIelD oF constructIon, worKs constructeD By 
coteccons group hAve Been present In most oF the mAJor cItIes AnD provInces In the 
country AnD reADy to expAnD overseAs.

DomestIc mArKet

Coteccons focuses on the following areas:

Southern Viet Nam: Ho Chi Minh City, Hau Giang, Long An, Binh Duong, Vung Tau, Tay Ninh, Dong Nai, Binh 
Phuoc, Phu Quoc, Can Tho, Kien Giang ...

Central Viet Nam: Da Nang, Quang Nam, Nghe An, Quang Ngai, Khanh Hoa, Phu yen, Hue, Ha Tinh...

Northern Viet Nam: Ha Noi, Bac Ninh, Ha Nam, Quang Ninh, Hai Phong, Lao Cai, Hung yen, Thai Binh, Hai Duong, 
Nam Dinh...

ForeIgn mArKets

Since 2012, Coteccons has expanded its business to Southeast Asia and conducted building in Laos and Cambodia.

coteccons  
Has been  

available in 
coUntries  
in tHe world

bUsiness area

D'Capitale - Ha Noi Regina - Hai Phong Vinhomes Times City - Ha Noi

northern vIet nAm

Vinmec - Da Nang Condotel - Da Nang Panorama - Nha Trang

centrAl vIet nAm

Diamond Island - HCMC Vinhomes Golden River - HCMC Ho Tram - Vung Tau

southern vIet nAm
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sHareHolder strUctUre

stocK InFormAtIon

Chartered Capital VND 770,500,000,000

Number of listed stocks 77,050,000 stocks

Number of outstanding stocks 76,983,344 stocks

Treasury stocks 66,656 stocks

Par value VND 10,000/stock

shAreholDer eQuIty rAtIo

No. Category
Domestic shareholders Foreign shareholders Total 

number  
of stocks

Proportion 
(%)Number of 

shareholders
Number of  

stocks
Proportion 

(%)
Number of 

shareholders
Number of 

stocks
Proportion 

(%)

1 Municipals  -  - -  - - - -

2
Owners of 5%  
or above

 1  11,192,652 14.5%  1  13,906,666 18.0%  25,099,318 32.5%

3
Owners of  
1-5%

 11  15,108,733 19.6%  7  11,310,249 14.7%  26,418,982 34.3%

4
Owners of 1%  
or below

 2,870  18,451,614 24%  212  7,013,430 9.1%  25,465,044 33.1%

5 Treasury stocks  1  66,656 0.1%   - 0.0%  66,656 0.1%

 TOTAL  2,883  44,819,655 58.2%  220  32,230,345 41.8%  77,050,000 100%

shAreholDer structure

No. Shareholder Structure Number Number of stocks Percentage

1 Treasury Stocks  1  66,656 0.1%

2 Domestic sharehoders  2,882  44,752,999 58.1%

2.1 Organizations  55  13,713,823 17.8%

2.2 Individuals  2,827  31,039,176 40.3%

3 Foreign shareholders  220  32,230,345 41.8%

3.1 Organizations  84  31,883,398 41.4%

3.2 Individuals  136  346,947 0.4%

TOTAL  3,103  77,050,000 100%

As of 15th March 2017
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32.5%

34.3%

33.1%

0.1%

EQUITY STRUCTURE 
BY OWNERSHIP 

SCALE

 Owners of 5% or above
 Owners of 1-5%
 Owners of 1% or below
 Treasury stocks

59.2%

40.7%

0.1%

EQUITY STRUCTURE 
BY SHAREHOLDERS’ 
ORgANIzATIONAL 

NATURE

 Treasury stocks
 Organizations
 Individuals

58.2%

41.8%

EQUITY STRUCTURE 
BY DEmOgRAPHIC 

FACTORS

 Domestic shareholders
 Foreign shareholders



sHareHolder strUctUre (continUed)

Freely convertIBle stocKs AnD restrIcteD stocKs

No. Type of stock Number
Proportion 
on charter 

capital
Time of restriction

I Restricted stocks  15,703,168 20.4%

1
Shares issued for Key Personnels of Coteccons 
(ESOP) 2015

1,053,000 1.4%
from 05/08/2015  
to 05/08/2018

2
Swap shares of Unicons issued for Key Personnel 
(Unicons’ ESOP) 2015

 335,250 0.4%
from 04/12/2015  
to 24/07/2018

3
Shares of Coteccons’ Board of Management 
swapped from Unicons’ shares

 498,627 0.6%
from 02/06/2016  
to 02/06/2017

4
Shares issued for Key Personnels of Coteccons 
(ESOP)2016

 2,339,540 3.0%
from 25/08/2016  
to 25/08/2018

5 Shares issued for strategic shareholders 2016  11,476,751 14.9%
from 17/11/2016  
to 16/11/2017

II Freely tradable stocks  61,280,176 79.5%

III Treasure stocks  66,656 0.1%

TOTAL  77,050,000 100%

lIst oF mAJor shAreholDers

No. Shareholder structure Address Number of 
shares Percentage

1 Nguyen Ba Duong
68A Hoang Hoa Tham Street, Ward 7,  
Binh Thanh District, Ho Chi Minh City

3,619,754 4.7%

2
Thanh Cong Trading and 
Investment MTV Ltd.

11th Floor, Sailing Building, 111A Pasteur,  
Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, HCMC

11,192,652 14.5%

3 Kustocem Pte. Ltd.
80 Raffles Place, #32-01 UOB Plaza 1 
Singapore 048624

13,906,666 18.0%

InFormAtIon oF stocK prIce

BooK vAlue oF shAres

200

180
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140

120
400

200

Apr 2016

Created with Tradingview.com

jun 2016 Aug 2016 Oct 2016 Mar 2017Dec 2016 Feb 2017
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2013 2014 2015 2016

49,242
54,560

64,204
69,200

80,974
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20.4%

0.1%

79.5%

STOCk 
CLASSIFICATION BY 

TRADABILITY

 Restricted stocks
 Freely convertible stocks
 Treasury stocks



sUbsidiary - associated coMPanies
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one of coteccons' coMPetitive advantages 
in ParticiPating in sUPer-Projects is tHe 
caPacity of its sUbsidiaries and associates.

Securing firm positions as leading contractors 
in Vietnam market, Coteccons’ affiliates and 
subsidiaries are playing an important role in 
the development of Coteccons.

Coteccons and the Company’s affiliates and 
subsidiaries shall work hand in hand to share 
experience, intelligence and new techniques 
under a shared goal of overcoming more limits 
and reaching new successes.

In addition, investments in subsidiaries, 
joint ventures, and affiliates also open up 
opportunities for Coteccons to expand its 
market share and diversify its business areas. 
These are important factors for the company's 
sustainable development goals in the future.

35%

65%

Address: 2nd Floor, CEO Tower, Pham Hung Street,  
 Nam Tu Liem Dist., Ha Noi.
Authorized capital: 369 billion.

Coteccons contributed 98 billion VND in equity from FCC’s 
establishment in 2014 to the end of 2016.

FCC’s main business field is to build infrastructure, civil and industrial 
works, road construction, and public utility.

From 2014, the FCC has started to implement the investment 
project to build the National Highway 1 section which avoids Phu 
Ly City and reinforced road surface section Km215 + 775 ÷ Km235 
+ 885, Ha Nam province in the form of BOT contract worth more 
than VND 2,000 billion. The project has been conducted ahead 
of schedule, put into operation and started toll collection from 
November 2016. Although this is just a medium scale project, the 
capacity in infrastructure construction of Coteccons, in particular, 
and that of the FCC, in general, has initially been built and confirmed. 
This project is a solid launch platform for Coteccons to participate 
in more and more infrastructure projects in the future. Currently, 
FCC is proactively looking for, researching and developing other 
key infrastructure projects, contributing to promoting economic 
development, changing the country's outlook as well as responding 
to the whole Group’s sustainable development goals.

Fcc InFrAstructure Investment JoInt stocK compAny

Business results in the year of 2016

Revenue from sales and services: VND 16 billion

Profit after tax: VND -315 billion

Total assets: VND 1,666 billion 

Equity: VND 280 billion

COTECCONS'S 
OWNERSHIP RATIO

35%

Address: 236/6 Dien Bien Phu, Ward 17, Binh Thanh Dist.  
 Ho Chi Minh City.
Authorized capital: VND 105 billion. 

Established in 2004, Ricon’s initial primary business activity was 
investing in development of real estate projects. There are many 
Ricon’s outstanding works bringing about good impression today, 
including Botanic Towers and Saigon Pavillon. By the year of 2008, 
Ricons expanded its business to construction with a range of projects 
ranging from design to construction management in many forms 
such as: apartments, hotels, resorts, large-scale industrial plants.

In recent years, together with the continuous improvement of 
management system, facilitating modern equipment and training 
human resources for construction, Ricons also looked into the re-
energizing real estate intermediary, construction materials trading. This 
not only brings in new income for Ricons, in particular, and Coteccons, 
in general, but also creates a great advantage for Coteccons when 
bidding or implementing the design and construction projects. 
Coteccons, along with Unicons and Ricons, have provided a closed 
service to employers ranging from design, construction to sales 
consultancy. This is the big advantage which hardly can any domestic 
contractors be up to.

rIcons Investment constructIon JoInt stocK compAny

Business results in the year 2016

Revenue from sales of goods and services:  
VND 4,790 billion

Profit after tax: VND 192 billion

Total assets: VND 1,815 billion

Equity: VND 503 billion

19,2%

80,8%

COTECCONS'S 
OWNERSHIP RATIO

19,2%

Address: Floor 5 - 6, 236/6 Dien Bien Phu, Ward 17,  
 Binh Thanh Dist., Ho Chi Minh City.

Authorized capital: VND 94.5 billion.

Unicons was established in 2006 as a joint stock company, with 
current authorized capital of VND 94.5 billion. In 2016, after many 
times of increasing ownership ratio, Coteccons officially acquired 
100% of Unicons' authorized capital. Unicons main business line 
is construction, strengthened by a team of talented professionals 
who are young and dynamic with the spirit of constantly 
improving the management system, contributing to creating a 
professional and scientific working environment. Inheriting from 
and enhancing the achievements of Coteccons, together with the 
effort from their own experience and core values, after more than 
10 years of operation, Unicons has confirmed its position in the 
market by always remaining in the top largest private construction 
companies in Viet Nam with an average annual growth rate of 
over 20%. Over the past years, Unicons has been a major force 
devoting substantially to Coteccons' involvement in all the sites, 
from the North to the South of Viet Nam, from large to medium-
scale projects. These greatly contribute to the outstanding growth 
of Coteccons not only at present but also in the future.

unIcons Investment constructIon co., ltD

Business results in the year 2016

Revenue from sales and services: VND 4,188 billion

Profit after tax: VND 182 billion

Total assets: VND 2,237 billion

Equity: VND 712 billion

COTECCONS'S 
OWNERSHIP RATIO

100%



a HigHligHt of oUtstanding events  
of coteccons in 2016

16th February 2016
Upon the signing of the 2016 Business Plan, 

Coteccons set an ambitious objective towards a 
successful completion of the Plan since the beginning 

of the year.

25th march 2016
Coteccons successfully organized the Cooperation 
and Development Conference in order to resolve 
concerns of subcontractors, suppliers, and 
construction teams, and further to strengthen their 
partnership with Coteccons.

12th April 2016
Coteccons successfully organized the 2016 Annual 

General Meeting, setting targets of VND 16,500 billion in 
revenue and of VND 800 billion in profit. The Company 

also managed to raise the Charter Capital via the 3 
channels of offering bonus shares to existing shareholders, 

issuing shares to employees, and offering private 
placement to strategic partners.

14th June 2016
The company’s name was officially changed into 
Coteccons Construction Joint Stock Company.

June 2016
Coteccons announced its winning bid over The Landmark 
81 project, the highest tower of  Viet Nam upon completion.

july 2016: Coteccons completed the large volume concrete 
pours for The Landmark 81 project, with a scale of more 

than 17,000 m3 of concrete and about 5,000 tons of steel for 
the highest-to-be building in Viet Nam upon completion.

06th July 2016
Coteccons won the 3rd prize of the Gold View project in 
the Tekla BIM Awards 2016, a regional competition for 
participants in ASEAN and South Korea.

30th October 2016
Coteccons completed the large volume concrete 

pours for B6 basement (about 10,000 m2 per 
platform) of the Spirit of Saigon project (formerly 
known as The One) at a depth of 29 meters, with 

many batches of mass concrete up to 5,000 m3.

24th November 2016
FCC Company - one of the Coteccons’ affiliates - 
officially commenced its first toll collection for the 
National Highway 1 in Ha Nam after the completion 
of Phy Ly Crossover and the upgradation of Highway 
1 via Phu Ly.

17th December 2016
The Company’s Employee Engagement Conference 
with an attendance of more than 1,300 employees 
from all 3 regions of the country was organized to 

honor individuals and groups who had excellent 
achievements, contributing to Coteccons’ overall 

success in 2016.

8th November 2016
Coteccons was accredited as one of the Top 10 
sustainable businesses by VCCI.

17th November 2016
Coteccons successfully issued 11,476,751 shares  

to strategic shareholders, raising VND 1,762 billion  
in capital.

22nd December 2016
A Conference was organized to evaluate the 
business results in 2016 and the Management’s 
development of the 2017 Business Plan.
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awards won in 2016

best listed coMPanies in viet naM
Forbes

“tin & dUng 2016” award by  
viet naM econoMic tiMes

Tieu & Dung Magazine –  
Viet Nam Economics Times

toP 10 sUstainable bUsiness  
in 2016

Viet Nam Chamber of Commerce and 
Industry - VCCI

best PerforMing coMPany in viet naM
The Business Review – Nhip Cau Dau Tu magazine

toP 50 toP 50
best annUal rePorts

Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange (HSX)

in tHe tekla biM awards 2016
Trimble Tekla

vietnaMese largest enterPrises 
in 2016

VietnamNet - Vietnam Report

toP 30 3rd Prize

toP 500
tHe best Place to work in tHe 

constrUction indUstry
Anphabe

1st Prize
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coMPany’s orientation and develoPMent strategy

strAtegIc oBJectIves For 2017 - 2022

sustAInABly Develop coteccons AnD Its AFFIlIAtes unDer the FollowIng orIentAtIons

Strengthen the corporate governance system, increase transparency and focus on risk prevention in 
the pursuit of building a sustainable development for Coteccons and providing long-term benefits to 
shareholders, employees, customers and the community.

Continuously improve technology, increase productivity, and leverage the existing advantages of the 
Design & Build model to promote large-scale projects where Coteccons is the general contractor; 
continuously pursue the target for revenue and profit growth in construction operation with an average 
growth rate of 10% to 20% during 2017 - 2022, reinforcing Coteccons’ leading position in the construction 
industry.

Focus on training and developing human resources in order to meet the development needs of the 
Company; especially, make a comprehensive preparation in human resources for the purpose of 
developing and managing investment activities and other potential business areas that the Company is 
targeting, inclusive of foreign market expansion.

Promote the creation of value chain in construction activities, utilizing the company’s construction 
advantage to improve productivity and performance, yielding more profits for Coteccons in the value 
chain.

Make an efficient use of the capital raised from share issuance and the cash flow stemming from the 
Company’s profit in its business operation to reinvest in infrastructure segment, conduct M&As with 
companies operating in similar industries, and create assets that will bring future cash flows to diversify 
the Company’s revenue.

proposItIon For the 2017 - 2022 Development strAtegy

To continue Coteccons’ successful growth, the Board of Directors set the orientations for the Company for the period 
of 2017 - 2022 as follows:

Development orientation for the parent company

 » Focus on building a strong management system and 
risk control.

 » Train and develop competent executive for the 
affiliates.

 » Develop and maintain the Company's corporate 
culture, ensuring that the culture values are promoted 
and widely spread over Coteccons and its affiliates.

 » Develop the incentive and bonus policies for the 
employees in accordance with business results.

 » Pioneer in improving and applying new technology, 
promoting productivity in order to reduce labor costs 
in construction process.

Development orientation for the subsidiaries and 
affiliates

 » Develop a strong subsidiary and affiliate system with 
the same corporate culture as parent company’s.

 » Develop the construction management system for 
the affiliates in accordance with Coteccons standards.

 » Expand into new business activities in the construction 
value chain through the affiliates.

02

03

04

01

05

evAluAtIon oF the 2012 - 2017 Development strAtegy 

CoteCCons has suCCessfully Completed the Company’s long-term 
strategiC objeCtives for the period 2012 - 2017, developing a strong 
and sustainable ConstruCtion Corporation Consisting of the parent 
Company and its affiliates. CoteCCons' orientation for this phase was 
to foCus on its Core business, Continuously improving and leveraging 
opportunities to inCrease revenue and profit. this orientation led to 
CoteCCons’ Consistent leading position in the ConstruCtion industry and 
the Company’s 3 plaCements listed in the top 10 largest ConstruCtion 
Companies in viet nam.

COnSTRuCTIOn 
CORPORaTIOn

STROnG 
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DEDICATION
2016 continued to be a successful year of Coteccons. With remarkable growth in revenue and 
profit while retaining new recruitment rate at the level of 30%, Coteccons is now possessing 
a high-quality workforce. Projects constructed by Coteccons such as Masteri Thao Dien and 
Vinhomes Thang Long were always guaranteed in quality and schedule. A trustworthy 
workforce of experienced, intelligent and dedicated individuals shall contribute greatly 
to the achievement of sustainable values, ensuring Coteccons’ significant success.

d' caPitale

organization and HUMan resoUrces



ManageMent systeM

coteccons oPerates as a joint stock corPoration. in addition to be in 
coMPliance witH cUrrent legistration, coteccons’ bUsiness oPeration 
Has to be in conforMity witH regUlations stiPUlated in tHe cHarter 
aPProved by sHareHolders’ Meeting. coteccon’ organizational strUctUre 
of ManageMent inclUdes:

Coteccons’ current Board of Directors 
includes a Chairman and 6 members, with 
4 taking charge in Board of Management  
and the other 2 are non-executive, 
and 1 independent member.

General Director is the head of Board of 
Management. At present, the BOD Chairman is in 
charge of General Director position, supported by 5 
Deputy General Director majoring in: Administration, 
Human Resources, Finance, Business, Design and 
Construction.

Coteccons is well and fully equiped by functional 
departments, centers, divisions and a system of 
steering committee.

tHe general 
asseMbly of 

sHareHolders
board of 

sUPervisors

board of 
directors

board of 
ManageMent

Coteccon’s current Board of Supervisors  
is composed of a BOS Chairman and  

2 members.
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Interior Board

System and ISO
Board

CONSTRUCTION SITE

Administration
Department

Finance-Accounting
Department

IT Department

 Human Resource
Department

Communication
and Public relation

Board

Legal Board

Investment Board

Material-Equipment
Department

Construction and
Erection Division

BIM Board

Security Board

Division of
Commerce

Technical Division

Tender Department
Cost and Contract

Management
Department

MEP Tender
Department

MPE Construction
Management
Department

Research and
Development

Board

Construction
Technology

Management
Department

Finishing and
MEP Department

Division of
Infrastructure 

Design Management
Center

Safety Board

The General
Assembly of
Shareholders

Board of Directors

Board of Supervisors 

Remuneration
Subcommittee

Personnel
Subcommittee

Strategy
Subcommittee

Investment
Subcommittee

Board of Management

Board of Assistants to BOM

Board of
Financial Supervision

Board of Internal Control

MEP Division

Department of Building
and Developing 

Construction workforce

organizational strUctUre
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overview of board of directors

coteccons’ cUrrent board of directors 
inclUdes cHairMan and 6 MeMbers, 
witH 4 taking cHarge in board of 
ManageMent and tHe otHer 2 are 
non-eXecUtive, and 1 indePendent 
MeMber.

Mr. NgUYEN BA DUONg

Chairman
year of birth: 1959
Nationality: Vietnamese

He graduated from Faculty of Architecture at Kiev 
University of Construction (Ukraina). With 32 years of 
experience in construction field and major positions 
in big corporations, he founded and has operated 
Coteccons since 2002, previously named Cotec 
Construction Firm. In 2004, he was appointed to General 
Director after the company went public under the name 
of Cotec Construction joint stock company – Coteccons. 
Mr. Duong has maintained his position as the company’s 
Chairman and General Director until now.

He received the Prime Minister’s Certificate thanks to his 
contribution to the construction of Socialism, as well as 
Certificate from Minister of Construction for successful 
mission accomplishment. In 2013, he was proudly 
honored in the Top 50 Vietnamese Excellent Business 
Leaders by Forbes.

He was chosen as one among ten Excellent Team 
Developing Leaders in Viet Nam by Nhip Cau Dau Tu 
Magazine.

Mr. TRAN QUANg QUAN

Member of Board of Directors 
year of birth: 1973
Nationality: Vietnamese

He graduated as Construction Engineer from Ho Chi 
Minh City University of Technology. After his graduation, 
he worked in foreign construction companies as Project 
Manager and Project Director. Up to now, he has 
accumulated more than 20 years of experience in the 
construction industry.

joining Coteccons from its very first day of establishment, 
Mr. Quan has played a very important role in research and 
renovated measures in construction, as well as training 
groups of excellent Project Manager and Project Director.

In 2007, together with his experience in management 
and administration, he was appointed to the position 
of Deputy General Director, being responsible for 
construction and labour safety. Currently, he is also 
accounted for promoting, expanding relation between 
Coteccons and Employers and Overseas partners, and 
directing other departments / sections internally.

Mr. TRAN QUANg TUAN

Member of Board of Directors 
year of birth: 1974
Nationality: Vietnamese

He graduated as Construction Engineer from Ho Chi 
Minh City University of Technology and had 20 years in 
the construction industry.

He has been together with the foundation and 
development of Coteccons from its early days. In addition 
to his efforts in strengthening Coteccons brand in 
construction industry, he also plays a vital part in building 
and enabling management of facility and material to 
be in as good condition as it is in the current time. He 
has been appointed to the position of Deputy General 
Director, being in charge of construction, management 
of facility investment and finance since 2009.

Recently, he has taken charge of many mega projects, 
hence contributing significantly to the strong growth 
and success of the Company.
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Mr. gIUSEPPE m. FERRARA 

Member of Board of Directors 
year of birth: 1962
Nationality: Italian

He holds a Master degree in Business Administration.

1997 - 1999: He was in charge of Deputy General 
Director of Material for CEMEX, the world's leading 
cement producer.

1999 - 2013: He, respectively, held positions of  Director 
of CEMEX Costa Rica and General Regional Director of 
Central America; Director of CEMEX Puerto Rico Director; 
Deputy General Director of EMEAA & A for Construction 
materials division at Cemex (London & Madrid); General 
Director of Construction materials division in Spain, 
Director of Global Strategic Planning at CEMEX Central 
(Madrid, Spain).

In 2014, he was promoted to General Director at Kusto 
Cement Holding, Viet Nam.

Mr. BOLAT DUISENOV 

Member of Board of Directors 
year of birth: 1981
Nationality: Kazakhstan

Graduating as Bachelor of Law, he has gained 
approximately 15 years of experience in managing 
banks, investment funds and financial corporations. As 
a representative from Kusto – a strategic shareholder 
and together with a thorough understanding towards 
Viet Nam market after spending 10 years living and 
working here, he is among the most proactive members 
in the Board of Directors in proposing the company’s 
orientation and strategic planning.

Employment history: He served his career in the following 
positions: the Chief Legal Officer (CLO) of Caspian 
Bank (Kazakhstan) (2002 – 2003), member of Board of 
Management at Sberbank (Kazakhstan) (2003 – 2005), 
General Director of  Tandem Real Estate Corporation 
(2005 – 2006), Founder of Atrix Capital Fund in Viet 
Nam (2005 – 2009) and Founding Member and General 
Director of Kusto Viet Nam (2009 – now).

In April 2016, he was appointed to the Board of Directors 
at Coteccons additionally (term 2012 – 2017).

overview of board of directors (continUed)

Mr. TRAN QUYET THANg

Member of Board of Directors 
year of birth: 1962
Nationality: Vietnamese 

He holds a Bachelor degree in Law and has over 30 years 
of experience in law, securities and real estate market. 
As an independent member of the Board of Directors , 
together with a wealth of management experience, he 
proactively joined in the improvement of management 
and administration efficiency with his great and objective 
ideas.

Employment history: From 1990 to 1995, he was Founder 
and Deputy General Director of Investconsult Group; 
in the period 1997 - 1999, he joined the establishment 
of T&A Law Office; in 2000 - 2003, he founded Saigon 
Securities Inc. with himself as General Director; from 2004 
to now, he joined REFICO Real Estate Group as Chairman 
and General Director.

In April 2016 he was elected to the Coteccons’ Board of 
Directors for the term of 2012 - 2017 as an independent 
member.

Mr. VU DUY LAm

Member of Board of Directors, Head of Investment Board
year of birth: 1978
Nationality: Vietnamese 

He holds a Bachelor degree of Commerce, majoring in 
Banking and Finance from Australian National University. 
He has obtained nearly 20 years of experience in 
the management of investment funds and financial 
companies. As a dynamic and experienced member 
in financial investment, he is expected to bring a new 
breeze to Coteccons investment.

Employment history: In the period of 1999 to 2007, he 
worked for Bates & Pickering Chartered Accountant, 
Canberra, Australia; in  2008 - 2010 he returned to Viet 
Nam and took the position of Deputy General Investment 
Director at Thai Thinh Capital; in 2010 - 2015 he joined 
VinaCapital and held the positions of  Development 
Director (VinaProjects), Investment Director (VinaCapital 
Real Estate), Chief Executive Officer (VinaCapital Phuoc 
Dien), Member of the Board of Directors (Thang Loi 
Textile and Garment joint Stock Company). In 2015, he 
was the Investment Director of Thanh Cong Trading and 
Investment Limited Company.

In 2016 he was additionally selected to the Coteccons’ 
Board of Directors for the term 2012 - 2017, while also 
serving as the Head of Investment Board.
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overview of board of sUPervisors

in 2016, tHe board of sUPervisors 
Had 2 strUctUral cHanges: 02 
MeMbers resigned in MarcH 2016 
and 02 MeMbers assigned later for 
a terM of 2012-2017 at tHe general 
Meeting of sHareHolders.

Mr. NgUYEN DUC CANH

Head of Board of Supervisors
year of birth: 1970
Nationality: Australia

He graduated from the University in Australia, majoring 
Business Accounting and has 24 years of experience in 
executive management. From 1992 to 2001, he served as 
Regional Director of Hanson Australia Building Materials 
Company.

In 2002, He moved to BASF Viet Nam Construction 
Chemical Company and held the position of General 
Director until the end of 2008. Since 2009, he has been 
working at Viet My Construction materials technology 
company as General Director.

Ms. PHAm CAm LY

Member of the Board of Supervisors
year of birth: 1976
Nationality: Vietnamese

She graduated as a Master in Finance and has had nearly 
20 years of experience in finance.

Employment history: In 1998 - 2004, she worked at the 
State Bank of Viet Nam, Ho Chi Minh City Branch; In 2004 
-2006, she was a senior specialist at Ho Chi Minh City 
Investment Fund for Urban Development (HIFU); In 2008 
- 2010, after completing her Master program in France, 
she joined Tri Tin International as an expert; From 2010 
to present, she has been working for Kusto Viet Nam 
holding the position of a manager.

In April 2016 she was elected additionally to the Board of 
Supervisors at Coteccons for the term 2012 - 2017.

Ms. NgUYEN THI PHUC LONg

Member of the Board of Supervisors
year of birth: 1975
Nationality: Vietnamese

She holds a BA in Corporate Finance & Monetary Trading 
and has had 20 years of experience in financial accounting 
management.

Working experience: in 1998 - 2002 she was the general 
accountant at Long An Post Office; In 2002 - 2010 she 
joined Coteccons and held the position of Vice Manager 
of Finance and Accounting Department; In 2010 - 2016 
she was Chief Accountant of Ricons Construction 
Investment joint Stock Company; Since 2016, she moved 
to work at Unicons Construction Investment Ltd., as Chief 
Accountant.

In April 2016 she was elected additionally to the Board of 
Supervisors at Coteccons for the term 2012 - 2017.
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overview of tHe board of ManageMent

Mr. NgUYEN BA DUONg 
(3rd from the left)

General Director  
For more information, please read 
Overview of Board of Directors  
(page 36)

Mr. TU DAI PHUC 
(2nd from the left)

Deputy General Director 
For more information, please read 
Overview of Board of Management  
(page 45)

Mr. TRAN QUANg QUAN 
(4th from the left)

Deputy General Director  
For more information, please read 
Overview of Board of Directors  
(page 37)

Mr. TRAN VAN CHINH 
(1st from the left)

Deputy General Director 
For more information, please read 
Overview of Board of Management  
(page 44)

Mr. TRAN QUANg TUAN 
(5th from the left)

Deputy General Director  
For more information, please read 
Overview of Board of Directors  
(page 37)

Mr. PHAN HUY VINH  
(6th from the left)

Deputy General Director  
For more information, please read 
Overview of Board of Management  
(page 45)

witH a HigH degree of 
resPonsibility, all MeMbers 
of tHe board of ManageMent 
Have brilliantly acHieved 
strategic goals ProPosed 
botH by general board of 
sHareHolders and board of 
directors.

42 ANNUAL REPORT 2016 
www.coteccons.vn

43OrganizatiOn and Human resOurces



Mr. TU DAI PHUC

Deputy General Director
year of birth: 1975
Nationality: Vietnamese

He graduated from the Faculty of Architecture, Ho Chi 
Minh City University of Architecture. 

1998 - 1999: He worked at Southern Design Company 
A.S.C.A. During the next two years, from 1999 to 2001, he 
continued his career as the Team Leader in Architectural 
Design at V.C.C.

From 2002, he moved to Coteccons and held positions 
as Project Manager, Head of  Finishing Department, 
Assistant to General Director and Business Development 
Director. Since 3/2014 he has been in charge of Deputy 
General Director at Coteccons.

Mr. TRAN VAN CHINH

Deputy General Director
year of birth: 1959
Nationality: Vietnamese

He graduated as Construction Engineer from the Ha Noi 
University of Construction. From 1981 to 2007, he worked 
at the units under Song Da Construction Corporation and 
held the position of Enterprise Director and Company 
Director.

Moving to Coteccons in 2007 as Director of Construction, 
and in 2009, he was appointed Deputy General Director 
in charge of some projects in the North of Viet Nam.

Mr. PHAN HUY VINH

Deputy General Director
year of birth: 1972
Nationality: Vietnamese

He graduated from Water Resources Engineering major 
at Thuy Loi University.

In 1996 – 2002: He took the position of Technical 
Supervisor and Project Manager at Light Industry 
Construction Company No. 2.

In 2002 – 2008: He worked in Construction Division at 
Cotec Construction joint Stock Company (Coteccons) 
with the position of Project Manager, Construction 
Division Director, Deputy General Director of Coteccons.

In 2008 - 2015: He was promoted to Deputy General 
Director, General Director of Phu Hung Gia Investment 
Construction jSC - precursor of Ricons Construction 
Investment joint Stock Company. He was appointed to 
Deputy General Director on 01/9/2015.

overview of tHe board of ManageMent (continUed)

witH efforts of tHe board of 
ManageMent and all eMPloyees, 
2016 continUed to Mark glorioUs 
sUccess of coteccons, brilliantly 
acHieving tHe bUsiness Plan 
ProPosed by tHe general board of 
sHareHolders.
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rePort of tHe HUMan resoUrces

identifying HUMan resoUrce 
as tHe key deterMinant of 
sUccess, tHroUgHoUt tHe 
Process of oUr foUndation and 
develoPMent, coteccons Has 
focUsed on establisHing an 
eXPerienced and Professional 
work force, fostering a strong 
and cooPerative corPorate 
cUltUre and ProMoting a fair and 
coMPetitive working environMent 
to best facilitate tHe sUstainable 
develoPMent of tHe coMPany.

Human Resources Structure by Education Level
 

Education level Number Percentage (%)

  University or above 1,021 84.45%

  Colleges and Tertiories 87 7.20%

  Others 101 8.35%

humAn  
resources  
structure  

By Age

48%

50%
2%

92%

8%

humAn  
resources  
structure  
By genDer

Human Resources Structure by gender 

Gender Number Percentage (%)

  Male 1,108 91.65%

  Female   101 8.35%

Human Resources Structure by Age
 

Age Number Percentage (%)

  Under 30    589 48.72%

  From 30-50        601 49.71%

  Over 50    19 1.57%

Human Resources Structure by Position 
 

Position Number Percentage (%)

  The Management (from Project 
Managers and above)

 25 2.07%

  Department Manager/ Project 
Manager

63 5.21%

  Department Vice Manager/ 
Project Vice Manager

43 3.56%

  Employees/ Supervisors/ Others 1,078 89.16%

Human Resources Structure by Functional Division

Functional division Number Percentage (%)

  Office 360 29.78%

  On site 849 70.22%

humAn  
resources  

structure By  
posItIon

89%

2%
4%5%

humAn  
resources  

structure By  
FunctIonAl  

DIvIsIon

30%

70%

humAn 
resources 
structure 

By eDucAtIon 
level

85%

8%
7%
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employee BAse

“People is the first and foremost key to success” _ Human resource is the most 
valuable asset of Coteccons. Throughout our history, Coteccons has always 
focused on developing a team of professional managers and employees to 
rigorously uplift Coteccons in the pursuit of sustainability. Along with growths 
in scale and the development of the Company, Coteccons’ employee base 
has been expanding continuously over years. In 2016, to meet increasing 
demands for manpower in both the Company’s vertical investment in the 
industry’s supply chain and our horizontal expansion in infrastructure sector, 
Coteccons witnessed a considerable upsurge in the Company’s workforce. By 
31st Dec 2016, the total number of employees of Coteccons alone reached 
1,209 employees inclusive of office staff, engineers and supervisors.

FIgures oF employee BAse At eAch oF coteccons’ 
AFFIlIAtes were reporteD As Follows:

An overvIew on the worKForce 

Inheriting the labor-intensive nature of the construction industry, Coteccons’ 
workforce is predominantly young, aged from 23 to 40, accounting for over 
90% of the Company’s overall manpower. This is the golden age level for the 
construction industry, contributing to the Company’s effectiveness at present 
and in the future.

humAn resources structure

1.209 EMPLOyEES

The ToTal number of 
employees of CoTeCCons

unIcons
834 employees

rIcons
540 employees

Fcc
30 employees



rePort of tHe HUMan resoUrces (continUed)

48 ANNUAL REPORT 2016 
www.coteccons.vn

49OrganizatiOn and Human resOurces

remunerAtIon polIcIes 
AnD BeneFIt pAcKAge For 

employees

BeneFIt pAcKAge

 » Besides fulfilling the Company’s legal obligations 
related to labour insurance regulations, Coteccons 
goes further by paying special attention to employees’ 
health. Each year, Coteccons liaises with reliable 
hospitals, both in Viet Nam and in foreign countries, 
to conduct general health checks for all employees. 
Also, the Company purchases comprehensive 
insurance policies for most of the employees and 
their immediate family members, allowing them an 
instant access to proper health services at their best 
convenience.

 » As a nature of the construction industry, Coteccons 
has a variety of proper allowance policies for 
employees working on and off sites, including: 
telephone allowance, meal allowance, on-site 

allowance, transportation allowance, and special 
allowance for projects in remote areas.

 » To connect individuals and establish unity not only 
in Coteccons but also among affiliates, each year 
Coteccons arranges company trips (both domestic 
and overseas), sport events, art events, charity 
events, etc. as opportunities for employees to meet, 
share and engage with each other.

 » Education sponsorships for children of managerial 
personnel and senior staff continued to gain the 
Company’s investment in 2016. Such focus on 
education is not only a pride of Coteccons’ employees 
about the Company’s attention towards our staff 
but also a humble yet meaningful contribution of 
Coteccons to the national intellectual level, hence 
putting a solid ground for the development of 
Coteccons’ future generations. 

remunerAtIon polIcIes

Coteccons objectively and righteously evaluates the 
contribution of each employee and provides the 

best conditions for employees to flourish. Therefore, 
each individual at Coteccons holds a high sense of 
responsibility, knowledge attainment, creativity and a right 
attitude towards perfection at all aspects. At the heart of 
Coteccons’continuous improvement lies human resource 
policies, oriented towards delivering the most productive 
yet engaging and suitable working environment for all 
employees.

With a requirement of high-quality human resources to 
facilitate the Company’s expansion, Coteccons regularly 
considers and adjusts the Company’s remuneration 
policies in accordance with employees’ capabilities, 
consistently ensuring a competitive and favorable level 
above the industry’s base line for Coteccons’ employees. 

Remuneration policies are implemented flexibly in a 
harmony with the Company’s business picture, and based 
fundamentally on job performance and position held in 
order to effectively motivate employees’ innovations, 
talents and contribution to the overall development of 
the Company.

In addition to salary, Coteccons has regular rewards on 
public holidays. Employees are also entitled to irregular 
bonuses and commendations for business innovations 
either in group or in person. 

At the end of each fiscal year, based on business results, 
Coteccons will have reward policies for excellent 
individuals and groups upon the completion of KPI 
Evaluation. At the Annual Summation Meeting, based 
on votes, Reward Committee will award medals for 
excellent individuals and groups in recognition of their 
contribution to the Company’s development. The 
purposes of this rewarding are:

 » To create a healthy competitive environment in 
which employees can develop themselves at the 
fullest capacity, contributing to the Company’s solid 
growth.

 » To become a resonance medium for achievements 
and efforts of individuals and groups.

unit: VnD million

spenDIng on socIAl InsurAnce, heAlth InsurAnce AnD AccIDent InsurAnce over 

Social InsuranceHealth Insurance Accident Insurance 

521 692 851 2,024 3,4471,955 2,662 3,491 4,642
7,749

10,256
14,140

19,304

25,409

44,736

2012

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

2013 2014 2015 2016
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IntegrAtIon trAInIng

All newly-recruited employees receive an integration training 
in which they are introduced to Coteccons’ environment 
and culture. Integration training offers new employees a job 
overview and opportunities to understand the foundation 
and development history, the benefit policies and the 
working environment of Coteccons, therefore nurturing a 
devoted engagement and long-term dedication.

employee trAInIng AnD 
Development
So far, employee traning and development have been 
performed systematically and effectively

In 2016, Coteccons continued to focus on recruitment 
activities in order to attract a high-quality workforce by 
the implementation of the below-listed activities: 

 » In 2016, the Human Resources strived to improve and 
complete the recruitment process to employ the most 
suitable yet capable employees, ensuring a stable 
and qualified workforce for the Company. As a result, 
Conteccons only brought in engineers graduating from 
prestigious universities in Viet Nam with fair academic 
achievements or above, and gave special priorities to 
experienced employees and foreign specialists as well 
as talented students graduating from widely-renowned 
universities, both in Viet Nam and in foreign countries.

 » In 2016, Coteccons continued the strategic partnership 
with many universities, including: Polytechonologies 
University of Ho Chi Minh City, Architecture University 
of Ho Chi Minh City, Construction University of  
Ha Noi, Polytechnologies University of Ha Noi through 
scholarships, internships and soft skill trainings for 
students as well as sharing events organized upon 
demands of both parties. Via these channels, Coteccons 
could prioritize outstanding students with fair academic 
achievements or above to work at Coteccons Group.

 » The partnership between Coteccons and the universities 
has brought practical values for both parties and students 
as well. This is a great combination of theories and practices, 
allowing students to understand knowledge and grow 
up more quickly so that they can start working right after 
graduation. It can be said that the Universities have been 
great contributors to the success of Coteccons in the aspect 
of providing a high-quality talent pool for Coteccons.

recruItment
In 2016, Coteccons recruited 300 new employees.

DevelopIng A FrIenDly AnD FAIr worKIng envIronment
Lying at the heart of all HR policies is the ultimate goal of developing a friendly and fair working environment for all 
employees. Each year, Coteccons conducts surveys on employees’ opinions about how to improve human resource 
polices. Several focals of these surveys are salary, benefits, job suitability, development opportunities, working 
environment, etc.

Results from 2016 Survey showed over 95% Coteccons’ employees were satisfied with all above-mentioned categories. 
Besides, employees expressed their engagement with the Company both through sharing dedicated thoughts and 
wills and through proactively contributing constructive ideas to the development of Coteccons as a whole and to the 
operation of many specific aspects of the Company. All practical ideas were recorded and thoroughly considered by 
the Board of Management, then carefully selected to lay a firm background for Coteccons’ management improvement.

With the Company’s focus on establishing a professional working environment, in 2016, Coteccons was honored by 
Nielsen & Anphabe as the best work place in construction industry, and Top 100 best places to work across all industries 
in Vietnam.

65%

26%

9%

Construction supervisor: 194 people

MEP supervisor: 78 people
Others: 28 people

NEW  
RECRUITS  

IN 2016

proFessIonAl trAInIng AnD Development

For engineers and architects, specification trainings are 
organized and provided in form of various specialized 
subjects, including: Coteccons’ construction equipment, 
reinforced concrete construction, construction finishing, 
MEP coordination (Mechanical, electrical, and plumbing 
coordination), etc. and other subjects from pile foundation 
installation to interior furnishing and handover and close out. 
As a nature of the construction industry where a great focal is 
placed on Labor Safety, all on-site Engineers and Supervisors 
are thoroughly trained and highly qualified in Labor Safety. 
Moreover, on-site Labor Safety trainings are organized on 
weekly basis for all employees and supervisors. As for Specialists 
at Divisions, proposals for special trainings in need shall be 
made to Human Resource Department for HR’s arrangements 
of specialized trainings for each division. Moreover, skills such 
as management skills and meeting organization are also 
offered to key specialists and division staff as a preparation for 
Coteccons’ next generation of successors. 

Coteccons’ training practices are diverse and flexible in such 
forms and methods including: inviting domestic and foreign 
experienced specialists in different fields of industry to deliver 
in-house trainings, sending employees to short-term and 
long-term training courses, internal training, mentoring and 
coaching. Contents of training are renovated on a regular 
basis, with a center of practical knowledge, experience, and 
advanced managerial practices.  

exchAngIng AnD shArIng

The Club of Potential Leaders with the attendance of nearly 
200 members is held monthly, providing opportunities for key 
leaders and their successors to partake in different trainings 
in management and direction and to refine their managerial 
competence. These are key personnel who is expected to take 
over Coteccons’ operation in the future. “Those who learnt 
teach those who don’t and those who learnt more teach 
those who leanrt less”, that managers must provide support 
for employees’ development, etc. are Coteccons’ guidelines in 
employee training and development.

In 2016, the total hours dedicated to professional 
development and training at Coteccons was 406 
hours, leaving the remaining of 148 hours for general 
training.

Integration Training: 44 hours

Project Manager/ Club of Potential Leaders: 48 hours

Division Training: 48 hours

Soft skills Training: 8 hours

30%

6%

32%

32%

gENERAL 
TRAININg 
BY TARgET 

gROUPS 

QS, MEP- Intensive training: 64 hours

On-site training (structure, construction finishing, labour 
safety, etc.): 294 hours

Construction Finishing – Intensive training: 40 hours

Structure – Intensive training: 8 hours

72%

16%

10%
2%

PROFESSION 
TRAININg AND 
DEVELOPmENT 

BY SPECIALIzED 
SUBJECTS 



INNOVATION
Coteccons has applied BIM and Tekla software to achieve optimal designs and construction processes 
with a high level of accuracy and effectiveness. Construction practices are simulated by computed 
models. Information are being shared regularly among stakeholders at all stages. Possible solutions 
are made right from the design process to save time and costs. Thanks to these practices, The Gold 
View project surpassed many competitors in all over ASEAN region to win the 3rd prize in Tekla BIM 
Awards 2016 Competition. BIM has also contributed the success of Coteccons’ D&B Model. Solutions 
and advanced technologies deliver sustainable values in all Coteccons’ projects.

diaMond island

rePort on bUsiness oPeration in 2016
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In year 2016, the stable Vietnamese 
economy, the falling interest rate, and 
the abundant loan capital for individual 
and institutional investors assisted the 
construction industry and the real estate 
trading to flourish. Many real estate 
projects which were frozen for years were 
reactivated and successfully sold. All of 
these factors together with determined 
attempts, the continuous improvements 
and the outstanding business strategies 
of the Board of Management contributed 
substantially to the accomplishments of 
Coteccons in the year.

The Board of Supervisors (BOS) are in 
absolute agreement with all financial 
data in the BOD’s report on the 2016’s 
results of operation, which was also 
presented to the Annual General 
Meeting and the Financial Statement 
audited by Ernst & young Vietnam  
Co., Ltd.

operAtIon oF the BoArD oF supervIsors In 2016
The membership of the Board of Supervisors experienced a few changes when two (02) of its members resigned in  
Mar 2016, and 02 new members were assigned as replacements by the Annual General Meeting for 2012 - 2017 term 
of office. 

No. Member Position Appointed day/ 
resignation day

Number of 
attended 
meetings

Attending 
rate

Reasons  
for  

absence

1. Mr. Nguyen Duc Canh Head of BOS May 2012 4/4 100%

2. Ms. Phan Cam Ly Member April 12 2016 4/4 100%

3. Ms. Nguyen Thi Phuc Long Member April 12 2016 4/4 100%

4. Ms. Nghiem Bach Huong Member March 18 2016 0/4 0% Resigned

5. Mr. Ho Van Chi Thanh Member March 18 2016 0/4 0% Resigned

In 2016, the Board of Supervisors held regular meetings to examine the resolution and corporate governance of the 
Board of Directors, the financial statements and to discuss with the Board of Management the operation results, the 
advantages and disadvantages in the Company’s business, and the directions for upcoming periods.

evAluAtIon on the BusIness result In 2016

evAluAtIon on some BAsIc FInAncIAl InDIcAtors  
In the consolIDAteD stAtement

No. Indicator Unit 2015 2016

I Profit margin    

1 Gross profit margin % 8.1% 8.7%

2 EBIT/Revenue ratio % 5.5% 7.2%

3 Profit before tax/Revenue ratio % 6.8% 8.5%

4 Profit before tax/ Equity ratio % 28.6% 28.3%

5 Profit before tax/ Total assets ratio % 11.9% 15.0%

II Efficiency ratio    

1 Inventory days Day 19 22

2 Accounts receivable days Day 64 52

3 Accounts payable days Day 43 50

4 Days working capital Day 46 56

III Liquidity    

1 Quick ratio Times 1.4 1.8

2 Cash ratio Times 1.2 1.6

3 Leverage ratio % 59% 47%

Attaining record turnover, profit, with addition to outstanding liability and financial management in 2016 have 
contributed to the achieving the target of profit ratio, effect of assets usage and liquidity which is much more better 
than the previous year of 2015.

No. Meeting Date Contents

1 April 22 2016
 » Elect to the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors for 2012 - 2017 term of office (for the 

remaining tenure).
 » Assign tasks within the Board of Supervisors .

2 May 05 2016

 » Examine the Annual General Meeting’s resolution implementation.
 » Examine the Interim consolidated financial statements of the first quarter of 2016.
 » Discuss with the Board of Directors the operation results of the first quarter of 2016, the 

action plan for the second quarter of 2016, and all advantages and disadvantages to the 
Company’s operation.

3
August 02 

2016

 » Examine the Annual General Meeting’s resolution implementation.
 » Examine the Interim consolidated financial statements of the second quarter of 2016, 

and of the first half of 2016.
 » Examine the management of the receivables and the bad debtsDetermine management 

of liabiand solutions to bad debts of Corporate.
 » Examine the minutes of the BOD’ meetings in the second quarter of 2016.
 » Discuss with the Board of Directors the operation results of the second quarter of 

2016, the action plan for the second half of 2016, and potential risks to the Company’s 
operation.

4
November 16 

2016

 » Examine the Annual General Meeting’s resolution implementation.
 » Examine the Interim consolidated financial statements of the third quarter of 2016,  

and of the first 9 months of 2016.
 » Examine the minutes of the BOD’ meetings in the third quarter of 2016.
 » Discuss with the Board of Directors the operation results of the third quarter of 2016,  

the action plan for the rest of 2016, and business goals for 2017.
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evAluAtIon on the ImplementAtIon oF BoArD oF DIrectors’ 
resolutIon AnD AnnuAl generAl meetIng’s resolutIon

In accordance with the Annual General Meeting’s resolution, the Company has 
appointed Ernst & young Vietnam Co., LTD as the external auditor for the 2016 
Financial Statement; Has always complied strictly with the current Vietnamese 
Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and prepared 
and presented in full all consolidated financial statements.

Paid the total amount of VND 10.65 billion to the members of the Board of Directors, 
the Board of Supervisors and the BOD’s Subcommittees, with the remuneration rate 
in 2016 being at 0.75% of the profit attributable to parent company shareholders.

Implemented cash dividend payment with the rate of 55% of par value 
(5,500 VND/ share).

Listed 3,604,530 additional shares in an exchange for of Unicons’ outstanding share, 
and hence, increased Coteccons’ ownership in Unicons to 100%.

Completed registering the change of the Company's name into Coteccons 
Construction joint Stock Company.

Issued 2,339,540 shares in the 2016’s Employee Stock Ownership Plan for the 
Company’s key staff.

Issued and listed 16,376,179 shares to current shareholders from owner’s equity.

Issued and listed 11,476,751 shares, equivalent to 80% of the total shares offered, and 
raised VND 1,744,291,705,385 in cash.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

recommenDAtIon

The Company’s remarkable success in 2016 was all attributable to the visionary business 
strategy and the consistent effort and striving of the Board of Directors in particular and 
the whole Company’s staff in general. Nevertheless, the current heavy dependence on civil 
construction sector may consist of many potential risks because of its own periodicity.

Fluctuations in the economy in general and in the financial as well as banking markets in 
particular are in direct relation with the stability and the development of the real estate 
market, which is the main contributor to the Company’s annual profit and sales. Hence, there 
is a need for researching, analysing, and assessing the macro-environment and the financial 
market, especially factors affecting the Company’s operation, and sequentially making up 
appropriate business scenarios.

Successful capital raising through private placement offering in 2016, on the one hand, has 
shown investors’ confidence in the potentialities and developmental abilities of the Company 
in the near future, and on the other hand, lays great pressure on the whole Company and the 
Board of Directors to build effective and efficient investment plan in the following phases. 
Investment strategies have be suitable for the Company’s abilities and experiences and avoid 
spreading too much.

Coteccons’ competence and sound business strategies have been proved throughout the 
years by evidence of the Company’s staying static on the first place in civil construction sector. 
However, it is obviously a tough mission and a huge challenge to the Board of Directors, the 
Board of Management and the whole staff to sustain this trend in the following period. In 
light of that fact, strategies for appealing talents and developing human resources are at top 
priority to sustain the Company’s competitive edge and further to boost the Company to a 
whole new level.

There is a need for concentrating on establishing a more transparent, effective and efficient 
corporate governance system to ensure the Shareholders’ benefit and the Company’s 
sustainable development.
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Organizational structure and the Board of management

etc. to increase the productivity 
and operation efficiency. The 
research and application of 
BIM was conducted and swiftly 
deployed in all construction sites, 
bringing many noticeable values 
in practice. In an international 
competition named Tekla BIM 
Awards 2016, Coteccons’ BIM 
Department successfully surpassed 
many ASEAN competitors to win 
the third prize.

Coteccons also invested a total 
value of VND 300 billion into new 
equipment and tools to upgrade the 
Company’s construction capability. 

since tHe beginning of 2016, tHe 
board of ManageMent closely 
directed and assigned MeMbers 
of tHe board of ManageMent to 
Undertake tHe direct ManageMent 
of all divisions and dePartMents 
of tHe coMPany, Providing 
iMMediate sUPPort and tiMely 
direction for all oPerations.
With the emergence of various 
new functional Divisions and 
Departments taking charge of 
differnt professional operations, 
Coteccons’ organizational structure 
has been improved considerably. 
Some Departments were 
restructured to be suitable with the 
development of Coteccons. The 
Board of Management delivered 
an excellent finance management, 
especially of the accounts receivable. 

all tHe above-Mentioned 
oPerations of tHe board 
of ManageMent were 
iMPortant factors 
tHat coMPreHensively 
Motivated coteccons’ 
eMPloyees at all levels, 
tHereby forMing tHe 
sHared sPirit of earnest 
striving to ProdUce great 
acHieveMents in tHe year 
of 2016.

Some highlights worth mentioning 
are the 24-tonne Potain Crain in The  
Landmark 81 project, high-speed 
suspension system, scaffold system 
and aluminum formwork used in all 
construction sites.

In terms of capital raising, in 
November 2016, Coteccons 
successfully conducted private 
placement for Strategic Investors, 
raising nearly VND 1,762 billion. This 
share issuance has helped Coteccons 
expand the Company’s strategic 
investment activities, facilitating 
the Company’s cooperation and 
development of large projects.

The foundation of Coteccons’ 
success has alway been 
lying in its employees. In 

2016, the total personnel of both 
Coteccons and Unicons was 2,043 
employees, increasing by 470 
employees (nearly 30%) compared 
to that of the previous year. The 
Board of Management has always 
strictly overseen the human 
resource management, in the 
pursuit of the best Incentive and 
Bonus Policies for all employees. In 
2016, the Board of Management 
focused greatly on the evaluation, 
rotation, and arrangement of 
Managerial Personnel of all 
levels, and the formation of lean 
Project Management Teams. 
Besides, regular training activities 
through professional training 
and development programs for 
supervisory engineers, or on 
labor safety, accounting and 
administration, etc. have offered 
opportunities for Coteccons’ 
employees to be more mature and 
more effectively contribute to the 
company’s development.

In addition to business objectives, 
the Board of Management give 

special priority to the training of 
Key Leaders and a team of capable 
managerial successors through 
the operation of Coteccons’ Club 
of Potential Leaders (CPL). In the 
year of 2016, CPL Club held several 
sharing events about leadership 
and management skills for club 
members, with an active attendance 
of many famous speakers in 
management field at present.

Weekly and monthly meetings 
held by the Board of Management 
to deliver direct management 
and managerial decisions from 
all construction sites to Centers, 
Departments, Ha Noi Office, etc., 
have shaped a sense of urgency 
and responsibility in the whole 
Company. The number of projects 
being commenced, roof topped 
and completed has been increasing 
rapidly with a significant growth in 
scale, and thus once again affirm the 
Coteccons’s leading position. Some 
of the most recognizable projects 
that can be listed are Masteri Thao 
Dien, The Landmark 81, Diamond 
Island, D’Capitale, Vinhomes Thang 
Long, City Garden, The Spirit of 
Saigon, The Millenium, Regina Phase 
5, First Team Factory, etc.

With an effective and effecient 
operation of the Board of Financial 
Supervision, bad debts were better 
managed and collected in 2016.

At the same time, the Board of 
Management has improved the 
investment activities by appointing 
Chief Investment Officer as a contact 
person who finds and implements 
investment activities in such fields 
as finance, infrastructure, occasional 
investment in real estate, etc. for the 
Company.

Coteccons also appointed Mrs. 
Vu Thi Hong Hanh as Chief 
Accountant in the middle of 
2016, besides renovations in the 
personnel system, the Board 
of Management focused on 
improving the procedure, and 
on innovating and investing 
into techonology used in both 
management and construction, 

VnD 300 billion 

inVesTeD a ToTal Value To 
upgraDe The Company’s 
ConsTruCTion CapabiliTy

2,043 employees

ToTal personnel of boTh 
CoTeCCons anD uniCons 

30%

40% ToTal reVenue

reVenue  
of D&b projeCTs

In 2016, Coteccons’ affiliates 
made a profit of VND 32.6 billion, 
increasing by 135% compared with 
that of 2015. The figure showed 
an increased efficiency in the 
affiliates’ performance, which partly 
contributed to Coteccons’ overall 
achievements over the period. 
This improvement is expected to 
increase in the following years when 
Coteccons continues its investment 
into these affiliates. Coteccons’ first 
infrastructure project at Phu Ly -  
Ha Nam was successfully 
completed 6 months ahead of 
schedule, and began to collect tolls 

from November 2016. Coteccons is, 
therefore, confidently conquering 
the new front, completing the 
initial stage in the course of 
fulfilling the target to develop a 
strong hold in the infrastructure 
segment, which in turn will make 
greater and greater contribution to 
the Company’s revenue.

witH tHe relentless efforts of 
tHe board of ManageMent and tHe 
wHole staff, 2016 continUed to be 
a brilliantly sUccessfUl year of 
coteccons, Marking tHe coMPany’s 
oUtstanding acHieveMent of tHe 
ProPosed bUsiness Plan. 

Revenue and profit growth increased 
by 52% and 113%, respectively, 
compared with those of the 
previous year, reaching a high level 
of VND 20,783 billion in revenue 
and VND 1,422 billion in profit. 
Many functional departments such 
as Division of Commerce, Technical 
Division, Board of Investment, Board 
of Internal Control, Board of Financial 
Supervision were established and 
developed, effectively supporting 
Coteccons’ operation. The effective 
use of human resources, along 
with effective rotation, suitable job 
training and reasonable nomination 

from time to time, helped to improve the overall productivity, which in turn, was 
clearly illustrated in a small increasing rate of 30% in the number of personnel 
in 2016. Projects performed by Coteccons in 2016 such as Maseri Thao Dien, 
Vinhomes Thang Long, Vinhomes Central Park, Times City, Duc Viet Resort, 
Regina, First Team, Phy Ly - Ha Nam highway, etc., in which 40% D&B projects, 
were all ahead of schedule, yet perfect in safety and excellent in quality, bringing 
considerable values to Customers and Coteccons.
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Wider network, greater trust 
AnAlysIs oF FInAncIAl InDIcAtors   

InterIm consolIDAteD Income stAtement

Indicator  
(VND billion)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Average 
growth

Income       

Revenue 4,477 6,190 7,634 13,669  20,783 47%

Profit before tax 300 393 464 927  1,763 56%

Profit after tax 219 280 357 733  1,422 60%

Profit attributable to shareholders of the parent 
company

219 257 327 666  1,422 60%

Income oF shAreholDers       

Earnings per share 5,596 6,103 7,769 10,708  20,669 39%

Dividend in cash (% of share capital) 20% 20% 50% 55% 30% *

InterIm consolIDAteD BAlAnceD sheet

Indicator  
(VND billion)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Average 
growth

Total assets 3,613 4,552 4,863 7,815  11,741 34%

 » Current assets 3,048 3,996 3,658 6,486  9,944 34%

 » Non-current assets 565 556 1,205  1,329   1,797 34%

Liabilities and Owner’s Equity 3,613 4,552 4,863  7,815  11,741 34%

 » Liabilities 1,535 2,084 2,154 4,572  5,507 38%

 » Owner’s Equity 2,078 2,468 2,709 3,243  6,234 32%

InterIm consolIDAteD cAsh Flow stAtement

Indicator  
(VND billion)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Cash flows from operating activities 442 368 131 1.229  901 

Cash flows from investing activities (445) (343) (209)    (114) (1,984)

Cash flows from financing activities 432 (89) (72) (121) 1,618

Net cash flow 430 (63) (150) 994 535

Balance of cash and cash equivalents 682 619 469 1.462 1,997

In june 2016, Coteccons won 
several bids against famous 

foreign contractors and was 
entrusted by Vingroup to 
construct the Landmark 81 
Tower. With the height of 461m, 
after completion, Landmark 
81 will be renowned as one 
of the top 10 highest towers 
in the world. The winning of 
this important project once 
again confirmed a great 
trust of Vingroup Investors in 
Coteccons, strengthening the 
prestige of Coteccons in the 
market. Many new investors 
such as Doji Cooperation, Tan 
Hoang Minh Cooperation, Phuc 
Khang, Newtaco, Paihong, Nam 
Cuong, etc., were attracted to 
Coteccons and initiated solid 
business relationships with the 
Company afterwards.

Clients who had once worked 
with Coteccons, such as 
Vingroup, Refico, Phat Dat, Ho 
Tram, Regina Miracle, Brotex, etc. 
all became Coteccons’s regular 
customers. None projects under 
Coteccons’ construction failed 
to satisfy investors’ requirements 
in terms of safety, quality and 
schedule. With Coteccons, it is 
nothing but Customer’s trust 
that lays a sound foundation 
for the Company’s sustainable 
development.

Accompanying Coteccons are 
nearly 3,000 Sub-contractors, 
Suppliers, Construction 
teams working hand in hand, 
creating jobs for more than 
70,000 labours. Coteccons is 
acknowledged in the Top 1000 
biggest tax payers in Viet Nam. 
At the heart of Coteccons’ 
development lies the interests 
of shareholders, customers, 
workers, partners and the 
community. This is an ultimate 
guideline that nourishes 
Coteccons’s sustainable yet 
flourishing growth from time to 
time.

rePort of tHe board of ManageMent (continUed)
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FInAncIAl InDIcAtors

main indicators 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Return ratios      

Consolidated profit/revenue ratio 7.2% 7.5% 7.3% 8.1% 8.7%

EBIT/revenue ratio 4.5% 4.0% 4.5% 5.5% 7.2%

EBITDA/Revenue ratio 5.3% 4.6% 4.9% 5.8% 7.5%

Profit before tax /revenue ratio 6.7% 6.4% 6.1% 6.8% 8.5%

Profit after tax/revenue ratio 4.9% 4.5% 4.7% 5.4% 6.8%

ROAA (EBIT/ average total assets) 6.6% 6.1% 7.2% 11.8% 15.3%

ROEA (Profit attributable to equity holders of the 
parent company/average equity)

12.4% 11.7% 13.6% 23.1% 30.0%

Liquidity     

Current liquidity ratio 198.5% 191.8% 168.8% 141.6% 180.5%

Quick liquidity ratio 174.6% 184.0% 150.9% 109.8% 148.4%

Financial leverage     

Debt/Equity ratio 73.9% 90.5% 85.2% 140.8% 88.4%

Loan/Equity ratio 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Total assets/Equity ratio 173.9% 197.7% 192.4% 240.8% 188.4%

(Cash + Short-term investments)/Total assets 33.0% 37.0% 23.0% 31.0% 40.0%

revenue growth

25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

0
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 Revenue of parent company 
 Consolidated revenue from Unicons

2012

4,477

2015

11,517

2,152

2016

18,439

2,344

2013

4,781

1,409

2014

5,700

1,934

Consolidated revenue in 2016 reached 
VND 20,783 billion, which was 25.9% 
over the year’s target, with revenue from 
parent company being VND 18,439 million, 
accounting for 88%, and consolidated 
revenue from Unicons being VND 2,344 
million, equivalent to 12%.

The growth rate of consolidated revenue 
in 2016 was 52%, a remarkable growth 
compared to 2015. By comparison, this 
number was five times greater than 
the average growth rate of the whole 
construction industry in Viet Nam in 2016, 
which was at 10%. This remarkable increase 
was attributable to the combination of 
the Board of Management’s sharp sense 
of business in responding and capturing 
opportunities in the changing market and 
the relentless effort of all employees.

revenue structure By proJect types

Revenue structure has changed significantly since mid 
2015 until now, towards an increasing trend in civil 
segment as the real estate market has been recovering. 
Besides, there are more and more large-scale projects 
with high technical and aesthetic requirements; and 
Coteccons has been proven to be one of the most reliable 
contractors for investors when executing these projects. 
In addition to increasing the proportion of residential 
projects, Coteccons continued to maintain and look for 
industrial projects which contribute considerably to the 
sustaining and boosting of revenue growth annually, 
as industrial projects often have quicker construction 
progress and faster cash flow than other segments.

Unit: VND billion

CONSOLIDATED 
REVENUE STRUCTURE 

2015 - 2016

72%

13%

5%

9% 1%

45%

37%

8%

7% 3%

 Apartment
 Industrial
 Hotel
 Commercial
 Others

Note: Inner circle: 2015, Outer circle: 2016

REVENUE 
STRUCTURE OF 

PARENT COmPANY 
2015 - 2016

9%

8%

32%

1%10%

5%

13%

 Apartment
 Industrial
 Hotel
 Commercial
 Others

Note: Inner circle: 2015, Outer circle: 2016

REVENUE 
STRUCTURE 
OF UNICONS 
2015 - 2016

3%6%

12%
16%

3%
1%

54%

26%

 Apartment
 Industrial
 Hotel
 Commercial
 Others

Note: Inner circle: 2015, Outer circle: 2016

2%

77%

51%

71%



Unit: VND billion

rePort of tHe board of ManageMent (continUed)
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7.3%7.5%7.2%

332

2012

  Gross profit    Gross profit margin

2013 2014 2015 2016

464 556

1,112
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revenue structure By contrAct types

Introduced in 2013-2014, the Design & Build (D&B) 
model has been an effective and profitable operation of 
Coteccons until now. Being the pioneer in D&B projects 
in Viet Nam, Coteccons has accumulated a great amount 
of experience and are trying to upgrade and complete 
the Model and to bring more and more benefits to 
investors. The contribution of Design & Build model 
into Conteccons’ revenue in 2016 was 40% of the total 
revenue of the Company, an increase of 4% compared to 
that in 2015.

 D&B
 Bidding

Note: Inner circle: 2015, Outer circle: 2016

vAlue oF contrAct BAcKlog

Statistically, the value of contruction contracts signed 
and carried forward to the coming years is at about  
VND 27,000 billion (including the consolidated data from 
Unicons), a year on year increase of 77.5%. According 
to the contracts’ progress, it is expected that the value 
of VND 16,200 billion will be executed and recorded in 
2017, the remaining VND 10,800 billion will be executed 
and recored in 2018 and 2019.

The fact that the value of the contract backlog is able to 
maintain a healthy growth rate which is even higher than 
the that of revenue ensures the Company’s continuous 
development in the next years. This is a good premise for 
the Board of Management to continue to improve the 
Company’s position and value, bringing more benefits to 
its shareholders.

Regarding the structure of project types in the backlog 
mentioned above, residential projects (apartments and 
low rises) accounted for a high rate of 79% of the total 
value, with details described below in the chart about the 
value structure of contract backlog by project types.

proFIt mArgIn

Not only did Coteccons produce 
significant growth in revenue, 
but the Company also improved 
the gross profit margin in 2016, 
which was 8.7% (VND 1,799 
billion) compared to 8.1% (VND 
1,112 billion) in the year 2015. This 
resulted from the effectiveness of 
the Design & Build Model, and the 
ability to efficiently manage the 
supply chains in order to optimize 
costs of the Company’s operation, 
as well as the recovery of the real 
estate market. This positive signal 
once again confirms the leading 
position of Coteccons in the 
construction market and lays a 
solid foundation for the Company’s 
continuous development in the 
years to come.

lArge-scAle contrActs sIgneD In 2016 

 Residential
 Industrial
 Hotel and Resort
 Commercial
 Infrastructure

Note: Inner circle: 2015, Outer circle: 2016
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 Revenue from contracts signed in 2016
 Revenue from contract backlog

47%

53%
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d’caPitale
VND 3,800 billion 

tHe landMark 81
VND 2,800 billion

vinHoMes tHang long
VND 2,800 billion



cUrrent assets increased Mainly dUe to tHe Positive flUctUation in casH and casH eqUivalents and to 
inventory. tHe reason tHe coMPany Had tHis good flUctUation is Mostly becaUse of its recent sHare issUance. 
tHe inventory at tHe end of 2016 increased over 2015 was a resUlt of Many HigH-valUe constrUction contracts 
signed in 2016.

The increase of Current assets was also because of increase in receivables and other current assets. However, 
taking the growth rate of Accounts Receivable into consideration, its growth rate of 33% was regarded safe 
when comparing to the revenue’s growth rate of 52% in 2016.  Moreover, the increase of VND 110 billion in 

other current assets was mainly due to the fluctuation of deductible value added tax - VAT. This was because in 2016, 
the Company was awarded with many contracts from investors in Export Processing Companies who could enjoy a 
0% VAT on the output, resulting in an increase in the Company’s deductible VAT on the input.

Non-current assets accounted for 15% of total assets of the Company and did not have much fluctuation between the 
two years, except for some major changes  in two main categories. Firstly, fixed assets went up due to an increase in 
equipment investment, and secondly, long-term financial investments went up due to the increase in the long-term 
deposits with maturity of more than one (1) year, and the rise in the investment into the  FCC Infrastructure Investment 
joInt StocK Company.

Together with the remarkable results in revenue and 
profit, the total asset of the Company did increase 
significantly by 50% over 2015, which was VND 11,741 
billion (as in the chart below). Despite the fast growing 
pace, the Company’s asset structure still reflected a high 
degree of safety and liquidity. Current assets reached 
VND 9,944 billion, accounting for 85% of the total assets. 

structure oF Assets

Over years, thanks to the practices of selecting of 
reliable investors who have strong financial capability, 
close monitoring customers’ payment, focusing on debt 
collection, and seeking appropriate mesures to collect 
bad debts as well, the Company’s Accounts Receivable 
in 2016 continued to be improved. From 2014 to 2016, 
the Receivable Days gradually reduced from 99 days in 
2014 to 64 days in 2015 and finally to only 52 days in 
2016.

Receivables came mainly from contracts under 
construction or pending settlement. For constructions 
which had already been settled, the majority is the 
amount of money retained for warranty.

The Company has assessed the risks and maintained 
reserves for bad debts in full and in accordance with 
regulations.

The structure of Receivables account by project types 
was almost corresponding with each type’s contribution 
to the Company’s revenue, which means that there was 
not much difference in debt collection practice among 
different types of projects.

Accounts receIvABle

 Residential
 Industrial
 Hotel and Resort
 Commercial
 Infrastructure

Note: Inner circle: 2015, Outer circle: 2016

Money and short-term investments (savings deposits) 
amounted to VND 4,672 billion, making up 40% of the 
total assets. A larger amount of free cash has created 
a solid financial foundation for the Company to gain 
advantage in bidding and to be proactive in investing 
in and procuring construction equipment as well, thus 
better grasping the investment opportunities.

rePort of tHe board of ManageMent (continUed)

Assets structure 2015 - 2016

unit: VnD Trillion

 2015  2016

Cash 
and cash 

equivalents

Short-term 
investments

Current 
accounts 
receivable

Inventory Other 
current 
assets

Fixed assets Construction  
in progress

Investment 
properties

Long-term 
investments

Other 
long-term 

assets 

3,500

3,000

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

1,462

928

2,609

1,051

436 440

48 92

493

257

1,997

2,675

3,484

1,241

547 585

18 78

715

401

Indicators 
(VND billion)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Everage 
growth (%)

Current assets  3,046.7  3,995.9  3,657.9  6,485.8  9,943.4 34%

Cash and cash equivalents  681.4  618.5  469.0  1,461.6  1,996.6 31%

Short-term investment  515.3  1,055.5  629.1 928.1  2,675.0 51%

Current accounts receivable  1,457.9  2,010.3  2,149.3  2,608.6  3,483.7 24%

Inventory  382.7  248.3  269.6 1,051.2  1,240.8 34%

Other current assets  9.4  63.3  140.9  436.3  547.3 178%

Non-current assets  632.1  556.3  1,205.1  1,329.2  1,797.4 34%

Fixed assets  226.8  249.4  249.0  439.8  585.3 27%

Construction in progress  0.1  0.9  5.7  47.8  18.3 403%

Investment properties  96.3  92.3  104.8  91.8  78.0 0%

Long-term investments  177.1  104.5  781.2  492.9  714.8 59%

Other long-term assets  131.8  109.2  64.4  256.9  401.0 32%

Total assets 3,678.8 4,552.2 4,863.0 7,815.0 11,740.8 34%
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eQuIty

Equity in 2016 increased by 92% over the year 2015, 
resulting from:

The structure of the Company’s Equity as of 31 December 
2016 was as follows:

The Company’s Inventory is the very value of unfinished 
projects under construction. Making timely construction 
acceptance is one of the criteria for the Company to 
evaluate the Project Management Teams. The Finance 
Board, the Finance - Accounting Department and the 
Board of Financial Supervision closely monitored, strictly 
controlled and speeded up the weekly and monthly 
construction acceptance, depending on the contract’s 
provisions on the acceptance volume, ensuring that there 
would be no completed work without acceptance. The 
Inventory value of the company as of 31 December 2016 
was VND1,241 billion, a 18.1% increase compared to 2015. 
Although the Inventory value grew up, the growth rate 
was much smaller than that of the Company’s revenue 
(52%). However, this is still a good signal. This shows that 
Coteccons Project Management Teams’ capabilities on 
construction sites was significantly improved as the period 
of time for acceptance, and for approval of the volume and 
quality documents of Investors has been shortened. 

The structure of the Company’s Inventory account by 
project stypes was quite similar to its revenue structure, 
which means that the Company’s management system 
of the construction acceptance is homogeneous. Risks 
were equally distributed among construction types, so 
there would be no concern when the sales structure has 
a tendency to be higher in residential and apartment 
construction types in recent years.

In addition, the Inventory value is 100% from projects that 
are either under contruction or  pending final settlement. 
None of the project was completed or halted. 

Inventory structure oF lIABIlItIes

Short-term 
trade 

payables

Short-term 
advances 

from 
customers

Statutory 
obligations

Short-term 
accrued 

expenses

Short-term 
unearned 
revenues

Other 
short-term 
payables 

Short-term 
provisions

Bonus and 
welfare 

fund

Non-
current 

liabilities

3,500

3,000

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

135724117

1,108

1,962

1,098

1210295
245

796

3,228

822

unit: VnD billion  2015  2016

 » Increase due to increase in share capital in 2016 
(VND 1,875 billion).

 » Decrease due to paying dividends to shareholders 
in 2014 (VND 257 billion) and spending on welfare 
and reward fund (VND 49 billion).

 » Increase due to gaining profit in 2016 (VND 1,422 
billion).

Accounts payable experienced many fluctuations in 2016. 
With sales going up by 52% was an increase in the number 
of contracts signed with subcontractors and suppliers,  and 
the corresponding up surge of 65% in payables compared 
to 2015.

tHe coMPany Had no bank loan; tHe debts 
are Mainly to sUPPliers, sUbcontractors 
and otHer Payables.

the structure oF the Accounts pAyABle over yeArs 

Indicators 
(VND billion)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Current liabilities 1,521 2,003 2,139 4,559 5,495

Short-term trade payables 575 1,014 976 1,962 3,228

Short-term advances from customers 82 70 78 1,108 796

Statutory obligations 43 63 73 117 245

Short-term accrued expenses 628 617 768 1,098 822

Short-term unearned revenues 102 49 19 24 95

Other short-term payables 71 92 125 122 147

Short-term provisions 6 75 62 71 60

Bonus and welfare fund 13 24 39 57 102

Non-current liabilities 14 81 15 13 12

Other long-term liabilities 14 16 14 2 2

Long-term provisions 0 65 1 11 10

Total liabilities 1,535 2,084 2,154 4,573 5,507

rePort of tHe board of ManageMent (continUed)
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Investment  
ActIvItIes In 2016

masteri 
APARTMENTS SOLD

purchasing bonds

equipment investment

78
150
300

VnD billion 

VnD billion 



the Company’s share issuance in 2016 drew considerable 
attention from large investors, especially foreign investors. 
To ensure the balance in the Company’s shareholder 
structure is in accordance with the Resolution of the 
Annual General Meeting, Coteccons carefully selected 
reliable strategic partners such as Amersham Industries 
Limited, DC Developing Markets Strategies Public Limited 
Company, VinaCapital, Andbanc Investments, SIF, SSI 
AM, and KITMC who compromise to closely accompany 
Coteccons over all strategies and development of the 
Company. Accounted alone, the private placement of 
Coteccons in 2016 raised VND 1,762 billion, increasing 
the number of Coteccons’ listed shares up to 77.05 
million shares which were equivalent to VND 770.5 billion 
in Charter Capital. With the earnings at the end of 2016, 
Coteccons shall concentrate the financial resource into 3 
major investment channels:

No. major Expected Investment 
Value (VND billion)

1
Establishing a new company, or buying shares (M&A) of appropriate companies 
to expand Coteccons’ business.

600 - 700

2
Performing direct investment or cooperating with other companies to develop 
infrastructure projects and real estate projects including offices, hotels, and 
apartments.

600 - 700

3 Investing in equipment and tools to optimally facilitate the Company’s business. 300 - 400

as for occasional investMent in real estate, in 2016, 
coteccons sUccessfUlly sold 100% aPartMents of 
tHe Masteri Project witH a Profit Margin of 23%. 
additionally, tHe coMPany Has condUcted in-dePtH 
researcHes on Potential real estate botH in Ho cHi 
MinH and Ha noi in order to select tHe Most feasible 
and Profitable Projects for occasional investMents 
in 2017.

investMent activities in 2016 
(continUed)

1a HigHway - PHU ly Ha naM

 » Coteccons invested VND 100 billion to buy shares of 
ACB Securities Co. (ACBS);

 » Invested VND 50 billion for shares of Maritime Bank 
Securities Co. (MSI);

Interest rates higher than the 12-month deposit 
interest rate by nearly 2-3%. Moreover, the Company 
has researched about several potential companies 
specializing in furniture, M&E, etc. and other businesses 
inclusive in the Company’s value chain in order to serve 
the Company’s M&A strategy in the upcoming period.

In july 2014, Coteccons contributed capital to establish 
FCC Infrastructure Investment Corporation, FECON 
Foundation and Underground Construction Corporation 
and Transportation Infrastructure Construction Head 
Company 1. FCC is the contractor of the project “23km 
Highway No.1 of Phu Ly-Ha Nam Crossover” and the 
project “surface enhancement for Highway No.1 at 
Km215+775 to Km235+885. This is one of the key 
infrastructure projects of the country performed under 
BOT model (Build-Operate -Transfer). The project was 
completed ahead the schedule and was commenced its 
toll collection since November 2016. With a long-term 
vision in infrastructure industry, Coteccons is continuing 
our investment in other potential infrastructure projects 
in Ho Chi Minh and the North of Vietnam. 

In 2016, Coteccons successfully carried out our private 
placement for strategic shareholders with the starting 
price at 153.520 VND/share, raising VND 1,762 billion. As 
a result of a great trust on not only Coteccons’ long-term 
vision but also on our transparent management system, 

expenses on Investment In 2016

Expenses 
(VND billion)

Parent Company Unicons

2015 2016 2015  2016 

Building & structures 22,97 9,17 13,00  3,24 

Equipment & machine  144,94  139,06  37,00  37,33 

Transportation method (cars)  3,98  4,84  4,00  -

Instruments & tools for management  4,68  3,75  1,30  0,50 

Construction tool and instrument purchases  208,29  156,79 96,00  87,49 

Investment in real estate  43,19  -   -  -

Investment in bonds/shares of other companies - 150,00   -  -

Investment in affiliates and subsidiaries  -   42,00  -  -

Software  1,30  1,50  -  -

TOTAL  429,35  507,11  151,30  128,56 
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 » The Board of Management sets specific business targets of the year 
for each department. Construction Division Director/ Project Director/ 
Head of Department/Board/Unit must develop corresponding action 
plans to achieve assigned targets and objectives. At the same time, 
control measures must be applied to achieve the general business 
plan of the Company. In the execution process, Construction Division 
Director/ Project Director/ Head of Department/Board/Unit must 
perform quarterly evaluation in a comparison with the Company’s 
business plan of the year to either promptly adjust or change to more 
suitable management approaches to obtain all the proposed objectives 
in 2017.

 » In an accordance with directions of the Board of Directors, in 2017, 
Coteccons shall continue to focus on investment expansion, promoting 
partnerships with potential partners who are capable of medium and 
large projects, while utilizing available resources for office building 
projects, to create stable and sustainable earnings for Coteccons. 
Besides, Coteccons shall continue to leverage the company’s advantage 
as a contractor to cooperate with investors in projects where Coteccons 
is a general contractor.

 » In the year of 2017, Coteccons shall continue to focus on Research 
and Development (R&D) investment, promoting comprehensive 
technology solutions ranging from construction methods, construction 
equipment to construction material selection and product design to 
best meet market demands, resulting in a high level of productivity for 
all Coteccons’ projects.

 » In 2017, Coteccons shall continue to improve the Design and Build 
Model by intensively investing in manpower and facilities to develop a 
Design Management Center. Coteccons shall enhance the cooperation 
between the Design Management Center with Technical Division, 
Construction and Erection Division, MEP Division, Division of Commerce 
and designing partners to create high-quality design and construction 
products which satisfy all requirements of Investors and the market. 
Furthermore, research and application of BIM in construction 
management model shall be implemented extensively for all D&B 
projects.

 » With the initial success in the completion of Phu Ly – Ha Nam 
infrastructure project in 2016 on schedule and of high quality, Coteccons’ 
infrastructure sector has actually entered a developing stage. Based on 
valuable experience gaining from the initial project combined with the 
Company’s financial advantage, Coteccons shall continue to identify 
more investment opportunities and perform other infrastructure 
projects both in the South and in the North of Viet Nam.

 » The Investment Board established in 2016 starts to operate more stably. 
In 2017, the Investment Board, the Finance Board, the Board of Financial 
Supervision, the Finance Accounting Department will continue to 
enhance their roles in evaluating and controlling financial risk for the 
Company and all construction and investment projects.

Aiming at a successful fulfilment of all objectives proposed by 
the Board of Directors in 2017, the Board of management focuses 
on the implementation of the below-mentioned management 
practices:

witH tHe earnings at tHe end 
of 2016, coteccons sHall 

concentrate tHe financial 
resoUrce into 3 Major 
investMent cHannels:

invest in sUPPlies and eqUiPMent sUcH 
as HigH-rise cranes to facilitate large 

Projects like landMark 81 and otHer HigH-
rise bUilding Projects of tHe fUtUre.

condUct researcHes on M&a oPPortUnities 
witH certain coMPanies to enclose and 

eXPand coteccons’ valUe cHain.

consider to occasionally invest  
in real estate.

1

2

3

 » Coteccons shall continue to take “innovation” as its maxim in all-level management 
activities of the Board of Management and Functional Departments. Coteccons 
shall also promote the operation of System Department and the Board of Internal 
Control to promptly address problems related to administrative management 
and task fulfilment among departments so as to alleviate adverse impacts on 
productivity and work progress of Divisions, Departments and Construction Sites.

 » Coteccons shall review and complete all regulations, and operation processes, 
and further refine the Company’s organizational structure to meet the operation 
requirements of a large-scale cooperation. Coteccons shall update and upgrade 
all software applications and IT solutions facilitating document and data transfer 
among Departments and Divisions to promote better productivity, higher accuracy 
and swifter task achievement.

 » Coteccons shall continue to focus on training and improving professional skills for 
engineers, architects and all executives so that they can successfully perform their 
specialized tasks. Through activities of the Club for Potential Leaders, Coteccons 
shall continue to educate and develop a team of potential managers to prepare a 
capable pool of talents for the upcoming business expansion of the company.

 » Human resource operations shall be promoted, including: recruiting new 
employees to meet the Company’s need for manpower both in quantity and quality; 
cooperating with universities to approach and recruit high-quality workforce; 
completing a suitable and practical appraisal process to motivate staff morale.

 » Conducting good practices in occupational safety, environmental protection, and 
corporate social responsibilities, and caretaking on both spiritual and physical lives 
of all employees…are being emphasized and improved continually to maintain the 
sustainable development of Coteccons.

fUrtHer refine tHe coMPany’s 
organizational strUctUre 
to Meet tHe oPeration 
reqUireMents of a 
large-scale cooPeration.

ManageMent orientation 2017

vinhomes central Park
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DesIgn mAnAgement 
center

rePort on tHe iMProveMent of dePartMents/divisions
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to obtain tHe acHieveMent in 2016 as analysed above, all dePartMents and 
constrUction sites were United, and deterMined to realize and overcoMe new 
cHallenges Under tHe orientation and leadersHiP of tHe board of ManageMent. Many 
dePartMents froM office to constrUction sites Have Made iMPortant iMProveMent 
and contribUtion to Maintain tHe effectiveness in tHe oPeration for tHe coMPany, 
naMely finisHing More coMPlicated tasks, decreasing tHe constrUction tiMe, 
saving costs, iMProving occUPational safety, enHancing tHe iMage and qUality of 
eacH Project. tHat innovation activities Have always been Mentioned by tHe board 
of ManageMent in every regUlar Meeting and in eacH direction is tHe Motivation for 
all coteccons’ eMPloyees.

to facilitate tHe growtH in tHe scale 
and nUMber of tHese Projects, 
tHe reforM of tHe organizational 
strUctUre of tHe design ManageMent 
center was of tHe essence. tHe board 
of ManageMent aPPointed a dePUty 
director of tHe design ManageMent 
center to strengtHen tHe control of 
tHese Projects, to take cHarge of tHe 
division of coMMerce and to iMProve 
tHe systeM, tHereby increasing tHe 
effectiveness of d&b Projects. tHe 
addition of HigH qUality Personnel 
froM tHe coMPany’s affilates, and 
new recrUits froM faMoUs doMestic 
and overseas design coMPanies Has 
Meet a Part of cUrrent job deMand 
at tHe design ManageMent center.

With its constant development and 
growth, the BIM Department has 
also claimed its separation from the 
Design Management Center, and 
contributed to changes in the Board 
of Management and coordination 
not only in Design & Build projects 
but also in other activities. This has 
enabled BIM to become flexible and 
pro-active, which acts as momentum 
for BIM Department to progress 
further to a new level.

Over the last year, the number of new 
investors actively asking Coteccons 
about Design & Build projects increased 
significantly. The Internal Concept 
Design Team of Design Management 
Center was established under the 
direction of the General Director and 

in 2016, design & bUild Projects 
continUed to grow iMPressively 
in nUMber and scale. coteccons 
design & bUild Has becoMe an 
endorsed and renowned brand in 
tHe Market. 

the Deputy General Director in charge 
of design. The Concept Design Team 
has demonstrated the capacity of no 
inferiority to any leading domestic 
and overseas design companies. 
The designs of Dragon Bay View, 
Panorama, Preche... received positive 
feedbacks from investors, with many 
of these projects being put forth. The 
proactiveness of an Internal Design 
Team, coupled with the Business Board, 
the Investment Board has resulted 
in an effective, flexible and proactive 
access for the Company’s Design & 
Build projects to new investors. In 
the coming years, this model will be 
promoted, supplemented, adjusted, 
and improved continuously to bring 
about higher and higher efficiency.

With the constant increase in terms 
of quantity, scale and revenue of all 
projects, the Design Management 
Center has been continuously 
changing and improving. The first 
thing worth mentioning was the 
design quality management system. 
Standardized designs, details and 
specifications were recompiled into 
manuals and documents to guide the 
leadings, Consultants, Departments/ 
Divisions and Construction Sites in 
the design, the Board of Management 
and the cooperation with the Center. 
Quality management system, form 
system, ISO system, and other actitivies 
related to inspection, controlling and 
reporting have been adjusted and 
standardized accordingly. As a result, 

the leading architects and the leading 
experts have been more proactive 
in the managing, inspecting, and 
reporting, thereby creating more 
convenience for the inspection 
activities of the Board of Management. 
Besides, the coordination process 
in Design & Build projects between 
Design Management Center and 
Project Directors, Project Managers 
and Project Management Teams has 
also been completed and thoroughly 
discussed with Project Managers, 
which promoted the coordination 
between parties in a more skilfull, 
clever and flexible manner.

The Design Management Center also 
actively contacted and looked for 
some well-established and renowed 
design partners around the world, 
such as WATG, Broadway Malan, yasui 
Sekkei, etc.

With the new target of raising the 
proportion of revenue earned from 
Design & Build projects and raising 
the design capability of Coteccons 
to a new level, in 2016, the Design 
Management Center participated into 
many large projects such as: The Gold 
View, Diamond Lotus, The Millenium, 
Diamond Island, D’ Capitale, Everrich 
Infinity, First Team, Brotex, etc. The 
Center will continue to improve, 
upgrade and affirm the Design & Build 
brand value of Coteccons, thereby 
contributing more and more to the 
Company.
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BIm DepArtment (BuIlDIng InFormAtIon moDelIng)

goldenview Project
In the Goldview project, BIM Departmen 
implemented the Goldview project with the goal 
of bringing as many applications as possible to 
the construction site by using the 3D BIM model 
created by the Tekla, Revit software. BIM Departmen 
defined the scope of BIM application, as well as the 
best approach to apply into and support for the 
construction, and especially to compare the model 
and the actual construction.

tHe landMark 81 Project
The Landmark 81 project marked the maturity of 
the BIM Departmen when the Department assisted 
the Project Management Team in assessing the 
difficulty of the project completion from the 
fundament to the beam section. At the Landmark 
project, for the firt time, the BIM Departmen offered 
its full-time participation with the construction site, 
bringing a certain degree of effectiveness and 
efficiency to the project.

diaMond island Project
BIM Departmen also joined the Design 
Management Center and the Project Management 
Team in the implementation of the Design & Build 
projects. Especially, at the Diamond Island project, 
BIM Departmen extended the participation of 
supervising staff in construction sites, to instruct 
and control the using of the 3D BIM model and 
the extraction of construction drawings and 
the volume of structural, architectural and MEP 
components.

diaMond lotUs Project
In the Diamond Lotus project, the above 
coordination between Departements/Divisions 
helped the project’s BIM model to be up-to-date, 
be consitently accurate, and thereby be of great 
importance in the coordination between between 
the Design Management Center and the Project 
Management Team. Also, a new point in this 
project was the involvement of subcontractors in 
the BIM model during the construction.

 
BIM Department will bring value in design quality control through the combination  

of Archichecture – Structural Engineering - MEP, using the design model to coordinate the construction  
or to create construction model, and control the work.

BIM Department won the third prize in the Tekla BIM Award ASEAN with  
the Goldview project, which was considered to be an impressive project because 

it used a lot of practical applications in design and construction.

 
BIM Department’s activities marked the Company’s practical application 
of BIM technology, which was proven to be an effective way to support 

design and construction projects.

a nUMber of tyPical Projects  
of biM dePartMent in 2016



DIvIsIon oF commerce

witH tHe rePUtation of tHe coMPany and tHe Prestige of 
tHe board of ManageMent, tHe bidding activities of tHe 
Past year acHieved HigH efficiency. Most were qUoting 
and negotiations, wHile otHers were Projects awaded 
by investors in coMPetitive bids. also, qUoting for d&b 
was sHortened in tiMe yet enHanced in accUracy.

Division of Commerce consists of the two departments of 
Tender Department and Cost and Contract Management 
Department and cost control department. Last year, 

Some hightlights of the Tender Department were:

 » Reaching the contracted turnover of VND 29,000 
billion, successfully achieving targets set in the 2016 
business plan

 » Rotating 20-50% of senior personnel to other 
departments of the Company and recruiting new 
staff to train and replace the rotation.

 » Building up a team of passionate and enthusiastic 
personnel.

 » Shortening the quoting period for Design & Build 
projects but still ensuring the quotations’ accuracy of 
over 90%.

Some hightlights of the Contract and Cost Control 
Department were:

 » Controlling rigorously all project costs, with the total 
cost controlled being estimated at over VND 17.000 
million, helping to increase the efficiency of projects 
after bidding. 

 » Reducing costs with the total purchase value 
of imported goods being over VND 300 billion, 
equivalent to an average decrease of 6% compared 
to domestic purchases

 » Negotiating purchases made in large quantities 
to gain better discount and price reduction for the 
Company

 » Training skilled specialists to have good cost 
management expertise, providing the Company’s 
affilates with qualified labour force.

technIcAl DIvIsIon

Controled the measure, process 
and quality of construction

With the volume of nearly 50 
projects which were deployed 
simultaneously from the North to 
the South of Viet Nam, the Technical 
Division successfully completed the 
target of controlling and preventing 
technical incidents, which was set by 
the Board of Management, through 
boosting the supporting role of the 
Office, closely coordinating with all 
Project Management Teams, timely 
consulting technical solutions, 
controlling construction process, 
and optimizing human resources 
and construction time.

Besides, with a team of experienced 
and skilful experts, the Technical 
Division confidently persuaded 
investors, consulted complex 
construction measures and 
contributed to the successful 
completion or bid-winning of many 
mega projects such as The One 
(with 6 basements), Landmark 81 
(which had large block fundament, 
accelerating tower blocks methods, 
erecting of the reinforced concrete), 
Sala Shopping Center (with 4 
basements), D’ Capital – Ha Noi…

tHe tecHnical division was establisHed 
at tHe beginning of 2016 and Has grown 
strongly into two fUnctional dePartMents, 
naMely finisHing and MeP dePartMent– MeP 
dePartMent. tHe division’s Main dUties are 
consUlting and controlling tHe qUality 
of coteccons Projects, ensUring tHe 100% 
coMPliance all constrUction sites witH 
tHe MetHod and ProcedUre of tHe coMPany, 
Preventing any serioUs incident, and 
UltiMately Maintaining tHe Prestige of tHe 
coMPany.

Strongly reformed construction 
process, improved productivity 
and quality

The Finishing – MEP Department 
aimed at training and improving 
the internal quality, recruiting high 
quality personnel, coordinating and 
strictly controlling the construction 
process in all projects in order to 
achieve the highest completion 
quality.

Besides, the Research and Development 
Department (R&D) which was 
established directly under the Technical 
Division, has gradually made use of 
new construction tools, machines, and 
materials, thereby confirming Coteccons’ 
strong determination to reform the 
finishing quality of the Company’s 
products.

The Division also improved the 
construction methods to meet the 
actual demand of construction sites, 
created the coordination procedures 
between Construction and MEP, 
between mechanised operations and 
manual work, thereby reducing the time 
wasted, improving the productivity of 
workers, and increasing the efficiency of 
Project Management Teams.

Internal training

Having a sound technical knowledge 
and professional skills, the Technical 
Division is the focal point in technical 
training under direction of Board of 
Management. This group has already 
focused on the following tasks:
 » Gathering and systematizing 

the knowledge and experience; 
creating methodical and 
professional training materials, 
covering subjects of all levels, 
from basic to advanced, for 
various kinds of staff from 
workers to supervisors; and 
applying visual aids in training.

 » Organizing advanced training 
courses in the office or on each 
construction site for Project 
Management Teams.

 » Organizing presentations and 
discussion to solicit ideas on 
new techniques and special 
construction methods.

 » Building up model construction 
sites in order to be introduced 
to customers, partners and to 
be used for training workers 
on practical operation on 
construction sites.

Together with the outstanding 
growth of the company in 2016, 
the Technical Division has always 
been improving its system and 
activities. In addition to its main 
function of taking charge of 
technical issues, The Division has 

The achievements that the Technical Division gained in 2016 were as follows:

also established a Training Unit, 
a Research and Development 
Department (R&D), etc. At the same 
time, it is also preparing to establish 
an MEP Department operating 
independently of the MEP Division of 
the company. The main target of this 

board is to review and timely detect 
errors in the coordination between 
Structure – Finishing – MEP, thereby 
setting up more standardized and 
stricter construction processes to 
reduce waste and ensure the best 
quality of Coteccons’ products. 

both departments worked effectively and contributed 
markedly to the overall success of the company. Contract 
and cost control activities of the whole company brought 
in condiderable cost-saving effects. The department had 
good control and did not let any risk arise from any terms 
and comditions. Besides, the proportion of purchases 
made in large quantity increased gradually for the 
Company to gain more advantages over negotiations. 
The survey of advantageous markets, which was 
implemented effectively, also helped the purchasing 
department find good sources of imported goods with 
competitive prices, thereby bringing better efficiency.
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mep DIvIsIon

Oragnizational structure

In order to meet the growing demand from the Company, MEP Division 
established some functional departments, including: BIM Department 
and MEP Technical Unit under Construction Management Department, 

Bidding Price Control Unit and D&B Projects Control Unit under MEP Tender 
Department. These Units are managed by experienced and dedicated 
management team to support and make the operation of MEP Division more 
and more professional.

BIM Department and MEP Technical Unit were established to not only assist 
construction sites in training and developing the workforce, but also support 
the MEP Division to control the construction techniques on construction sites, 
to give critical aguments in design, and provide expert advice for the MEP 
Tender Department.

In addition, the MEP Technical Unit will coordinate with the Finishing – 
MEP Department to study new techniques and give advice on improving 
construction method as well as construction process in order to reduce costs, 
ensure and improve the construction quality.

With the consistent development of projects both in quantity and scale, 
the Bidding Price Control Unit was established to control the unifomity and 
transparency of the bidding price among the projects.

Brand development

With the achievement of 2016 as a 
firm foundation, in 2017, the MEP 
Division will expand and further 
market the MEP construction to 
affirm the position of the Division in 
particular and Coteccons in general. 
Furthermore, the MEP Division will 
be developed into a private brand 
to be widely promoted in both 
domestic and foreign construction 
market.

togetHer witH tHe oUtstanding growtH of coteccons in 2016, tHe MeP division Has Made great 
contribUtion to tHe overall sUccess of coMPany witH tHe tUrnover of over vnd 3,000 billion and 
bid valUe of vnd 6,000 billion. revenUe earned by MeP division in 2016 sUrPassed tHat of otHers in 
tHe Market. witH a strong and eXPerienced ManageMent teaM, tHe MeP division also contribUted to 
tHe sUccess of coMPany tHroUgH design and bUild Projects,  witH its ParticiPation in all stages 
ranging froM tHe design, tHe solUtion-finding to tHe MeP constrUction of tHe Projects.

In 2016, the Board of Internal Control was very pro-active and gained the following desirable results:

Improve the organizational structure and 
operational processes

Since mid-2016, in accordance with the direction of the 
Board of Management, the Board of Internal Control 
was established and gradually promoted. At first, 

although having only a humble number of employees, 
mainly part-time ones, the Board of Internal Control still 
successfully performed all the assigned tasks. In the spirit 
of constantly learning and improving the knowledge of 
this particular field, the Unit’s members have undergone 
methodical training courses on the internal control 
system of Coso, which was trained by Deloitte. The Unit 
has gradually improved its operation and orgainzational 
structure with an aim to specialize its operation and 
accelerate the process in order to match with the rapid 
development of the Company.

Results

With the goal that all departments, divisions and project 
management teams are internally controlled at least once 
a year, the Board of Internal Control continuously improves 
its operation, reducing the internal controlling time but 
still achieving its goals. 

Outstanding shortcomings, potential risks in management, 
and recommendations for system improvement were 
clearly revealed in the Internal Control. Based on the 
controlling results, each deparment adjusted and 
improved its own operation, which then received better 
evaluation on efficiency. Not only the departments and 
divisions but the Project Management Teams were also 
internally controlled to improve the operational efficiency, 
protecting the Company against potential risks in terms of 
finance, legislation, resources, etc.

With reference to the results achieved, the Board of 
Internal Control made timely recommendations for the 
Board of Management to select effective construction 
management models, to control and limit risks in the 
general operation of the Company.

goals

After each round of internal control, monitoring and 
reporting on the implementation of the recommendations 
made by the Internal Control for each of the unit needs 
to receive more serious concern and systematically 
recorded to build a better "Quality Manual" for the 
Board of Internal Control. Simultaneously, the Board of 
Internal Control should carry out research on establishing 
regulations on handling detected breaches, and make 
recommendation on the introduction of such regulations, 
and ultimately ensure all departments’ compliance with 
recommendations made by the Board of Internal Control.

A much more ambitious goal should be closely 
coordinating with affilates’ Board of Internal Control, 
synchronizing control regulations, running on a unified 
ticket, jointly internal controlling the implementation of 
the shared project, and ultimately ensuring consistency 
throughout the Coteccons Group. When assigned, the 
Board of Internal Control shall cooperate with the relevant 
functional departments to implement the control of 
bigger targets.

For the Company to develop sustainably, the goals set 
by the Board of Management is to build Coteccons into 
a corporation which is well-controlled in environment 
yet free and streamlined (within its own framework) in 
operation.

BoArD oF InternAl control

tHe coMPany’s growtH entails tHe need 
for More effective internal control. 
it is increasingly essential for 
coteccons to coMPly witH tHe cUrrent 
bodies of laws and regUlations issUed 
by tHe governMent as well as its 
own Policies to Prevent accidental 
or deliberate Mistakes, ensUring tHe 
consistency in Managing its entire 
oPeration as well as eacH of tHe 
affiliates. in ligHt of tHe sitUation, 
tHe board of internal control was 
establisHed and ProMoted.
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system AnD Iso DepArtment

forMerly a Part of tHe adMinistration dePartMent tHe iso dePartMent is resPonsible for 
establisHing and Maintaining tHe iso 9001: 2008 ManageMent systeM. in order to Meet tHe 
reqUireMents of sUstainable develoPMent for tHe years to coMe, tHe board Has been UPgraded in 
qUality and qUantity to iMPleMent tHe iso 9001: 2015 ManageMent systeM effectively.

In order to maintain a rapid growth and sustainable development of the Company, the System Board 
has been focusing on the following tasks:

consUlt tHe board of ManageMent on tHe iMProveMent of tHe organizational strUctUre of 
fUnctional dePartMents.

Besides the ISO 9001: 2015, ISO 14001: 2015, OHSAS 18001: 2007 certification awared to the Company by 
QMS in Australia on june 14, 2016, the upgradation of the System Board is also the premise guaranteeing 
the comprehensive and continuous improvement of the Company’s PDCA management system.

occupAtIonAl sAFety BoArD

The personnel for the control of occupational safety and hygiene (OSH) has been developed both in quantity and 
quality, constantly trained internally as well as by the experts, both in Viet Nam and overseas, to improve the skills of 
guiding, controlling, assessing and identifying occupational safety hazards.

In order to control the occupational safety of more than 70,000 workers at the same time in Coteccons’ projects, the 
Coteccons The Occupational Safety Board, in 2016, made drastic and vigorous changes in the following tasks:

tHe occUPational safety board Has 
also Made enorMoUs iMProveMents 
to Meet tHe reqUireMents set by 
tHe board of ManageMent, tHereby 
contribUting to tHe affirMation of 
coteccons’ brand, and Providing 
a safe working environMent for 
workers over tHe Past year.

Site rating

 » The Occupational Safety Board has issued regulations 
on periodic safety audit and achieved monthly 
implementation for all projects. The evaluation 
form requires a site to have a specific control plan 
for occupational safety and sanitation in accordance 
with Coteccons standards if that site wants to fully 
organize its construction activities. The results of the 
monthly evaluation will be reported to the Board 
of Management and reviewed quarterly to decide 
on excellent sites, thereby creating the effect of 
competing and learning about how to organize 
construction activities among sites.

 » In addition to the projects that Coteccons is directly 
responsible for, Coteccons’ projects assigned to its 
affiliates must also comply with the above rating 
system to ensure uniform standards of safety 
throughout the Group. A professional image with 
distinct occupational safety of Coteccons is proven 
in most construction sites, creating peace of mind for 
employees, investors and consumers when paying 
visits to these sites. 

Human Resources and Occupational Safety 
management System.

 » The personnel of The Occupational Safety Board is 
supplemented and nearly double that of last year 
(from 11 to 19). Individual orientation is clear, ensuring 
career development and promotion of skills.

 » To create a team with a wide variety of professional 
capabilities, the Board has enhanced significantly 
internal training, by combining old and new factors 
and diversifying training contents across different 
professions.

 » The system of occupational safety and hygiene has 
been upgraded, promulgated and disseminated to 
100% of sites in forms of safety handbook, manual 
on operating occupational safety system, reward and 
punishment regulations.

 » In accordance with the proposal of the Occupational 
Safety Board, the Company has policies to provide 
support for construction teams with full-time and 
part-time safety staff, recruit new personnel and 
improve the effective operation of the Occupational 
Safety Board on all sites.

 » Prior to construction, the Safety Board collaborates 
with the Management Teams at construction sites to 
control, evaluate and analyze risks.

 » All workers have to perform health check and attend 
daily/weekly safety trainings.

1

2

3

4

5

review tHe entire bUsiness Process to fUlly recognize any systeMic risks tHat May arise wHen 
tHe constrUction oUtPUt continUoUsly Hits record, and UltiMately to devise sUitable controlling 
MeasUres.

coordinate witH dePartMents / divisions to iMProve tHe ProcedUres and cooPeration ProcedUres 
to sHorten tHe Processing tiMe, and enHance tHe accoUntability of eacH title tHroUgHoUt tHe 
board of ManageMent systeM of tHe coMPany.

accelerate tHe aPPlication of inforMation tecHnology into tHe control of internal ManageMent 
docUMents and oPeration systeMs.

focUs on training staff and new Managers in awareness aboUt bUilding, establisHing and aPPlying 
tHe systeM in accordance witH tHe core PrinciPles of iso 9001: 2015.
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occupAtIonAl sAFety BoArD (contInueD)

Improve environmental sanitation

The Occupational Safety Board aims at building 
a professional, safe and hygienic working 
environment for all employees at Coteccons, 

minimizing the negative impacts on the environment 
through prevention of pollution and proper waste 
management.

The Occupational Safety Board promulgates rules and 
regulations to strictly prevent activities which put its staff 
in danger, or harm the environment.

Coteccons always seeks to classify and recycle waste 
in all projects, in collaboration with an independent 
committee that works on reducing waste disposal and 
considers such practice as a critical factor to reduce costs 
for all projects. At the same time, the Company focuses 
on the use of skilled workers, who get the work right on 
the first time, to reduce unnecessary waste of resources.

The main objective is to comply with the regulations on 
safety, health and environment of Vietnamese law.

Work Safety Action Plan

Continuing to bring into play the strength and 
continuous improvement to develop the safety 
control system, the Occupational Safety Board 

will carry out a series of tasks to further improve the 
occupational safety at Coteccons. The Board will focus 
on: conducting internal training, making contingency 
plans, rotating and replacing personnel, improving 
worker training system and worker supervising system; 
deploying the procedure for grading and issuing 
specialized certificates after training; continuously 
updating the document system of the Occupational 
Safety Board; promoting the coordination, the control, 
and the compliance with the Steering Board and relevant 
Departments/ Divisions; and analyzing and establishing 
risk prevention in occupational safety.

The Occupational Safety Board is responsible for 
advising, compiling, submitting, and promulgating 
occupational safety and hygiene directives to the 
Board of Management, to ensure that work at the sites 
is continuously alerted, that potential risks in practical 
construction are comprehensively identified, and that 
timely intervention is made at the highest level, with the 
aim of bringing safety to each of the Company's sites.

The Occupational Safety Board cooperates with the Human Resource Department to train new staff 
for the Company, and in conjunction with the personnel assessment of the projects, timely equip 
inexperienced supervisors with occupational safety knowledge.

The Safety Board regularly communicates with the Construction Technology Management Department, 
Equipment and Material Department on the compliance of construction units with occupational safety in 
each project to make timely adjustments in managing occupational safety.

Currently, the Safety Board is working closely with the Security Board, the Human Resource Management 
Department, the IT Department, the Department of Building and Developing Construction workforce to 
implement the coding system of the Company’s personnel and equipment management. This will entail 
greater control of people and equipment in projects and shorten the time needed. The program is to be 
introduced in the second quarter of 2017.

In addition, the Occupational Safety Board works in greater collaboration with those of Coteccons Group’s 
affiliates, utilizing the resources and systems of the parties, and enhancing the effectiveness of safety 
management on the Group’s sites.

The Safety Board also connects with Department of Building and Developing Construction workforce, to 
monitor workers, and update on the progress of occupational safety training for workers in every team.

Strengthen coordination with other departments in occupational safety

occUPational 
safety board

site

Hr  
dePartMent

workforce 
develoPMent 
dePartMent

tecHnical  
division

secUrity 
dePartMent

eqUiPMent 
dePartMent

it  
dePartMent
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InterIor BoArD

In all stages from design to 
construction. Duc Viet Resort and 
Masteri Thao Dien are just some 

of the examples. Also, the Interior 
Board did complete model homes of 
different projects, helping Investors 
boost sales, bringing added value 
for customers, and laying the very 
first foundation for the Coteccons 
Group’s brand name in interior 
decoration.

In addition to the successful 
implementation of different projects, 
the Board succeeded in building a 
network of subcontractors, suppliers 
and major design partners to 
complete the value chain of D&B 
projects of Coteccons, creating 
high-quality construction works of 
great practical use and outstanding 
aesthetic value.

mAterIAl – eQuIpment DepArtment

Many of the qualified and 
experienced personnel 
from the sites have been 

deployed and appointed to be new 
mangers of construction equipment, 
providing comprehensive services 
for construction sites, inclusive of 
designing construction measures, 
providing construction equipment, 
and such work as operating, 
repairing, maintaining and 
controlling the safe and effective use 
of these equipment.

In addition to improving the Board 
of Management system, in 2016, 
a series of modern machinery 
and equipment has been bought, 
especially the equipment for the 
"mega project of Landmark 81” with 
some the examples being tower 
cranes which can load up to 24 

tonnes imported from France, the 
high-speed hoist from Sweden, 
sliding formwork from Korea, sliding 
scaffolding form German. It can be 
said that Landmark 81 project has 
used the most modern equipment 
used in European countries and a 
few developed Asian countries such 
as Korea and japan.

With no exception to Landmark 81, 
the image of all construction sites 
throughout Viet Nam also became 
more professional. In order to speed 
up the process, reduce labor and 
save costs, traditional construction 
technologies are gradually replaced 
by new technologies; for example, 
H traditional scaffolding is gradually 
replaced by sliding scaffolding, 
Coma supporting post is gradually 
replaced by a lighter Ringlock 

establisHed in 2015, after nearly two years of oPeration, tHe interior board Has 
effectively ParticiPated in d&b Projects of coteccons.

sUcceeding 2015, 2016 is a year of renovation and innovation in coteccons’ constrUction 
eqUiPMent. innovation work started witH screening and adding More Personnel to tHe 
coMPany's eqUiPMent ManageMent systeM. 

system, aluminum formworks 
are used 100% on all sites. As a 
result, the construction progress 
is accelerated, with 4-5 days per 
floor, which plays a significant role 
in establishing the Company’s 
leading position and enhancing the 
reputation of Coteccons brand in 
the construction market.

In addition to investment in 
machinery, investment management 
activities also play an important 
role. In 2016, the exploitation and 
rotation of construction equipment 
in a logical way and finding good 
equipment rental partners have 
helped the Company make the 
best use of available equipment 
resources and increase the efficiency 
of its investment.

Besides, in the past year, the Interior 
Board also paid great attention to 
its workforce development. From 
the initial team of more than 10 
people, the current number of staff 
has reached 40, 30% of whom were 
trained abroad and the others have 
experienced working at Coteccons 
or at large domestic and overseas 
furniture companies. 

In addition to recruiting, short 
courses and internal training 
are regularly organized so that 
members of the Interior Board 
have the opportunity to develop 
themselves. The purpose of 
workforce development is to 
create sufficient human capital 
both in quality and quantity for the 
Company’s expansion in the years 
to come.

and cooPerated witH tHe 
design ManageMent center 

to sUccessfUlly iMPleMent 
tHe constrUction of resorts, 

aPartMent bUildings, etc.

rePort on tHe iMProveMent of dePartMents/divisions (continUed)
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DepArtment oF BuIlDIng AnD DevelopIng constructIon worKForce

Construction workforce training and 
development

Department of Building and Developing 
Construction workforce shall: Recruit new 
construction workforce, in which prioritizes 
scalable and capable Construction teams 
and Sub-contractors for large projects. Orient, 
support, develop and upgrade Coteccons’ 
available close-knit Construction teams into 
professional Sub-contractors who are capable 
of undertaking larger projects and taking full 
charge of some certain projects. Design policies 
to facilitate Coteccons’ construction workforce’s 
to improve their capability and to expand into a 
larger scale. Focus on sharing information about 
Coteccons’ corporate culture to all Construction 
workforce to fertilize their best engagement and 
productivity. Liaises with Departments in charge 
of training and organization to deliver trainings 
to improve specialized knowledge about labor 
safety, technology, finance, accounting and 
management for individuals in construction 
teams (Project Manager, Accountant, Engineers).

In 2017, acknowledging that securing an 
adequate construction workforce for all projects 
is  a major objective, Department of Building 
and Developing Construction workforce 
will continue its cooperation with  Project 
Management Teams and Construction teams 
to ensure timely execution for all business plans 
presented by the Board of Directors.

Planning and Consolidating

Department of Building and Developing 
Construction workforce shall: Perform 
supervision and gives updates about personnel 
information for potential projects to orient the 
general arrangement amongst Suppliers, Sub-
contractors, and Construction teams. Design 
construction workforce planning both on 
geographical basis and on project type basis 
to improve the efficiency in coordinating and 
providing immediate and sufficient workforce 
upon any sites’ requirements.

coteccons’ dePartMent of bUilding and develoPing constrUction workforce rePresents coteccons in constrUcting and 
develoPing new workforce to add into tHe coMPany’s Personnel systeM, forMing a stable and sUstainable constrUction 
workforce available for every ProPosed bUsiness Plan.

Problem Solving and Improvement in Workforce Development

Department of Building and Developing Construction workforce delivers 
regular talks with the construction workforce to be able to provide 
immediate supports, allowing them to focus on the construction 
work and to satisfy all requirements of the Project Management team. 
sets up communication channels to quickly address reasonably 
all disagreements between construction workforce and Project 
Management Team as well as different Divisions/Departments in the 
company. Enhances two-way communication between the Board of 
Management and the construction workforce, ensuring the construction 
workforce understands and strictly follows new policies and strategies, 
and thus implements proper adjustments to successfully fulfil all the 
assigned tasks. yearly holds Construction and Workforce Development 
Meeting to collect constructive ideas and to strengthen partnerships 
between Coteccons and the Suppliers, the Sub-Contractors, and the 
Construction team.

Department of Building and Developing Construction workforce 
continually improves workforce-related policies in all aspects, with an 
emphasis on supporting safety trainings, organizing skill competitions, 
improving living and working conditions, providing holiday supports, 
etc. in order to develop an attractive personnel policy, providing the best 
conditions for all individuals partaking and cooperating with Coteccons.

InFormAtIon technology DepArtment

Intensive investment in information 
technology infrastructure and graphic design 
applications, including the application of 

information technology in Coteccons’ BIM 
and Design activities, has been changing 
Coteccons’ management practices. Moreover, 
investment in copyright software has helped 
Coteccons not only contribute to a healthy 
competitive market, create highly reliable 
designs but also reinforce the Company’s 
prestige with Investors and international 
customers. 

Additionally, Coteccons’ investment has 
been concentrated on other systems such 
as: Information Security Control System, 
Resource Management System, and Archive 
Management and Operation System. 
Upgrades in the archive system has yielded 
many values for the Company’s management 
activities, securing information and optimally 
leveraging Coteccons’ competitive edge in the 
market.

acknowledging tHe iMPortance of inforMation ManageMent and tHe effective aPPlication 
of inforMation tecHnology in bUsiness, tHe board of ManageMent decided to establisH 
inforMation tecHnology dePartMent, sPlit froM a Part of tHe adMinistration dePartMent. 

at coteccons, eMPloyees Have 
always been granted access into 
tHe latest tecHonologies so tHat 
tHey can fUlly leverage tHeir 
caPabilities to realize assigned 
objectives and strategies.

in 2017, inforMation tecHnology 
dePartMent collaborates witH 
tecHnical division, safety board, 
HUMan resoUrce ManageMent to 
develoP e-learning PrograM.

rePort on tHe iMProveMent of dePartMents/divisions (continUed)
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1a HigHway Project - PHU ly Ha naM

VISION
Commencing from the investment and construction project of the 
section of National Highway 1A avoiding Phu Ly City in Ha Nam province, 
Coteccons and FCC have showned great capabilities in managing, 
investing and promoting such project professionally via simultaneously 
executing all 05 bidding packages to be completed 6 months ahead 
of schedule while quality control authorities gave good comments on 
construction quality. Coteccons’ permanent advantages in every field 
that we participate in result from great vision, strong commitment, 
high conscientiousness and non-stop creativity.

rePort of board of directors on tHe coMPany’s oPeration
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rePort of tHe board of directors

after a great sUccess year of 2015, coteccons continUed to Maintain oUr strong growtH in 2016 by claiMing 
varioUs new records. tHe solid develoPMent of tHe coMPany was indicated by not only qUantitative figUres 
bUt also qUalitative valUes inclUding tHe rePUtation, eXPerience, and robUstness of a leading constrUction 
firM. witH coteccons’ being increasingly Proactive in design and bUild (d&b) Model witH varioUs new Projects, 
wining tHe bid for tHe general contractor of tHe landMark 81 against otHer renowned international rivals, and 
sUccessfUlly coMPleting oUr Private PlaceMent for a total of aPProXiMately vnd 1,762 billion, tHe coMPany Has 
definitely set a strong foUndation stone for a lasting and sUstainable develoPMent in tHe fUtUre. 

1,422
Profit after taX 

attribUtable to Parent coMPany’s sHareHolders 

tHe 2016 annUal general Meeting 
set a variety of tasks in order to 
Maintain a stable and sUstainable 
growtH for tHe coMPany. Having 
tHe tHoroUgH grasP of tHe 
direction, sHortly after tHe 2016 
annUal general Meeting, tHe board 
of directors ProMPted tHe board 
of ManageMent to take iMMediate 
actions to fUlfill tHe targets set, 
inclUding sales PerforMance, 
dividend PayMent, ManageMent 
refineMent, tecHnical innovation, 
and tHe eXecUtion of esoP, stock 
bonUs offering, and Private 
PlaceMent offering. at tHe end of 
2016, tHe coMPany accoMPlisHed 
sUccessfUlly all targets set by 
tHe annUal general Meeting.

the BoD’s Assessment oF the tArgets set By the 2016 AnnuAl 
generAl meetIng 

profit after tax attributable to parent company’s shareholders

178% 
performance/target 

unit: VnD billion

800

plan 2016

2015

plan 2016

1,422

performance 2016

2016

performance 2016

unit: VnD billion

total assets at 31/12/2016 

50% 
comparison to the counter figures of 2015

7,815

11,741

unit: VnD billion

consolidated revenues 2016

16,500
20,783

126% 
performance/target

FInAncIAl perFormAnce

The total assets as of December 31st, 2016 was VND 11.741 billion,  
an increase by 50% over the year of 2015. The consolidated revenues 
reached VND 20,783 billion whereas net profit after tax of Coteccons was 
VND 1,422 billion, exceeding the target approved by the 2016 Annual 
General Meeting by 26% and 78%, respectively and, growing 52% and 113%, 
correspondingly in comparison to the counter figures of 2015. By doing so, 
Coteccons marked our fifth consecutive year of two-digit growth (over 20%) 
in both revenue and profit. In other words, in an unstable market like Viet 
Nam, this is an admirably sustainable and persistent growth.
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47 60sales  
Average growth rate 
during the period from 
2012 to 2016

Net profit Average growth 
attributable to parent  
company shareholders

%/year %/year

DIvIDenD pAyments In cAsh AnD Bonus shAre to shAreholDers 

By sustaining the Company’s commitment of generating more values for 
our Shareholders, in May 2016, the Company paid the Shareholders of 
record on ex-dividend date of May 18th 2016 an yearly dividend of 5,500 
per share (i.e. 55% of par value). This rate hit the highest record of dividend 
payment in the industry ever.

After dividend payment, the Company moved to our next step of issuing 
bonus shares to current shareholders at the rate of 3:1 (i.e. shareholder 
holding three shares received one bonus share) in October 2016. This 
helped increase our charter capital, and at the same time, strengthen the 
Company’s reliability, as well as bring higher values to shareholders.

prIvAte plAcement

In order to be well-prepared for the Company’s sustainable development 
in a new business cycle, especially in capital term, the 2016 Annual General 
Meeting targeted at searching for strategic investors to raise more fund 
as well as to mobilize more knowledge, experience and know-how from 
various parties. In November 2016, after a number of negotiations, the 
Company selected 6 suitable investors to cooperate with, and raised nearly 
VND 1,762 billion in cash. This fund is of great importance for the Company 
to reach our development targets in the upcoming time.

chAnge oF compAny nAme

In the year of 2016, fully-aware of the importance of building and 
developing the Company’s brand name, the Board of Directors and the 
Board of Management have, in accordance with the will of the 2016 Annual 
General Meeting, registered the change of the company name from Cotec 
Construction joint-Stock Company into Coteccons Construction joint-Stock 
Company, effective as of june, 2016.

employee stocK ownershIp plAn For the compAny’s Key stAFF

Based on the Resolution of Annual General Meeting, the Board of Director 
successfully implemented the Employee Stock Ownership Plan for the 
Company’s key staff. This policy is necessary and timely to enhance the 
loyalty, the enthusiasm and the solidarity amongst staff who is essential for 
the company’s perpetual development in the upcoming period. Details of 
the issuance are as follows:

Number of shares issued 2,339,540 shares

Issue price 
50% of the volume issued at 42,000 VND/share
50% of the volume issued at 70,000 VND/share

Number of key staffs participating into the issuance 358 personnel

Lock up time 02 years upon August 25, 2016

VnD1,762 billion

The Value of issuing shares To 
sTraTegiC shareholDers

55% 

paiD The shareholDers of 
reCorD on ex-DiViDenD

The tenure 2012 – 2017 of the Board of Directors started 
when the Vietnamese economy in particular and the global 
economy in general were unstable. In 2012, the real estate 
market was in extreme adversity. Condominium inventory 
and bad debt ratios were negatively high; hundreds of real 
estate developers and construction companies suffered 
lost and went bankrupt. However, with a sharp strategic 

No. Limitation Solution

1
There is no Internal Audit established to assist the 
Board of Directors in auditing and supervising the 
company system and operation.

Promptly establish an Internal Audit Unit under the 
Board of Directors in 2017.

2

The number of independent member in the Board 
of Directors does not meet the required number as 
per Company’s Charter (The Charter requires at least 
02 independent members in the Board of Directors; 
however, currently there is only 01) 

Search for at least one more candidate to be 
nominated and elected in this year’s Annual General 
Meeting as an independent member of the future 
Board of Directors.

However, apart from the achievements made so far, the 2012 - 2017 Board of Directors still recognizes that there are 
a few limitations that the Board of Directors of the next tenure has to resolve to improve the Company’s corporate 
governance. Following are those limitations and their suggested solutions:

summAry report oF the 2012 – 2017 BoArD oF DIrectors 

Private placement made to Kusto, 
raised a huge amount of capital, a 
strong foundation stone for future 
breakthrough.

Developed the very first 
Design & Build model  

in Viet Nam.

Upgraded and completed Design 
& Build model; Raised VND 1,762 
billion from the second Private 

placement.

Increased equity proportion at Unicons 
up to 51.24%, laying a foundation for 

future resource development.

Broke into infrastructure market;
Increased ownership at Unicons up 

to 100%.

2012 20142013 2015 2016

vision and a determined management style, the 2012 
- 2017 Board of Directors managed to not only lead the 
company to overcome the difficulties and to maintain a 
high and stable growth rate, but also take advantage of 
the difficult time spurt and leave behind other competitors 
in the market. The following are notable milestones of the 
Company during that tunure:

rePort of tHe board of directors (continUed)
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In details, the Board of Directors highly appreciates the following achievements made by the 
Board of Management .

supervIsory report oF the BoArD oF DIrectors on the BoArD oF 
mAnAgement

tHe 2016 annUal general Meeting set Many cHallenging targets for tHe board of ManageMent; However, tHe 
board of ManageMent sUccessfUlly coMPleted tHose tasks. witH tHe bUsiness resUlts acHieved, sHareHolders’ 
benefits are fUrtHer enHanced, cUstoMer relationsHiPs are firMly consolidated, and coteccons’ rePUtation and 
Position is strongly assert. 

orgAnIZAtIonAl structure AnD personnel Development 

Current, the Board of Management consists of one (01) General Director and five (05) Deputy 
General Directors. In 2016, with the segregation of duties being clearly made, the Board of 
Management successfully practiced their rights and fulfilled their duties in accordance with 
the Company’s Charter and the applicable laws and regulations. 

The Board of Management regularly listened and discussed with lower managers in weekly 
meetings and timely rotated employees amongst Construction Divisions, Project Management 
Teams, and other Departments within the Company to optimize the Company’s organizational 
structure, and thus improved the work efficiency.

The Board of Management also carried out various recruitment and training programs to 
develop a highly qualified workforce to handle projects of larger scale and of more technical 
complication. The human resources of the year increased approximately by 44% over the 
previous year.

technIcAl InnovAtIon, cApAcIty expAnsIon AnD new heIght AchIevement 

Following the success in 2015, Coteccons still kept on innovating and improving our design 
and construction capacity. The year of 2016 marked numerous records that the Board of 
Management and the entire staff of Coteccons proudly achieved, including many great 
technical progresses made in completing the large volume concrete pours of the Landmark 
81 project, in finishing the 6-level basement of The One project, and in achieving Tekla BIM 
International Awards for the application of technological modeling into the execution of 
the Gold View project... (the details are mentioned in "a highlight of outstanding events of 
Coteccons in 2016" on pages 24 - 25).

Moreover, the upgradation and completion of the Design & Build model into a new version 
further strengthened Coteccons’ traditional competitive edge of remarkable design and 
construction capacity. The new version of the model proved its superiority by channeling 
more benefits to the Investors in terms of time and money efficiency and by instilling more 
confidence into the end users when they purchase Coteccons’ products.

overall, witH a HigH sense of resPonsibility in tHeir work, all MeMbers of tHe board 
of ManageMent closely followed tHe strategic objectives set by tHe annUal general 
Meeting and tHe board of directors. not only did tHe board of ManageMent focUs on 
tHe core bUsinesses, ProMoting tHe coMPany’s strengtH in constrUction caPacity, bUt 
also deMonstrated great initiative and creativeness botH in seeking for new bUsiness 
oPPortUnities, boosting sales and Profits, and accoMPlisHing tHe targets of tHe year, 
and in taking necessary MeasUres to ensUre tHe sUstainable develoPMent of tHe coMPany 
in tHe fUtUre.

sustAInABIlIty orIentAtIon

In an independent ranking by The Sustainable Development Community (belonging to VCCI), 
Coteccons was honored as one of the 10 leading sustainable companies in Viet Nam amongst 
thousands of sustainable businesses of the year 2016, which was all thanks to the continuous 
efforts of the Board of Management in establishing the current operation and management 
systems, which has been bringing benefits all stakeholders including customers, shareholders, 
employees, suppliers, government and community.

trAnspArency enhAncement, mAnAgement reFInemen AnD proFIt execellency 

The management activities of the Board of Management throughout 2016 was considerably 
improved. In details, the Board of Management did build a stronger and clearer management 
system to better control all projects’ finance, thus resulting in reduced construction costs and 
increased bottom lines. Gross profit margins for three consecutive years were consistently 
boosted up from 7.3% in 2014 to 8.1% and 8.7% in 2015 and 2016, respectively.

Relationships with subcontractors and suppliers have been built up on the principles of clarity, 
transparency, and sincerity for mutual cooperation and development. So far, Coteccons now 
has a large number of more than 3,000 partners who are always ready to accompany with 
Coteccons in any project. This is a great premise for sustainable development in the coming 
years.

The disclosure of information by the Board of Management to the stock market has always 
been made in a more accurate and prompt manner than any lawful requirements. Apart from 
financial information to be published on a quarterly basis, the company has also constantly 
updated operational status of both newly signed contracts, and the progress of ongoing 
projects on the Company’s official website. Press conferences and shareholder meetings were 
also held regularly to provide information for investors.

rePort of tHe board of directors (continUed)



20,783

1,422

Target in 2017 (Billion VND) Performance in 2016 (Billion VND) 

25,000

Pro�t attributable to parent company shareholders Consolidated revenue

1,700

TARGET REVENUE AND PROFIT IN 2017 

20%
growth over  

2016

Support and promote 
the activities of the Board 
of Management through 
the incentive and bonus 
policies; Create an optimal 
mechanism to develop 
competent additions to 
the Board of Management 
to best achieve the set 
goals.

Monitor the use of capital 
in investment activities; 
Enhance the value for 
shareholders besides 
construction activities.

Focus on business 
expansion orientation 
along with risk control.

Establish Internal Audit 
as the Company’s third 
preventive line, using it 
as a tool to supervise the 
activities of the Board of 
Management.

coteccons Has sUccessfUlly bUilt and firMly affirMed oUr 
good rePUtation, oUr strong brand naMe, and oUr reMarkable 
constrUction caPacity facilitated by tHe collective strengtHs 
froM tHe coMPany’s affiliates to Undertake large-scale and Mega 
Projects. at tHe saMe tiMe, coteccons’s caPability in design & bUild 
Projects Has reacHed a HigHer level witH its advantages Proved 
eXPressly in tHe PrevioUs year.

100 ANNUAL REPORT 2016 
www.coteccons.vn

101REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE COMPANY’S OPERATION

strAtegIc orIentAtIon oF the BoArD oF DIrectors In 2017

In 2017, together with new opportunities will come many a challenges that may affect the Company’s business 
plan as follows:

 » Major political events that did and will take place such as Donald Trump’s being elected as US President and 
his announcing to withdraw US from the TPP, Brexit, presidential election in some European countries, the 
relationships between the three superpowers of Russia, US and China.

 » World Bank’s favorable forecast for the economic growth rate in the Asian Pacific developing countries in the 
next 3 years, with an average of 5.7% in the period of 2017-2018, and 6.3% for Viet Nam in particular.

 » Fed’s raising of interest rates by about 2 to 3 times more in 2017 due to economic growth and inflation, 
causing the Dollar to be further appreciated against other currencies and Viet Nam Dong to be depreciated 
by 1-3% in 2017.

 » High demands for capital in infrastructure investment (intercity highways, municipal subways, civil 
infrastructure and other urban infrastructure projects) that offer plentiful opportunities for financially robust 
companies to invest into BOT, BT or public-private partnership (PPP) projects; New demands that is emerging 
in civil construction sector when Vingroup started developing medium-price condominiums.

In the lights of the value of the construction backlog and the evaluation of the macro and micro 
environment, the Board of Directors puts forwards next year’s business and action plans as follows:

Focus on the member structure 
of the Board of Directors and its 
segregation of duties in preparation 
for the new tenure from 2017 to 
2022); Strengthen the Company’s 
corporate governance and the 
activities of the Board of Directors’ 
subcommittees

Rewrite the Company’s corporate 
governance regulations; Supervise 
the general compliance with the 
laws, the Company Charter and the 
regulations related to information 
disclosure to ultimately ensure the 
shareholders’ equality. 

Continue to focus on construction 
activities, striving for a growth rate of 
at least 20% over the year of 2016 in 
sales and profits , with target revenue 
and profit being set at VND 25,000 
billion and a VND 1,700 billion, 
respectively.

The Board of Directors maintains the belief that the 
construction market in Viet Nam is still good and 
potential. Construction orders will constantly increase 
as the backlog of Coteccons at the end of 2016 carried 
forward to 2017-2018 totals approximately VND 22,000 
billion (increased by 46% over the previous year). In the 
first 2 months of 2017 the Company has contracted 
about VND 5,000 billion more, bringing the current total 
figure to at nearly VND 27,000 billion (about 60% of this 
value is anticipated to be implemented in 2017).

Internally, Coteccons has successfully built and firmly 
affirmed our good reputation, our strong brand name, 
and our remarkable construction capacity facilitated by 
the collective strengths from the Company’s affiliates to 
undertake large-scale and Mega projects. At the same 
time, Coteccons’s capability in Design & Build projects 
has reached a higher level with its advantages proved 
expressly in the previous year. Currently, Design & Build 
projects of small scale can be handled and implemented 
by the such affiliates as Unicons and Ricons.

rePort of tHe board of directors (continUed)



PRESTIGE
The year of 2016 continued seeing high profits for shareholders of 
CTD code. Furthermore, dividend was paid by cash at the rate of 55% 
in May 2016 and shareholders were entitled for an offering at 3:1 in 
October. On the other hand, new shares were also issued by Coteccons 
in 2016 targeting at strategic investors, resulting in an amount of 1,762 
billion dong. We always try our best for sustainable benefits of 
shareholders and investors. 

first teaM factory

corPorate governance
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(as of deceMber 31st, 2016)

directors 2012 - 2017board of

chAnge In the BoD’s memBershIp In 2016

board of directors 

BoArD oF DIrectors AnD Its operAtIon In 2016

On March 30th, 2016 the Board of Directors  had approved 
the resignation letter of Mr. Talgat Turumbayev and  
Mr. Tony Xuan Diep. Therefore, since the March 30th, 
2016 Mr. Talgat Turumbayev and Mr. Tony Xuan Diep 
are no longer the members of the Company’s Board 
of Directors. On the same day, Mr. Bolat Duisenov and  
Mr. Tran Quyet Thang were temporarily set to be 
appointed as Mr. Talgat Turmbayev and Mr. Tony Xuan 
Diep's replacement, correspondingly after an approval of 
the Board of Directors. 

On April 12th, 2016 at the 2016 Annual General Meeting 
of Coteccons, the Board of Directors also called for 
an election for member replacement. Gaining high 
credibility with the Shareholders, Mr. Bolat Duisenov and 
Mr. Tran Quyet Thang officially became the members of 
Coteccons’ Board of Directors for the term of 2012 - 2017.

On june 1st, 2016 the Board of Directors also appointed 
Mr. Vu Duy Lam to replace Mr. Hoang Xuan Chinh who 
resigned for personal reasons.

All meetings of the Board of Directors focused on solving critical issues relating to proposing the business plan of 
2016, guiding the organization of 2016 Annual General Meeting, directing the implementation of 2016 business plan, 
and following the guidance stated on the Resolution of the 2016 Annual General meeting. The BOD also approved 
important proposals and decisions in order to enable the Board of Management to operate the business effectively. 

As of December 31st, 2016, the incumbent Board of Directors of Coteccons (for the term of 2012 
- 2017) consists of 07 (seven) members, of whom 04 (four) are also the members of the Board 
of Management and the other 02 (two) are non-executive members and 01 (one) independent 
member.

No. Name Position Duties Note

1. Mr. Nguyen Ba Duong
BOD 

Chairman
Being in charge of the Company’s 
operation, strategy, and personnel.

cum General Director

2. Mr. Tran Quang Quan Member
Being in charge of the Company’s 
operation

cum Deputy General 
Director

3. Mr. Tran Quang Tuan Member
Being in charge of the Company’s 
operation and remuneration policies

cum Deputy General 
Director

4. Mr. Bolat Duisenov Member
Being in charge of the Company’s 
strategy, remuneration, and 
investment.

Non-Executive member

5. Mr. Vu Duy Lam Member
Being in charge of the Company’s 
investment activities.

cum Chief Investment 
Executive

6. Mr. Tran Quyet Thang Member
Contributing objective and critical 
ideas

Independent member

7.
Mr. Giuseppe  
Maniscalco Ferrara

Member
Contributing objective and critical 
ideas

Non-Executive member

BoD’s meetIngs 

BoD’s operAtIon In 2016 

No. Member Postion

Date of 
appointment/
Date of 
resignation

Number 
of 
attended 
meetings

Attending 
rate Note

1 Mr. Nguyen Ba Duong Chairman 24/08/2004 11/11 100%

2 Mr. Tran Quang Quan Member 02/05/2007 11/11 100%

3 Mr. Tran Quang Tuan Member 30/07/2009 11/11 100%

4 Mr. Talgat Turumbayev Member 30/03/2016 2/2 100%
With authorization 
representative, resigned on 
30/03/2016

5 Mr. Hoang Xuan Chinh Member 01/06/2016 5/5 100%
with authorization 
representative, resigned on 
01/06/2016

6 Mr. Tony Xuan Diep Member 30/03/2016 2/2 100%
with authorization 
representative, resigned on 
30/03/2016

7
Mr. Giuseppe 
Maniscalco Ferrara

Member 14/04/2015 11/11 100%

8 Mr. Bolat Duisenov Member 30/03/2016 9/9 100%

9 Mr. Tran Quyet Thang Member 30/03/2016 9/9 100%

10 Mr. Vu Duy Lam Member 01/06/2016 6/6 100%

generAl operAtIon

operAtIon oF InDepenDent 
BoD memBers

The Board of Directors frequently hosted periodic meetings in order to 
review the business operation and direct the development of Coteccons.  
The approved resolutions all received high consensus from the members of 
the Board of Directors who had worked hard with high sense of responsibility 
and seriousness.

Being actively involved in all of the meetings of the Board of Directors, the 
independent members contributed a body of profound and objective 
opinions, and played an important role of a serious critic in pointing out 
potential risks in the proposed policies and strategies of the Company, 
contributing significantly to the improvement of performance and the 
prevention of risks.
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resolutIons ApproveD By the BoArD oF DIrectors In 2016

board of directors (continUed)

No. Code Date Decisions

1 01/2016/NQ-HĐQT 01/03/2016
Resolution to approve the plan to organize the XII Annual General 
Meeting – the year of 2016.

2 02/2016/NQ-HĐQT 30/03/2016
Resolution to approve the resignation from the Board of Directors of 
Mr. Talgat Turumbayev and Mr. Tony Xuan Diep. 

3 03/2016/NQ-HĐQT 30/03/2016
Resolution to approve the new BOD member appointment of  
Mr. Bolat Duisenov and Mr. Tran Quyet Thang.

4 & 
5

04/2016/NQ-HĐQT & 
05/2016/NQ-HĐQT

19/04/2016 & 
21/04/2016

Resolution to approve the dividend payment for the fiscal year of 
2015. 

6 06/2016/NQ-HĐQT 20/05/2016
Resolution to approve the auditing firm for Coteccons’ financial 
statements in 2016.

7 07/2016/NQ-HĐQT 01/06/2016 Resolution to approve the resignation from BOD of Mr. Hoang Xuan Chinh.

8 08/2016/NQ-HĐQT 01/06/2016
Resolution to approve the new BOD member appointment of  
Mr. Vu Duy Lam.

9 09/2016/NQ-HĐQT 01/06/2016
Resolution to approve the dismissal of Ms. Ha Tieu Anh from the 
position of Chief Aaccountant and the appointment of Mrs. Vu Thi 
Hong Hanh as the new Chief Accountant.

10 10/2016/NQ-HĐQT 02/06/2016 Resolution to approve the change of the Company’s name.

11 11/2016/NQ-HĐQT 16/06/2016
Resolution to approve the establishment of committees to support 
the Board of Directors.

12 12/2016/NQ-HĐQT 13/07/2016
Resolution to approve the capital contribution to found the 
Coteccons – Fecons Investment joint Stock Company (CFIC).

13 13/2016/NQ-HĐQT 13/07/2016 Resolution to approve the 2016 Employment Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP).

14 14/2016/NQ-HĐQT 23/08/2016
Resolution to approve the selling plan of remaining stocks from the 
2016 ESOP and the detailed results of 2016 ESOP.

15 15/2016/NQ-HĐQT 14/09/2016
Resolution to approve the temporary limit  reduction of the foreign 
ownership in limit of Coteccons from 49% to 40% to serve our 
upcoming private placement offering.  

16 16/2016/NQ-HĐQT 14/09/2016
Resolution to approve the implementation of the private placement 
offering to strategic investors. .

17 17/2016/NQ-HĐQT 04/10/2016
Resolution to approve the disbursement plan for new capital raised 
from the latest private placement offering to strategic investors.

18 18/2016/NQ-HĐQT 03/11/2016
Resolution to approve the registration of increasing charter capital 
of Coteccon corresponding to the latest stock bonus offering for 
current shareholders to strategic investors.

19 19/2016/NQ-HĐQT 03/11/2016
Resolution to approve the final list of investors participating in the 
private placement offering and the offering price.

20 20/2016/NQ-HĐQT 29/11/2016
Resolution to approve the registration of increasing charter capital 
of Coteccon corresponding to the equity raised from the latest 
private placement offering to strategic investors.

operAtIon oF the BoD’s suBcommIttees

strAtegy suBcommIttee

members

No. Name Position Note

1 Nguyen Ba Duong Chairman BOD Chairman cum General Director

2 Bolat Duisenov Member BOD member

Duties

Strategy Subcommittee was 
established to assist the Board 
of Directors in researching and 
proposing  development plans of the 
Company, including but not limited 
to studying new projects in relation 
with the development trend of the 
Company, expanding or downsizing 
relevant business activities, and 
maintaining relationships with 
clients, partners, and authorities, 
and ultimately creating the strategic 
development orientations for the 
whole Company.  At the same 
time, the Strategy Subcommittee 
also oversees all business activities 
that might affect the strategic 
development orientations of the 
Coteccons Group including those of 
our affiliates, divisions, boards, and 

Operation

In 2016, the Strategy Subcommittee 
hosted two meetings to discuss the 
following key issues:

departments, and finally manages 
all risks incurred in the Company’s 
strategic planning. 

The Strategy Subcommittee 
is responsible for researching, 
discussing and reporting to the 
Board of Directors on the issues 
relating to:

 » Reviewing the business 
environment, the industry and 
identifying the opportunities, the 
challenges, the strengths and the 
weaknesses of the Company;

 » Directing the Company 
development strategy in short 
term and long term, aiming 
for a sustainable growth of the 

 » Developing the Company plan 
for the year of 2016 and the 
development orientations for the 
period of 2017-2020.

Company and creating added-
value for the shareholders;

 » Planning and constructing a 
suitable organizational structure 
for the Company in line with 
specific proposed strategies;

 » Advising on potential risks 
incurred in the implementation 
of strategies and proposing risk 
management and risk prevention 
plan; 

 » Proposing development 
orientations of high consensus 
among the BOD members prior 
to submitting for approval in the 
Annual General Meeting. 

 » Assisting the Board of Directors 
in the selection of a strategic 
partners for private placement 
offering.

With the target of maintaining a solid and sustainable development of the firm, in the tenure of 2012 - 2017, the 
Board of Directors has found several subcommittees specializing in specific fields with an advisory role for the Board of 
Directors. As of December 31st, 2016 the Board of Directors has founded 4 subcommittees as follows:

strategy sUbcoMMittee was establisHed to assist tHe board of directors in researcHing and ProPosing  
develoPMent Plans of tHe coMPany, inclUding bUt not liMited to stUdying new Projects in relation 
witH tHe develoPMent trend of tHe coMPany, eXPanding or downsizing relevant bUsiness activities, 
and Maintaining relationsHiPs witH clients, Partners, and aUtHorities, and UltiMately creating tHe 
strategic develoPMent orientations for tHe wHole coMPany.  
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remunerAtIon suBcommIttee 

members

No. Name Position Note

1 Bolat Duisenov Chairman Non-executive BOD member

2 Tran Quang Tuan Member BOD member cum Deputy General Director

3 Dang Hoai Nam Member  

Duties

Remuneration Subcommittee shall have the duties and 
responsibilities as follows:

 » Reviewing and proposing remuneration for 
Management Staff at all levels of the Company (from 
the possition of Project Manager and above) and 
recommending the Board on the approval of the 
remuneration policies in share bonus or cash bonus 
(or other policies) based on annual business results.

 » Proposing general remuneration policy throughout 
the Company for the BOD’s consideration and latter 
submission in the Annual General Meeting.

 » Reviewing the recommendations of the General 
Director on remuneration policies for Management 
Staff and recommending accordingly the Board of 
Directors consider policy changing if necessary.

 » Ensuring the alignment of the remuneration plan for 
Management Staff and the market level.

 » Supervising and reviewing work performance and 
performance indicators to assess the effectiveness 
of Management Staff to determine the non-wage 
benefits (bonus or ESOP).

 » Reviewing recommendations of management staff 
relating to their remuneration (if any).

 » Ensuring the compliance and appropriateness of the 
provisions on remuneration and incentives as well as 

the key performance indicators  with the vision, the 
values and the objectives of the BOD in order to:

	Motivate the Management Staff to work for 
long-term objectives and overall success of the 
Company.

	Demonstrate a clear relationship between 
Company achievements, personal performance 
and the remuneration for the Management Staff.

Operation

In 2016, Remuneration Subcommittee hosted four 
meetings to discuss the following key issues:

 » Building Incentive and Bonus Plans for the Board 
of Management in the period of 2016 - 2020 and 
submitting for approval in the 2016 Annual General 
Meeting.

 » Proposing the list of key employees who are qualified 
for purchasing 2016 ESOP and their corresponding 
allocation of shares. Supervising the ESOP offering.

 » Participating in discussion on how to allocate the 
remuneration to different Subcommittees from the 
compensation source of the Board of Directors, with 
the Board of Supervisors (BOS) approved by the Annual 
General Meeting. Improving the accountability of the 
Subcommittees.

ensUring tHe coMPliance and aPProPriateness of tHe Provisions on reMUneration and incentives as well as tHe 
key PerforMance indicators  witH tHe vision, tHe valUes and tHe objectives of tHe bod.

members

No. Name Position Note

1 Bolat Duisenov Chairman
Non-executive 
BOD member

2 Tu Dai Phuc Member
Deputy General 
Director

3 Vu Duy Lam Member BOD Member

Duties
Investment Subcommittee shall have the duties and 
responsibilities as follows:

 » Evaluating investment activities of the Company and 
proposing critical ideas relating to the effectiveness 
and the risks of current investment activities of the 
Company to the Board of Directors;

 » Searching for investment opportunities (including 

merger and acquisition, financial investment, 
investment in new technology and equipment, etc.) 
under the strategic orientations of the Company;

 » Drafting regulations and policies relating to 
investment activities, monitoring the compliance 
with those policies;

 » Assessing and analyzing potential risks and proposing 
preventive measures in the investment process to 
the Board of Directors for consideration; Monitoring 
the compliance with investment regulations in the 
Charter of the Company.

Operation
In 2016, the Investment Subcommittee hosted three 
meetings which mainly focused on building investment 
plan, and accessing potential investment projects and 
disbursement plan.

personnel suBcommIttee

members

No. Name Position Note

1 Nguyen Ba Duong Chairman
BOD Chairman 
cum General 
Director

2 yerkin Tatishev Member
Independent 
member

Duties
Personnel Subcommittee shall review the organizational 
structure of the Company and review policies and 
guidelines relating to the selection and retention of 
senior personnel.

 » Performing human resource planning to ensure the 
succession for key positions in companies of concern, 
optimally training and transferring personnel without 
affecting the normal operation of the Company.

 » Assisting the Board of Directors with their senior 

personnel development policies, including: 

	Proposing training program for senior personnel, 
including the rotation and training program 
(domestic and overseas);

	Recruiting and mobilizing qualified and appropriate 
personnel to supplement the management team 
in correspondence with the development strategy 
of the Company;

	Assessing work performance and competencies 
of senior personnel fairly in order to allocate the 
human resources efficiently;

	Reviewing the recommendations of the General 
Director relating to the recruitment, promotion, 
transfer and suspension of senior personnel.

Operation
In 2016, Personnel Subcommittee hosted one meeting in 
order to add new member to the BOD and to direct the 
development policies and strategies for senior personnel of 
the Company.

Personnel sUbcoMMittee sHall review tHe organizational strUctUre of tHe coMPany and review Policies and 
gUidelines relating to tHe selection and retention of senior Personnel.

Investment suBcommIttee

investMent sUbcoMMittee was establisHed to oversee tHe investMent activities of tHe coMPany, Managing 
investMent Policies and gUidelines, recrUiting and selecting cHief investMent officer, establisHing 
investMent criteria, reviewing investMent PerforMance as well as Monitoring of investMent gUidelines to 
Manage Potential risks.

board of directors (continUed)
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No. Name Position
Working 

period
(in months)

Remuneration 
per month
(in million 

VND/month

Total 
Remuneration 

in 2016
(in million 

VND)

A BOD AND BOS 8,760

I Board of Directors 7,320

* Executive BOD member 5,520

1.1 Nguyen Ba Duong BOD Chairman cum General Director 12 200  2,400 

1.2 Tran Quang Quan BOD member cum Deputy General Director 12 100  1,200 

1.3 Tran Quang Tuan BOD member cum Deputy General Director 12 100  1,200 

1.4 Vu Duy Lam BOD member cum Chief Investment Officer 12 60  720 

* Non-executive BOD member 1,800

1.5 Bolat Duisenov BOD member 12 50  600 

1.6 Tran Quyet Thang BOD member 12 50  600 

1.7 Giuseppe Maniscalco Ferrara BOD member 12 50  600 

II Board of Supervisors 1,440

1 Nguyen Duc Canh Chairman 12 60  720 

2 Phan Cam Ly Member 12 30  360 

3 Nguyen Phuc Long Member 12 30  360 

B COMMITTEES UNDER BOD/BOS 1,890

I Strategic Subcommittee 240

1.1 Nguyen Ba Duong Chairman 6 20  120 

1.2 Bolat Duisenov Member 6 20  120 

II Remuneration Subcommittee 360

2.1 Bolat Duisenov Chairman 6 20  120 

2.2 Tran Quang Tuan Member 6 20  120 

2.3 Dang Hoai Nam Member 6 20  120 

III Investment Subcommittee 720

3.1 Bolat Duisenov Chairman 6 40  240 

3.2 Tu Dai Phuc Member 6 40  240 

3.3 Vu Duy Lam Member 6 40  240 

IV Personnel Subcommittee 570

4.1 Nguyen Ba Duong Chairman 6 50  300 

4.2 yerkin Tatishev Member 6 45  270 

* TOTAL (A+B) 10,650

 

Year 2016 Year 2015

Remuneration of the BOD, BOS and BOM members 28.57 billion VND 21.58 billion VND

stock transaction(s) of insiders and acqUaintance 

No. Name
Position/ Relation to 
insiders 

Opening number of shares 
(from the time starting 

becoming insiders)

Closing number  
of shares Reason(s) (purchasing, selling, 

transferring, bonus, etc.)
Number of 

shares
%

Number of 
shares

%

1 Nguyen Ba Duong
BOD Chairman cum 
General Director

2,479,816 5.29% 3,619,754 4.70%
Participating in ESOP offering 
and stock bonus offering

2 Nguyen Minh Hoang Relevant people - 0.00% 8,000 0.01%
Participating in ESOP offering 
and stock bonus offering

3 Nguyen Xuan Dao Relevant people 186,632 0.40% 258,176 0.34%
Participating in ESOP offering 
and stock bonus offering

4 Nguyen Quoc Van Relevant people 6,250 0.01% 8,333 0.01%
Participating in stock bonus 
offering

5 Tran Quang Tuan
BOD member cum 
Deputy General 
Director

442,702 0.94% 730,269 0.95%
Participating in ESOP offering 
and stock bonus offering

6 Tran Quoc Binh Relevant people 4,566 0.01% 12,754 0.02%
Participating in ESOP offering 
and stock bonus offering

7 Tran Quang Quan
BOD member cum 
Deputy General 
Director

683,631 1.46% 1,051,507 1.36%
Participating in ESOP offering 
and stock bonus offering

8 Nguyen Duc Canh BOS Chairman 6,666 0.01% 8,888 0.01%
Participating in stock bonus 
offering

9 Vu Quynh Nga Relevant people 34,866 0.07% 8 0.00% Selling shares

10 Nguyen Thi Phuc Long BOS Member 76,291 0.16% 255,868 0.33%
Participating in stock bonus 
offering

11 Tran Van Chinh
Deputy General 
Director

41,000 0.09% 116,000 0.15%
Participating in ESOP offering 
and stock bonus offering

12 Tu Dai Phuc
Deputy General 
Director

78,546 0.17% 195,394 0.25%
Participating in ESOP offering 
and stock bonus offering

13 Phan Huy Vinh
Deputy General 
Director

537,138 1.15% 777,517 1.01%
Participating in ESOP offering 
and stock bonus offering

14 Ha Tieu Anh
Head of Financial 
Acounting 
Department

384,133 0.82% 569,510 0.74%
Participating in ESOP offering 
and stock bonus offering

15 Ha Giang Anh Relevant people - 0.00% 2,000 0.00%
Participating in ESOP offering 
and stock bonus offering

16 Vu Thi Hong Hanh Chief Accountant 426,766 0.91% 600,714 0.78%
Participating in ESOP offering 
and stock bonus offering

17 Le Mien Thuy Relevant people 194,948 0.42% 286,596 0.37%
Participating in ESOP offering 
and stock bonus offering

reMUneration of tHe bod, boM and bos MeMbers in 2016
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Occupational safety
risks

Human resources
risks

Late payment
risks

Risks in
investment and 

implementation of 
infrastructure

projects

Risks in
equipment
investment

Risks in
construction and 

real estate market

Risks in
escalation 

constrUction is a coMPleX and risky indUstry. risks in tHe constrUction indUstry arise froM legal reqUireMents, 
financial issUes, Project coMPletion caPability, Market deMands, labor recrUitMent and esPecially constrUction 
solUtion and safety control Practices dUring Projects etc. 

Well-controlled risk management will add more values for the enterprise, improve operation 
efficiency, create competitiveness and minimize errors in all activities. With Coteccons fully 
acknowledging its importance, risk management has always been of the foremost concern of 

the Board of Management. To ensure efficiency of risk management activities, risk management has been 
integrated into the internal control system of Coteccons. 

Potential risks affecting tHe coMPany 

risk ManageMent

occupAtIonAl sAFety rIsKs

Safety risks at workplace arise from the 
particular nature of the construction 
industry. Workers must perform their 

labor-intensive work outdoors, on which the 
influence of climatic factors is inevitable, not to 
mention other potential risks when working at 
height. Therefore, without an effective labour 
safety management system at workplace, 
work accidents can easily occur. A scenario of 
any serious work accidents will not only cause 
human losses but also damage the Company’s 
prestige and brand value, hence, resulting in loss 
of market share and posing challenges for on the 
Company’s growth in the upcoming years. 

In 2017, the Company will carry out more high-
rise building projects, which means more risk 
will be involved. Therefore, managing risks from 
working at height shall be carefully concerned 
and appropriate adjustments in safety 
management system shall be made to control 
and prevent these potential risks effectively.

management methods 

Regular checks and proper maintenance for 
Coteccons’ construction equipment shall be 
focused. The Company implements the policy 
that construction supervisors /take main 
responsibility for labor safety and every individual 
must strictly follow safety procedures in order to 
reduce accidents due to unsafe performance. 

Since the early days of the Company, Coteccons’ 
safety management system at workplace has 
been developed and continuously improved 
from time to time. Coteccons was honorably 
awarded the International Certificates of ISO 
14001:2004 in environmental safety and OHSAS 
18001:2007 in occupational safety and health. 
Safety policy has been promulgated and trained 
to all site workers to ensure that every individual 
can understands and strictly complies with the 
Company’s requirements. 

As for super high-rise building projects, the 
Company’s Board of Safety together with the Site 
Management Team, Division of Technique and 
Construction Consultant of the Investors shall 
consent to apply special safety management 
model, increasing the rate of safety staff. Risk 
prevention is also strictly performed, from daily 
health examination for each manual worker 
before work to risk identification and assessment 
to provide a risk-free working environment 
for workers. The Company’s Certificate System 
on Labor Safety is also strictly applied and 
conducted.

the landmark 81
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humAn resources rIsKs

Human resources risks are among 
the most serious risks affecting 
the stability of the organizational 

structure and all operations of the 
Company. Excellent and skillful 
employees are usually being “hunted” 
and attracted by competitors. However, 
with effective management policies, 
“brain drain” shall not a worrying risk of 
Coteccons in 2017. 

The biggest challenge in human 
resources management of Coteccons 
in 2017 onward is how to attract and 
train more and more competent 
personnel to facilitate the Company’s 
goal for a ground-breaking growth in 
the 2017-2020 period.  

management methods

Coteccons shall continually implement effective management practices 
such as issuing and applying appropriate salary, bonus and allowance 
policies based on performance and position; building non-recurring 
bonus and performance bonus policies for individuals and groups with 
outstanding achievements, and applying health insurance for the staff 
and their family members. Especially, since 2015, in order to encourage 
employees to invest in their children’s education, thereby nurturing a 
sustainable foundation for the future, Coteccons has applied educational 
sponsorship policy to managerial and senior personnel, who have 
considerable contributions to the Company’s development.

Moreover, the following practices are also important to be implemented: 

 » Create the most favorable conditions for employees to enhance their 
competence. Further improve working environment to Coteccons’ 
become the second family for each employee, where they cannot 
leave for another working environment. 

 » Attract excellent specialists and engineers both in Viet Nam and 
abroad; recruit newly-graduated engineers and architects via the 
Coteccons-universities partnership channel to train and prepare team 
of successors. 

 » Promote internal training activities for new staff through Club of 
Potential Leaders, usually organize seminars and training courses 
to introduce, promote, and appoint managers, creating promotion 
chances for enthusiastic and talented young employees. 

as a natUre of tHe constrUction indUstry, HUMan-resoUrce-related risks are of essence, and 
reqUire continUal attention and iMProveMent.

risk ManageMent (continUed)

lAte pAyment rIsKs

The risk of late payment is 
expected to increase in 2017, 
which is proportional to the 

increases of the Company’s revenue. 
On the other hand, civil construction 
segment (condominium or low-rise 
buildings) currently accounts for a high 
proportion in total revenue. Therefore, 
debt recovery ability will be affected 
by the general situation of real estate 
market and bank’s credit policies on 
loans for real estate business. 

management methods

To minimize risk of late payment, besides studying and reviewing financial 
situation of clients and consumption possibility of products before making 
bidding decisions, the Company continues to apply the following solutions: 

 » Carefully negotiate and explicitly stipulate the payment terms and 
conditions in the contract when making quotation (or bidding). 

 » Assign the Financial Monitoring Board, which consists of members 
from the Legal Department and Finance - Accounting Department, 
to perform independent reviews on construction contracts before 
signing, to monitor the project financial progress and provides 
warnings on risks related to debts and payment settlement on a weekly 
basis to Deputy General Directors and Construction Division Directors.

 » Tightly control on the settlement process, organize quantity surveying 
apparatus (QS) and strictly work with clients.

 » Stop the project in case of insufficient cash flow as per the provisions 
of the contract (applicable to late payment cases).

 » Request clients to offer bank payment guarantee corresponding to the 
risk level evaluated by the Company. 

recovering debts is eXtreMely iMPortant to ensUre financial efficiency of constrUction Projects. 
tHere are Many reasons for clients to delay PayMent sUcH as investor’s inability to raise 
caPital, difficUlties in bUdget witHdrawals or slow sale of constrUction ProdUcts… in tHose 
circUMstances, clients UsUally deliberately Prolong tHe PayMent Period. 
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rIsKs In constructIon AnD reAl estAte mArKet rIsKs In Investment AnD ImplementAtIon oF InFrAstructure proJects

Although the real estate market has been 
recovered and the new legislations have 
offered favorable conditions for real estate 

market re-blooming, the risk of a possible new 
crisis cannot be ignored. In 2016, that many mega 
projects were simultaneously developed created 
a high chance for a new real estate bubble to 
happen again especially when inventory can 
shoot up and payment ability of some real estate 
developers remain a myth. Any sudden decrease 
in real estate investment or project termination 
shall have certain effects on the achievement of 
revenue target and debt recovery of construction 
companies. 

management methods

Identify, analyze, monitor and take timely actions to deal with 
risks related to the construction and real estates market. 

Increase proportion of D&B projects and carefully conduct 
feasible survey on real estate projects before signing 
construction contracts to ensure investors that all projects 
constructed by Coteccons in whole or in part will always have 
high marketability. 

Be proactive in approaching and studying about the capital 
sources of the clients, the liquidity and consumption ability 
of real estate projects, especially traditional tender projects. 

Promote R&D activities, improve construction techniques, 
improve management system, develop competitive supply 
chain and enhance professional operation to increase the 
Company’s competitiveness, thereby bringing the most 
reasonable cost to clients and consumers.

Many Mega Projects were siMUltaneoUsly develoPed created a HigH cHance for a new real estate 
bUbble to HaPPen again esPecially wHen inventory can sHoot UP and PayMent ability of soMe real 
estate develoPers reMain a MytH. 

The largest risk is the recoverability of capital through 
toll fee when the objects who are subject to the fee 
are not clearly identified and long period of capital 

recovery also affects the Company’s financial plan. On 
the other hand, ground clearance is a difficult issue that 
may lead to cost increase and project prolongation. 
Besides, there are many other unexpected risks in every 
to-be-invested infrastructure project because Coteccons 
has very little experience in the field. 

management methods

Coteccons participated in infrastructure project in Phu 
Ly, Ha Nam and gained certain experiences in controlling 
and managing risks in infrastructure investment and 
construction. However, before making investment into 
new infrastructure projects, the Company shall carefully 
review, collect information, analyze and conduct 
feasibility survey, in which possible risks and solution are 
identified. 

Especially as for new project, the Company must get 
advice from reliable consultants before deciding to join. 
Concurrently, the Company shall continue.

on tHe otHer Hand, groUnd clearance is a difficUlt 
issUe tHat May lead to cost increase and Project 
Prolongation. 

rIsKs In escAlAtIon 

Risk of escalation is expected to climb up in 2017 due 
to the impact of the strong increase in large projects 
in big cities as well as the possibility of increase in 

crude oil price and the appreciation of US dollar. 

management methods

Apply adjustable price in payment terms for large projects 
which construction time are longer than 12 months. 

Proactively collect information and deploy material 
procurement contracts prior to project implementation.

flUctUations in Prices of Materials, 
ManPower and eXcHange rate Have 
direct effects on tHe Project Profit. 
good ManageMent of escalation risk 
not only HelPs tHe coMPany accoMPlisH 
oUr Profit target bUt also contribUtes 
to cost MiniMization for clients. 

risk ManageMent (continUed)
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rIsK In FInAncIAl Investment AnD merger & AcQuIsItIon

Main risks include the assessment 
of the feasibility of investment 
projects, and valuation and 

governance of target companies before 
and after acquisition, not to mention 
legal risks which cannot be ignored.

management methods

In order to properly manage the risks associated with financial investment 
and mergers and acquisitions, the Company has established the Board 
of Investment composed of experienced professionals and specialists 
from financial firms and investment funds. The Board of Investment is 
responsible for identifying and evaluating investment opportunities to 
advise the Board of Management prior to investments.

In addition to the establishment of the Board of Investment within the 
company, outsourcing experts and lawyers for investment advice is also 
essential. Financial investments and mergers and acquisitions, therefore, 
should be exercised with a great caution.

eXPanding and diversifying bUsiness activities reqUires tHe coMPany to be More aggressive 
in financial investMents and acqUisitions. However, tHis is a very risky area, esPecially wHen 
coteccons Has very little eXPerience in tHis field. 

rIsKs In eQuIpment Investment

Investment in equipment is to serve the 
obvious investment risks in 2017 are 
those related to the development speed 

of the real estate market, with the greatest 
one being the investment into equipment 
specialized for high-rise construction 
among common concerns over the real 
estate market.

incorrect forecast and evalUation of tHe constrUction and real estate Market leading to 
investMent into UnsUitable eqUiPMent is a serioUs risk to tHe coMPany.

management methods

Prior to proposing for equipment investment, Investment 
Council together with Material and Equipment 
Department and the Board of Construction Research 
& Development shall and review the construction 
market, evaluate effectiveness of equipment investment, 
consider between purchasing and leasing, assess the 
ability of rotation and use of equipment, maintenance 
schedule, and equipment storage. 

To ensure a comprehensive investment in equipment 
which is still in accordance with the Company’s conditions, 
the Board of Construction Research & Development 
shall assess the construction competence and current 
equipment and then selectively study about suitable 
modern construction equipment and technologies to 
apply to Coteccons’ projects

Besides, the Company always carefully performs 
beforehand evaluations of each investment decision 
prior to implementation. The ratio of purchased and 
outsourced instruments at construction sites is retained 
at 50-50 to prevent any sudden declines in jobs.

risk ManageMent (continUed)



SUSTAINABILITY
Coteccons’ workforce at the golden age of 25-40, filled with passion, 
dedication and experience lies at the heart of Coteccons’s sustainable 
development. Mr.Nguyen Ba Duong, Coteccons’ CEO, sincerely shared: 
“Human capital is the key determinant that defined Coteccons’ today 
success. Therefore, I have always been concerning of how to provide 
best policies to our employees to express our deepest gratitude towards 
their contributions.”. Accompanying with Coteccons is the presence of 
over 3.000 sub-contractors and 70.000 workers working hand in hand at 
all construction sites. Sharing values with employees, partners and 
the community is the secret recipe that takes Coteccons further in 
the pursuit of sustainability.

sol beacH resort ( dUc viet resort)

sUstainable develoPMent rePort
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an overview of sUstainable develoPMent

Having eXPerienced a Period of raPid econoMic growtH in recent 
years, coteccons Has recognized tHe iMPortance of sUstainable 
develoPMent. 

in 2016, coteccons started to Pay More attention on issUes related to 
sUstainability in all activities of tHe coMPany and to Plan strategies 
towards sUstainable develoPMent in MediUM and long terM. 

tHe 2016 sUstainability rePort is tHe first rePort PrePared 
in accordance witH standards of inforMation disclosUre in 
sUstainability rePorting gUidelines issUed by global rePorting 
initiative (gri). coteccons’ sUstainablity rePort is condUted annUally 
to review and evalUate all sUstainable activities of coteccons and 
tHe coMPany’s affiliates.

Acknowleding and appreciating the role of sustainable development strategy 
in business, this year’s report fully presents important issues, which affect 
the nature of business of the Company and meanwhile are of the highest 
concerns among stakeholders. 

In the past year, Coteccons actively identified and analysed a list of influential 
factors which have been affecting both positively and negatively the 
Company’s business. Coteccons then categorized and prioritized based on 
the levels of impact on all stakeholders and from this, eliminated insignificant 
issues. Identifying priorities in key areas has helped Coteccons improve the 
Company’s management and control over every single issue to harmonize 
different interests of stakeholders, and at the same time to present more 
comprehensively in reports for next periods.

Data and information presented in the report comprise: Activities related 
to Coteccon’s sustainable development in 2016, Medium and long-term 
strategies towards sustainable development in the upcoming years; and 
Coteccons’ commitment with stakeholders. Some non-financial information 
presented in this report may not be as accurate as it is supposed to be due 
to the nature of quantitative measurement. However, Coteccons will strive to 
disclose the most accurate data and information available. 

contents

Coteccons’ approach towards sustainability originates from the Company’s 
long-term goal towards a sustainable development along with social 
development and environmental protection goals, thereby contributing 
positively to the development of the society as a whole.

Issues related to sustainable development goals continue to be assessed 
and considered in a relationship with the present business picture of 
Coteccons. The Company clearly indentifies key areas to perform reviews and 
improvements, as well as to assure a more comprehensive presentation for 
the Sustainability Report for the fiscal year of 2017.

aPProacHing MetHod

The report was made in Viet Nam, specializing in constructions industry, and 
presenting activities of Coteccons joint Stock Construction Corporate and the 
Company’s Affiliates.

The report was made annually in accordance with the length of a fiscal 
year, based on factual figures of Coteccons and the affiliates, starting from 
01/01/2016 to the end of 31/12/2016. Financial figures in the report was 
referred from the Consolidated Financial Report audited in 2016.

The report was made by the editors of the Sustainability Report – Coteccons 
joint Stock Construction Corporate. The report is published online at the 
website portal: www.coteccons.vn.

scoPe of tHe rePort

We are trying to meet all expectation of stakeholders and would be pleased 
to receive your sincere feedbacks. Should you have any constructive ideas or 
concerns related to the Company’s sustainability, please kindly send to:

Coteccons Communication Department
Email: bantruyenthong@coteccons.vn 

Telephone: (84) (8) 35142255 - (84) (8) 35142266

Address: 236/6 Dien Bien Phu Street, Ward 17, Binh Thanh District,  
Ho Chi Minh City.

contact inforMation
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sUstainable develoPMent activities in 2016

coteccons in iMPressive Metrics  
of sUstainable develoPMent in 2016

for all national-wide 
projects.

including Soft skills training, Integration 
Training, Division Training, Project 

Managers, Club for Potential Leaders.
including Structure – Intensive 
training course, Construction 
Finishing – Intensive training 

course, QS, MEP- Intensive training 
course, On-site training (Structure, 

Finishing, Labor Saftey, etc.) 

72 148 406
mIllIon sAFe worKIng hours hours oF generAl trAInIng hours oF proFessIonAl 

trAInIng AnD Development

events 2016

10top

sustAInABle BusIness  
In 2016 AwArDeD 
by VCCI.

100top

Best plAces to worK  
In vIet nAm AwArDeD 
And the best place to work  
in the construction industry by Anphabe

(Kindly refer more details in a Highlight of Outstanding events  
of Coteccons in 2016, on pages 26 - 27).

30%

2%
10%

16%

72%

6%

32%

32%

gENERAL 
TRAININg BY 

TARgET  
gROUPS

PROFESSIONAL 
TRAININg AND 

DEVELOPmENT BY 
TARgET 
gROUPS 

 Integration: 44 hours 
 Soft skills: 8 hours
 Division training: 48 hours
 Project Managers/Club for Potential Leaders: 48 hours

 Structure – intensive training course: 8 hours 
 Construction Finishing – intensive training course: 40 hours
 QS, MEP- Intensive training course: 64 hours
 On-site training (Structure, Finishing, Labor Saftey, etc.): 294 hours
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The Company has established 
and developed a sustainable 
engagement with stakeholders 
based on Coteccons’ core cultural 
values: Transparency, Innovation, 
Cooperation, Dedication as well as 
Shared Benefits and Commitment 
to bring long-term values for all 
stakeholders who are in partnership 
with Coteccons.

CUSTOMERS EMPLOYEES

PARTNERS

SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

THE COMMUNITY
AND SOCIETY

MEDIA

AUTHORITIES AND
THE GOVERNMENT

sUstainable engageMent witH stakeHolders

since tHe very first days, coteccons Has actively develoPed eXcellent relationsHiPs witH cUstoMers, investors, 
sUb-contractors, sUPPliers, eMPloyees, local aUtHorities, etc. coteccons identifies oUr stakeHolders on tHe 
basis of tHe iMPortance and tHe inflUence of eacH stakeHolder on tHe coMPany’s bUsiness.

Having created a professional, fair, friendly and safe working environment, 
Coteccons has actually become the second home for all employees. In 
Coteccons, employees are taken good care both physically and spiritually. 
Career development, self-improvement, job security and income stability are 
also focused in order to enable a work-life balance for all Coteccons’ employees. 
Coteccons’ lowest turnover of staff in the market is a prideful figure of the 
Company. With suitable remuneration policies and benefit package and a 
attentive care from Coteccons’ the Board of Management with all employees, 
Coteccons has always been a favorable central point attracting high-quality 
workforce, including graduates in foreign countries and specialists both in Viet 
Nam and overseas.

wIth employees

In the Company’s statement of quality policy, Coteccons firmly guarantees 
to deliver the best products for customers, perform better and better 
projects, continually and reasonably satisfy the increasing demands of 
customers. To successfully achieve this goal, Coteccons and our employees, 
sub-contractors, suppliers, and construction teams will work hand in hand 
under a shared guideline that prioritizes prestige as the first and foremost 
concern, continuously focusing on customer interests, and thereby fulfilling 
the Company’s motto: “Cooperate to success”.

wIth customers

Coteccons protects and fully enforces the rights of shareholders via sustainable 
business activities, efficient use of capital and value optimization, bringing 
increasing long-term benefits for our Shareholders.

Coteccons always fully enforces the rights of Shareholders, including: 
organizing Annual General Meeting; ensuring Shareholders rights over 
dividend payment and information access in accordance with  regulations; 
arranging welcomes and providing timely, adequate and accurate information 
to shareholders and investors; being actively transparent in information about 
the Company’s operation, and in finance statements published on mass 
media, website, and company’s publications; and equally engaging with all 
shareholders and investors.

wIth shAreholDers AnD 
Investors
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sUstainable engageMent witH stakeHolders (continUed)

Coteccons’ core business does not only strictly comply with the existing laws 
and regulations on principles and standards in construction industry but also 
continuously promotes the implementation of projects with higher standards 
to ensure that every project constructed by Coteccons reaches a sustainable 
quality. Besides, making sure the Company to fully comply with all current 
legal regulations, Coteccons duly completes all responsibilities with the 
National Budget, and closely follows the Government’s directions in the next 
phases of development.

Sub-contractors and Suppliers are among the stakeholders having an organic 
relationship with Coteccons and enormously influencing the sustainable 
development of the Company. Partnerships with Sub-contractors and Suppliers 
are being prioritized as a strategic foundation of Coteccons not only in several 
projects but also in a successful cooperation of all parties in the long term. 
Thanks to the absolute compliance with the principles of righteousness, 
fairness, shared benefit and mutual interest in the Company’s partnerships with 
sub-contractors and suppliers, Coteccons has been accompanied by thousands 
of capable and reliable sub-contractors and suppliers working hand in hand in 
all challenging projects. Having developed a transparent system which is free 
of corruptions and disturbtions out of personal interests, Coteccons’ employees 
are always earnest and enthusiastic to cooperate with all partners to deliver the 
most effective and fastest projects.

wIth AuthorItIes AnD the 
governmentwIth pArtners

Coteccons develops good relationships with all communication agencies on 
the basis of equality, transparency and legitimacy. Messages and information 
provided to media are accurate, clear, adequate and objective, providing 
a reliable source of information about the present business picture and 
upcoming strategies of the Company. Coteccons carefully resolves media 
problems with a right attitude towards the audience and with thoroughly-
considered yet decent statements against objections and judgements.

Coteccons is on our way to reach the target of USD 1 billion in revenue 
each year. Tens of thousands of jobs have been created on Coteccons’ 
projects, bringing prosperous lives for all employees and their families. 
Building a favorable working environment in which individuals can be safe, 
healthy and happy with their families after work is a social responsibility 
that Coteccons has proudly achieved. Besides the Company’s success in 
business, Coteccons clearly identifies our corporate social responsibilities. 
Every year, Coteccons spends a considerable proportion of our profit on 
organizing social activities, contributing to the social advancement towards 
a shared goal of a better and more humane society.

wIth meDIA
wIth the communIty AnD 
socIety



SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT130 ANNUAL REPORT 2016 
www.coteccons.vn

131

feedback collecting systeM for stakeHolders

following tHe cUrrent reqUireMents of 
sUstainability, coteccons Has always focUsed on 
tHe inflUence of all stakeHolders, regardless 
of tHeir significance. tHerefore, any feedbacks 
froM any stakeHolders Has always been 
considered and resolved by tHe coMPany.

Since the Company’s foundation, Coteccons 
has actively developed a strong and sustainable 
relationship with each stakeholder based on the 
core values of “Cooperation – Transparency – 
Dedication – Innovation – Commitment” and on 
corporate ethics in order to bring a long lasting 
value chain for all parties.

In 2016, issues related to sustainability continued 
to gain Coteccons’ attention. Coteccons actively 
approached and communicated in depth with 
stakeholders via different communication channels. 
Coteccons’s feedback collecting system for each 
type of stakeholders is listed in the below table.

STAkEHOLDERS APPROACHINg mETHODS mATTERS OF CONCERN

customers  » Regularly communicate via communication channels, such 
as website, email, telephone, etc.

 » Annually organize Customer General Meeting

 » Regularly meet and directly communicate

 » Coteccons’ brand and prestige in the market

 » Construction costs

 » Project quality and project schedule

 » Cooperation for mutual development

 » Construction techniques

employees  » Conduct surveys on working environment, remuneration 
and benefit policies, jobs, supervisors, colleagues, etc.

 » Deliver internal notifications

 » Provide internal and external trainings

 » Organise Annual Employee Meeting 

 » job stability, career opportunities, working environment.

 » Remuneration, benefits, and health policies

 » Training and Development policies

 » Safety equipment for on-site workers

shAreholDers AnD Investors  » Organize quarter meetings with investors

 » Organise Annual General Meeting and irregular meetings in 
case of important events

 » Regularly meet and provide direct consultations

 » Regularly communicate via communication channels: 
website, email, telephone, etc

 » The Company’s business effectiveness & efficiency 

 » Transparency, adequacy and accuracy in the Company’s 
operation and information disclosed to Shareholders

 » Rights of shareholders

pArtners  » Provide profession training and development courses for 
sub-contractors, suppliers and construction teams

 » Regularly communicate through other communication 
channels especially through website, email, telephone 

 » Organise meetings and year-end celebrations for sub-
contractors, suppliers and construction teams

 » Organise Annual Customer Meetings

 » Regularly meet and directly communicate

 » Transparency in information and equality among suppliers. 

 » Process related to payment for sub-contractors, suppliers, 
and construction teams

communIty AnD socIety  » Organise social activities in different locations throughout 
the country

 » Cooperate with local authorities to organize communial 
events

 » Cooperate with universities to grant scholarships to 
outstanding students and to recruit suitable employees for 
the Company

 » Investment policy in key economic sectors, and economic 
sustainability 

 » The Company’s active participation and contribution to 
charities, and social development.

 » Scholarships for students, internship opportunities and 
teaching facilities

AuthorItIes AnD the government  » Partake in meetings and conventions related to 
construction industry organized by the Government and 
local authorities.

 » Contribute to the development of the Contractors 
Association, Ho Chi Minh Real Estates Association.

 » Continuously update new policies and regulations issued 
by the Government.

 » Regularly connect with local authorities of regions where 
projects are constructed to deliver immediate response and 
take timely measures toward environmental issues.

 » Strict obligation of the Laws, Regulations, Guidelines 
promugated by the authorities.

 » The Company’s fulfillment of our tax obligation

 » Constructive ideas to develop the market

 » Minimization of environemt unfriendly activities.

press meDIA  » Disclose transparent information and answer interviews.

 » Open press releases about upcoming events.

 » Regularly update important information on the Company’s 
website.

 » A commitment to disclosing accurate and transparent 
information.

 » Accurate communication about all on-going and finished 
projects.

 » Calm responses and appropriate adjustments towards 
inaccurate information which is harmful to the Company’s 
prestige.
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prIncIples AnD crIterIA to IDentIFy Key AreAs

A process For evAluAtIng AnD IDentIFyIng Key AreAs

A mAtrIx oF ImportAnce

evalUation on key areas

To orient contents of corporate sustainability reports and 
periodical reports, Coteccons’ Board of Management has 
run the process of identifying and evaluating key areas 
for the Company and stakeholders. Identification and 
evaluation of key areas are based on the Company’s 
core values existing throughout the history of 12 
years in business, in the context of the recovery in real 
estate market and the resulting developments of the 
construction industry in recent years compared with that 
of the last periods.

A matrix evaluating the High-Low levels of the “Importance towards stakeholders” and the “Importance towards 
Coteccons”

Following is the process to 
evaluate and identify key areas 
performed by Coteccons:

In 2016, Coteccons’ Sustainability Report was prepared 
through evaluating key areas in a close relationship with 
the 3 pillars of Economy, Society and Environment which 
affect the Company’s business as well as the satisfaction 
of stakeholders’ expectations. An accurate identification 
of key areas is critical in ensuring a harmony of different 
interests of stakeholders.

On the basis of the evaluation of the 
Company’s performance and market 
trends, identify major areas affecting 
greatly the Company’s business and 
interests of stakeholders.

Identify key areas in a relationship 
with the Company’s performance 
and the impacts of these business 
activities to the economy, society 
and environment.

Analyse and determine the levels of 
concern of stakeholders over these 
issues.

Ensure the accuracy, earnestness 
and transparency of these issues 
through the evaluation of the Board 
of Management, and relevant units 
within the Company.

Select issues that Coteccons 
considers important to put into the 
report.

step 1 step 2 step 3 step 4 step 5

HIGH

HIGH
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Importance towards Coteccons 

Ensure the rights 
and the bene�ts of 
Shareholders and 

Investors

Sustainability-
oriented 

management

Build corporate 
culture

Ensure the 
bene�ts of 
Employees

Contribute to the 
development of 

local 
communities 

Protect 
environment
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sUstainability orientation 

Development oF sustAInABle vAlues

wHen sUstainability is sPecified in eacH develoPMent goal of coteccons, 
sUstainable valUes Have always been tHoroUgHly considered in all 
activities of tHe coMPany. in coteccons’ valUe cHain, froM tHe inPUt to 
tHe oPeration and tHe oUtPUt, tHe coMPany takes into consideration tHe 4 
following Pillars:

economy

socIety

envIronment

lABor

 » Operate effectively and efficiently: sustainable growth in profit and revenue

 » Guarantee the dividends and stock value for shareholders.

 » Act as a reliable contractor: pioneer in innovation to develop sustainably, and at the same time maintain and reinforce 
partnerships with partners to jointly deliver optimal and sustainable effectiveness for all parties involved. 

 » Create stable jobs for employees.

 » Perform social responsibility and contribute to the development of the society as a whole.

 » Create employment for local workers.

 » Efficiently use energy, water and strictly reduce sewage and dust from on-going projects.

 » Research and develop new construction techniques to minimize waste into the surrounding environment.

 » Coteccons’ corporate culture: build a professional yet bonded working environment in which employees are 
mentored, supported and developed in oder to reach the highest satisfaction both in professional and in life. 
Coteccons is also a place that treasures human capital as the most valuable asset of the Company.

a sUstainable corPorate

social resPonsibilities

environMental 
Protection

teaM bonding
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A sustAInABle corporAte 
sustAInABIlIty-orIenteD mAnAgement

EF
FI

CI
ENCY

SUSTAINABLE 
TRANSPARENT

CREATIVE

COTECCONS

at coteccons, corPorate governance is deterMined as a key factor tHat enables an effective and 
sUstainable growtH for tHe coMPany. tHerefore, coteccons esPecially focUses on develoPing of a caPable 
ManageMent systeM in accordance witH vietnaMese laws and international standards of corPorate 
governance. in 2017, coteccons sHall introdUce a Unified and consistent internal ManageMent systeM to 
control and Manage all organizational activities Professionally, transParently and effectively.

system BuIlDIng

In 2016, to strengthen the independent operation of 
the ISO Department, the Company separated the ISO 
Department and officialized it as an individual department 
with our own function of developing and maintaining the 
Company’s compliance with the ISO 9001:2008 Standard on 
management.

Additionally, to enhance the supervision on the compliance 
with operational process, the Department of Internal 
Control was established with a function of supervising the 
compliance of divisions and departments in the system, 
preventing intentional or unintentional mistakes, and 
ensuring unity and comprehensiveness in the Company’s 
management.

As part of the Company’s regulations on risk management, 
each department/ division/ unit must assess risks and 
develop a risk control system for their specialized operations.

To keep up with the pace and scale of development in 
the following years, Coteccons shall focus on building up 
a corporate governance which is in line with international 
standards to quickly integrate into the international 
competitive market, effectively harness resources, and 
ultimately create sustainable values in the long term. In 
2017, Coteccons plans to refine our comprehensive risk 
control system to facilitate the Company’s development 
goals and business strategies, as well as to gradually develop 
and deploy Assest Control System in accordance with ISO 
9001:2015.

Besides, Coteccons has developed and launched risk control 
strategies and policies, and regulations on risk assessment 
for all operations of the Company; adopted professional 
operation processes under international standards; and 
allocated resources in combination with internal control to 
ensure the highest compliance. In addition, to improve the 
employee awareness and to shape a culture of risk control, 
the Board of Management and Coteccons’ employees 
always determine risks in daily business and managerial 
decisions.

in 2017, coteccons Plans to refine oUr coMPreHensive 
risk control systeM to facilitate tHe coMPany’s 
develoPMent goals and bUsiness strategies, as well 
as to gradUally develoP and dePloy assest control 
systeM in accordance witH iso 9001:2015.

The Company has developed risk control policies, 
establishing functional departments and divisions to 
review and identify risks in a timely manner to promptly 
prevent and strictly control risks, which is in turn reinforced 
by the foundation of Board of Financial Supervision and 
the Department of Internal Control. For details of risks, 
please kindly refer to Risk Management (page 112 - 119).

rIsK control

Cash dividends shall remain stable and proportionally 
increase over time. In the period of 2010-2014, average 
dividend rate stayed at 20%; in 2014-2016, along with 
outstanding business results the figure rapidly increased 
to 50-55%, which was high and stable compared with 
that of other businesses in the industry in particular and 
in the market in general. In 2015, dividend (as of 5/2016) 
was 55%, equivalent to VND 5.500 per share. Additionally, 
in 10/2016, Coteccons issued bonus shares for existing 
shareholders with a ratio of 3:1 (03 current shares to get 
01 bonus share).

DIvIDenD polIcIes

In 2016, the Company extended the Investor Relations 
Division, as a part of Communication Department, 
functioning as a liaser between the Company and 
Shareholders and Investors.

Information about the Company are timely announced 
to Investors via the website portal: www.coteccons.vn 
and via information disclosure channel of Ho Chi Minh 
Stock Exchange (HOSE) and State Security Commission 
of Viet Nam. In which, information to be disclosed 
includes periodical information such as quarterly financial 
statements, management reports and annual reports. The 
Company makes sure to deliver information to Investors 
accurately, timely and transparently.

The Company actively communicates with domestic and 
foreign investors via meetings which are to announce 
quarterly business results or to introduce investment 
opportunities into the Company through the stock 
exchange. Besides, shareholders and investors can request 
the Company provide information which is legitimate for 
public disclosure, such as details of personnel in charge of 
information disclosure, of the Investor Relations Division 
as well as other direct communication channels, website, 
email, etc.

Investor relAtIons

sUstainability orientation (continUed)
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Founded in 2004, after 12 years of operation and development, Coteccons has become the leading construction 
company in Viet Nam with impressive growth in revenue and profit over years. Even when the construction industry 
was struggling in its hard times, Coteccons always put significant efforts to conquer challenges and to find out effective 
business solutions in order to fulfill and excellently overachieve proposed business goals.

In 2016, Coteccons’ consolidated revenue reached VND 20,783 billion and  after-tax profit reached VND 1,422 billion, 
which were 26% and 78% more than the targets proposed in the 2016 Shareholder General Annual Meeting, and 
equivalent to an increase of 52% and 113% over the year of 2015, respectively. 2016 marked the Company’s 5th 
consecutive year of remarkable growth of over 20% both in revenue and profit, signaling a sustainable development 
stage in such a fluctuating market as Viet Nam.

Not only striving to reach business goals, during our development process, Coteccons has always been researching and 
applying new construction techniques and materials both in Viet Nam and around the world to improve the Company’s 
construction capability and effectiveness, contributing to the development of Viet Nam construction industry as well as 
reducing product price.

With our achievements, Coteccons has always fulfilled the Company’s tax obligation towards the National Budget. With 
the present development trend of the Company, the proportion of Coteccons’ contribution to the National Budget will 
be increasing over years.

sustAInABle economIc growth

in 2016, coteccons’ consolidated revenUe reacHed vnd 20,783 billion and after-taX Profit reacHed vnd 1,422 
billion, wHicH were 26% and 78% More tHan tHe targets ProPosed in tHe 2016 sHareHolder general annUal Meeting, 
and eqUivalent to an increase of 52% and 113% over tHe year of 2015, resPectively. 2016 Marked tHe coMPany’s 
5tH consecUtive year of reMarkable growtH of over 20% botH in revenUe and Profit, signaling a sUstainable 
develoPMent stage in sUcH a flUctUating Market as viet naM.

cUrrently, coteccons’ revenUe PredoMinantly coMes froM constrUction, tHe coMPany’s core bUsiness. 
tHerefore, to develoP sUstainably in tHe following years, coteccons MUst be More sensitive in tHe coMPany’s 
bUsiness strategies. to take advantage of new trends in real estate Market, coteccons Has been researcHing 
Many design and bUild solUtions for new residential segMents. in tHe MeantiMe, to save tiMe and ManPower, 
tHereby increasing Profit Margin, tHe coMPany sHall ProMote researcH and develoPMent in tecHnologies and 
constrUction tecHniqUes.

To maintain and continue the Company’s sustainability in the upcoming years, 
Coteccons has devised 2 main strategies towards sustainable development as 
follows:

Continue developing the core business of construction

 » Research and develop Design and Build Model for new segments

 » BIM

 » Invest in new technologies and construction techniques

 » Improve productivity

Expand business and lessen dependence on the business cycle of the 
construction industry

 » Establish the Board of Investment

 » Diversify revenue sources: infrastructure, real estate, etc

1

2

Research and develop Design and Build model for new residential segments

In 2013, Coteccons was the first construction company to implement Design and Build Model. So far, revenue from 
Design and Build projects has accounted for 40% of Coteccons’ total revenue. Through practical implementation, 
Coteccons’ Design and Build model in 2016 has been refined and upgraded into a new version, greatly improving 
designing and building capability of the Company.

Revenue coming from Design and Build projects is projected to increase significantly in the next 5 years until Investors 
get more familiar with the model. This projection is based on a state of affair that Design and Build not only offers 
more and more benefits for Investor in terms of cost efficiency and time saving, but also builds trust in end users for 
Coteccons’ products.

Moreover, to take advantage of the new trends, Coteccons has initiated research and development of Design and Build 
model in other segments, especially middle-income residential houses which are expected to boom in the following 
years.

contInue DevelopIng constructIon As A core BusIness

Indicator 
(Billion VND)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Average 
growth

BuSINESS RESuLTS      

Revenue 4,477 6,190 7,634 13,669 20,783 47%

Profit before tax 300 393 464 927 1,763 56%

Profit after tax 219 280 357 733 1,422 60%

Profit after tax attributable to Parent 
Company’s shareholders

219 257 327 666 1,422 60%

sUstainability orientation (continUed)
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 » Building Information model

In 2014, BIM Department was founded, aiming at bringing up advanced 
solutions for Coteccons’ management of Design and Build projects. Currently, 
BIM Department has been invested in terms of human resources and the latest 
technologies to improve the simulation of designing and building process. 
Furthermore, BIM Department acts as a bridge linking subcontractors with 
construction teams in the implementation of detailed construction components 
through its function as a design consultancy.

At present, Coteccons is expanding the application 
of BIM to the operation of the involved sub-
contractors. In 2016, Coteccons experimented this 

idea with the Diamond Lotus project. The combination 
did help to upgrade BIM model, ensuring accuracy and 
connection among Design Management Center – Project 
Management Teams– Sub-contractors with BIM acting as 
a coordinator.

In 2017, Coteccons shall continue to implement BIM 
in a larger scale, especially with complicated projects. 
Meanwhile, Coteccons shall also encourage subcontractors 
to apply BIM in Design and Build projects, enabling an 
easier management of design and more updated yet 
consistent information in order to control the volume 
of designs, especially with MEP projects. In the business 
plan for the next 3 years, one of the sustainability criteria 
of the Company is investment in technologies. In 2017, 
Coteccons shall apply BIM in 50% of the Design and Build 
projects and in 2019, the target is 70%. (Please refer more 
information about BIM Department at page 78).

In the future, apart from BIM, Coteccons shall invest in 
new advanced technologies in the world to facilitate the 
implementation of large-scale projects. With an effective 
techonological support, Coteccons can minimize mistakes 
in installation, improving quality and productivity. 
Correspondingly, construction schedule and manpower 
shall be reduced considerably.

 » Invest in technologies and new construction 
techniques

In 2017, Coteccons shall accelerate the research and 
development in construction techniques through 
refinements, zoning and in-depth researches. Also, 
Coteccons shall experiment some new construction 
techniques such as concrete cover walls to connect the 
block with the floor and AAC brick (Autoclaved aerated 
concrete brick). The adoption of these new techniques 
shall reduce Coteccons’ dependence on manpower 
and their skills. In the meantime, quality control shall be 
become easier because the durability of project surfaces is 
to be improved significantly.

Moreover, Coteccons shall carefully consider environment 
conservation activity by applying new construction 
techniques such as: using unbaked bricks, reducing 
plastering to diminish toxic fumes and dust on construction 
sites.

 » Improve productivity

One of the first and foremost objective of Coteccons in 
2017 is to find solutions to maintain the same construction 
time and project quality while reducing the number 
of workers required. In detail, Coteccons targets to use 
3 employees, compared with the average of 5 on the 
market, to complete the same amount of work. Upon 
the fulfillment of this objective, Coteccons shall reduce 
considerably manpower, costs and effort needed, thereby 
providing the best benefits and profits for all stakeholders.

Afterwards, BIM Department marked the year of 2016 with the application 
of BIM into practice, providing a remarkable support for Design and Build 
projects. Noteworthily, in The Landmark 81 project, BIM Department 

participated into the whole construction process for the first time and successfully 
supported Project Management Team in assessing the level of difficulty of project 
execution from the fundament to beam sections. With the great assistance of 
BIM, Coteccons completed 17 large beam sections with the height of 2,5m, the 
width of 2,5m and the length of 9m in sharp 15 days, ahead the usual schedule 
of other projects having less-complicated beam sections such as Novotel Saigon 
(18 days), Delta River (20 days), etc.

After years of continuous research and development, BIM Department has been 
affirming our increasing importance in supporting construction sites and creating a 
good reputation for Coteccons with the application of BIM in construction projects 
in Viet Nam market. Additionally, Coteccons is having a representative in the National 
BIM Board – Construction Department of Viet Nam. Coteccons has also significantly 
contributed to the technological development of Viet Nam’s construction industry 
in general. In 2016, Coteccons won the 3rd prize in the competition named Tekla 
BIM Award Asean with the Goldview project, highly recognized for many practical 
applications such as the combination of various construction methods and the 
blue-prints for structure construction and MEP construction.

biM dePartMent Marked 
tHe year of 2016 witH tHe 
aPPlication of biM into 
Practice, Providing a 
reMarkable sUPPort for 
design and bUild Projects.

sUstainability orientation (continUed)
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Having a strong brand naMe in tHe 
Market along witH establisHed 
eXPerience as a contractor, 
coteccons strongly believes tHis 
is tHe rigHt tiMe to eXPand tHe 
coMPany’s investMent into new 
Markets esPecially wHen tHe 
oPPortUnity sHow itself, wHicH 
will offer More added valUes to 
tHe coMPany.

Establish the Board of Investment

In May 2016, Coteccons’ Board of Investment was founded and has been 
functioning to research and consider investment opportunities which can 
yield new earnings for the Company in the future. With the Company’s prestige 
and 12-year-experience history in the construction industry, Coteccons has 
certain competitive advantages when investing into real estates market.

In 2016, Coteccons successfully raised VND 1,762 billion from strategic 
investors, both in Viet Nam and overseas. With this capital, Coteccons is 
looking for new investment opportunities in 2017 onwards. Having a strong 
brand name in the market along with established experience as a contractor, 
Coteccons strongly believes this is the right time to expand the Company’s 
investment into new markets especially when the opportunity show itself, 
which will offer more added values to the Company.

Besides, in the Company’s medium and long-term orientation, Coteccons shall 
research on M&A with some companies or partners to expand the Company’s 
value chain. This is also a rare opportunity for Coteccons to leverage our 
existing advantage to gain more active control on the input quality.

expAnD BusIness AnD 
reDuce DepenDence on 
the BusIness cycle oF the 
constructIon InDustry

Diversify revenue sources 

In November 2016, FCC Infrastructure Investment joint Stock Company, one 
of the Coteccons’ affiliates, completed and officially commenced the first toll 
collection for  Phu Ly-Ha Nam Crossover. This success has laid a foundation 

for next infrastructure projects that Coteccons and the Company’s partners 
are going after. Apart from income from the construction industry, other 
revenue sources have been developed in accordance with Coteccons’ goal 
of increasing the contribution of other sources in Coteccons’ income. For the 
next 5 years, these sources are projected to account for 50% the Company’s 
profit. On this basis, Coteccons can mitigate the influence of the construction 
and real estate industries, which are periodical in nature, on the Company’s 
business activities. This goal is completely feasible because of the high demand 
for infrastructure (intercity highways, municipal subways, civil infrastructure 
and other urban infrastructure projects, etc.) in such a developing country 
as Viet Nam, combined with Coteccons’ advantage in human and financial 
capitals available for the proposed business plan.

sUstainability orientation (continUed)
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HUMan resoUrce develoPMent

identifying HUMan caPital as tHe key 
deterMinant of tHe coMPany’s sUstainable 
develoPMent, tHroUgHoUt tHe Process of oUr 
foUndation and develoPMent, coteccons Has 
focUsed on establisHing a Professional – 
resPonsible – ProdUctive workforce, wHicH 
Has always been considered as one of tHe 
Most iMPortant long-terM objectives of tHe 
coMPany. tHe acHieveMent of tHis goal relies 
on a favorable working environMent wHicH 
nUtUres and ProMotes eMPloyee engageMent 
and connection on tHe basis of beHavorial 
standards, Professional training and 
develoPMent, Professional etHics and tHe 
corPorate cUltUre.

Coteccons treasures every value created and 
contribution made by each employee to the 
overall success of the Company. Therefore, creating 
a favorable working environment which nourishes 
fairness, proactiveness, innovation regardless 
of position, age, gender, education level, social 
state, and origin where each individual rejoices 
the same opportunities for working and training 
towards their individual career development and 
success is the foremost important objective that 
Coteccons is targeting in the upcoming years.

A Professional - Responsible - Productive workforce 
is the key competitive edge of Coteccons. In the 
pursuit of a continuing leading position in Viet Nam 

market and a strong hold in the international playground, 
Coteccons has always focused on the development 
of a high-quality workforce capable of satisfying the 
increasingly strict demands of the market.

Coteccons always offers integration trainings for new 
recruits as Coteccons understands that the begin of 
an employee’s journey with Coteccons is when he/
she most needs trainings on both profession related 
issues and on the Company’s corporate culture. 
Additionally, Coteccons organizes professional trainings 
and development for different target groups: On-
site training, MEP training, Finishing training, On-job 
training, etc. not only to equip necessary knowledge and 
experience but also to inspire and motivate employees 
to produce better productivity. Especially, Coteccons 

arranges regular occupational safety trainings for both 
the Company’s employees and construction workers to 
improve their awareness about safety at work.

In our long-term strategies, human resource 
development shall always be at the heart of Coteccons’ 
orientation to develop a Professional – Responsible 
– Effective workforce. In 2017, Coteccons’ Technoloy 
Division shall build an E-Learning system which allows 
a quick access to knowledge and practical experience, 
better facilitating on-site training. Along with the 
development of E-Learning, the Company also builds 
up an online testing system.

Moreover, the Company shall pay more attention to 
the evaluation of training actitivites, especially for 
Supervisors and Project Managers. Training curriculum 
shall be amended on a regular basis to update and 
improve the employees’ knowledge and skills.

humAn resource structure; remunerAtIon AnD BeneFIt polIcIes For employees Development oF A proFessIonAl AnD sKIllFul worKForce

coteccons objectively and rigHteoUsly 
evalUates tHe contribUtion of eacH eMPloyee 
and Provides tHe best conditions for eMPloyees 
to floUrisH. tHerefore, eacH individUal at 
coteccons Holds a HigH sense of resPonsibility, 
knowledge attainMent, creativity and a rigHt 
attitUde towards Perfection at all asPects. at 
tHe Heart of coteccons’continUoUs iMProveMent 
lies HUMan resoUrce Policies, oriented towards 
delivering tHe Most ProdUctive yet engaging 
and sUitable working environMent for all 
eMPloyees.

With a requirement of high-quality human 
resources to facilitate the Company’s expansion, 
Coteccons regularly considers and adjusts 

the Company’s remuneration policies in accordance 
with employees’ capabilities, consistently ensuring a 
competitive and favorable level above the industry’s 
base line for Coteccons’ employees. 

Remuneration policies are implemented flexibly in a 
harmony with the Company’s business picture, and based 
fundamentally on job performance and position held in 
order to effectively motivate employees’ innovations, 
talents and contribution to the overall development of 
the Company.

In addition to salary, Coteccons has regular rewards on 
public holidays. Employees are also entitled to irregular 
bonuses and commendations for business innovations 
either in group or in person. 

(Please refer details in Human Resource Report, page 48)
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HUMan resoUrce develoPMent (continUed)

Type Function Benefits

e-learning  » Online learning

 » Online testing

 » Quick access

 » Consistent contents

 » Visual Aids

 » Time and manpower saving

Target Group Courses in 2016 Courses in 2017

For workers  » On-site training for new workers

 » Skill training, with completion certificates

 » Occupational Safety training

 » Tiếp tục đào tạo trực tiếp tại công trường 
cho công nhân mới, nâng cao tay nghề và 
ý thức an toàn lao động.

For employees  » Finishing training

 » Structure training

 » MEP training

 » On-site training (to re-equip knowledge)

 » Training for trainers: soft skills

 » Training on the applications of BIM.

 » ISO education, risk management and 
internal control.

 » Soft-skill training: Conversation skills, 
Negotiation skills, Time management, and 
Teamwork, etc.

 » Foreign Language education.

 » Professional training and development.
Due to the shortage of a well-
educated workforce in Viet Nam, 
controlling occupational safety and 
sanitation is not an easy task. Regular 
trainings and strict reward and 
penalty policies shall be emphasized 
to ensure the compliance of all 
employees and workers. The 
availability of safety equipment and 
a thorough training as well as a close 
supervision on the use of these 
equipment are important as well.

witH risks being Part of tHe natUre of tHe constrUction indUstry, one of tHe core objectives towards coteccons’ 
sUstainability is to iMProve eMPloyees’ awareness aboUt and coMPliance witH occUPantional safety, esPecially 
tHat of on-site workers, and to strictly control tHe occUPational safety and sanitation at constrUction sites 
to ensUre strictly tHe above Mentioned coMPliance. 

Improve employee AwAreness ABout occupAtIonAl sAFety

The Company’s Safety Board has been functioning to train employee 
awareness about occupational safety and sanitation and to ensure employees’ 
compliance via a system of rewards and penalties. In 2016, Coteccons’ Safety 
Board gained noticeable improvements and fully met the the Board of 
Management’s requirements, thereby bringing a safe working environment 
for employees and workers, and partly contributing to the affirmation of 
Coteccons’ brand value. 

In 2016, Coteccons collaborated with authorized units to improve the 
awareness of Fire Protection at construction sites. Meanwhile, Coteccons 
supervised on the compliance of Fire Protection at construction sites to 
prevent any fire or explosions.

On each construction site, Coteccons establishes a team of Fire Protection and 
the total number of Fire Protection teams in 2016 was 50, corresponding to 
the number of projects in the same year. Besides, a strict compliance of Fire 
Protection activity was always included in trainings about occupational safety 
which were organised for all construction employees on the weekly basis.

In 2017, Coteccons shall promote Fire Protection activity to make sure each 
employee is well aware of the importance of fire protection at his/her own 
work space. In which, Coteccons shall continue simulations and internal 
trainings about Fire Protection. Furthermore, Coteccons shall work with local 
Fire Protection Teams to deliver trainings and simulations on all construction 
sites. The goal is to completely prevent any possible fire and explosions on 
Coteccons’ construction sites in 2017.

(Please refer details in Occupational Safety Board, page 85 - 87).
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Club of Potential Leaders (CPL) is a playground for experience sharing 
among key leaders and potential managerial personnel of Coteccons. CPL is 
considered as the most effective activity to improve bonding, and to nurture 
passion and commitment among all employees. Through this activity, 
Coteccons’ corporate culture has been spread out widely. The year of 2016  
is the 5th year of CPL’s operation with the attendance of more than 200 
members, with 45 new members and 80 members appointed into managerial 
positions in the Company. The Club is organized monthly focusing on different 
topics to satisfy the proposed goals as listed below:

 » Train soft skills for managerial personnel.

 » Provide a sharing environment and a thorough development orientation 
from leaders to members.

 » Reinforce the confidence in the Company’s managerial personnel.

 » Evaluate and recommend competent personnel for managerial positions.

 » Design diverse and flexible programs that fit the Company’s performance.

2017 Orientation for the Club of Potential Leaders:
 » Expand into more programs to attract more members.

 » Consider the application of transparent reward and penalty policies and 
fair evaluation.

 » Supervise on the development of each member.

 » Specilize topics after categorizing members.

 » Become a key determinant in personnel normination.

different froM otHer Professional 
training and develoPMent 
activities in coteccons, cPl 
focUses on soft skills sUcH as 
negotiation, convincing, cHange 
ManageMent, etc. MeanwHile, tHis 
is a valUable oPPortUnity for 
coteccons’ key leaders to Meet, 
sHare and learn eXPerience froM 
eacH otHer. 

cluB oF potentIAl leADers
yeAr 2016

no. construction site number of 
simulation

number of 
attendees

collaborating 
unit 2017 plan

1 THE MILLENNIUM 1 30
Fire Protection 
Team - District 4 

Work with the Fire Protection Team in 
District 4 to simulate how to extinguish fire 
and save lives (2017)

2
THE SPIRIT OF 
SAIGON

2 195 Internal training

3
SAIGON SOUTH 
SERVICED 
APARTMENTS (SSSA)

1 25
Fire Protection 
Team- District 7

2nd Simulation combined with another 
simulatino of how to save lives for all 
on-site workers

1 100 Internal training

4 DAI QUANG MINH 1 380
Fire Protection 
Team- District 2

2nd Simulation combined with another 
simulatino of how to save lives for all 
on-site workers

5
VINHOME 
CENTRAL PARK-
LANDMARK81(LM81)

1 61
Fire Protection 
Team - Binh 
Thanh District

Work with the Fire Protection Team in 
Binh Thanh District to simulate how 
to extinguish fire and save lives at the 
construction site (5/2017)

6
VINHOMES GOLDEN 
RIVER

1 50
Fire Protection 
Team - District 1

7 THE GOLD VIEW 1 53
Fire Protection 
Team - District 4 

Work with the Fire Protection Team 
in District 4 to simulate how to 
extinguish fire and save lives at the 
construction site (6/2017)

8 COTECCONS OFFICE 1 75
Fire Protection 
Team - Binh 
Thanh District

9

VINHOME TAN CANG 
TOWER  (L1, L2, L3, 
P2, P3, P4, P5, P6, P7, 
VINSCHOOL)

1 80
Fire Protection 
Team - Binh 
Thanh District

TOTAL 11 1,049

HUMan resoUrce develoPMent (continUed)

yeAr 2017

no. construction site 2017 plan

1 M-ONE TAN KIENG
Work with the Fire Protection Team in District 7 to simulate how to extinguish fire 
and save lives at the construction site (6/2017)

2
PAIHONG 
MANUFACTURE

Work with the Fire Protection Team No.66 in Binh Duong to simulate fire protection 
at the construction site (4/2017)

3 DIAMOND LOTUS
Work with the Fire Protection Team in District 8 to simulate how to extinguish fire 
and save lives at the construction site (5/2017)

4 CONDOTEL DA NANG
Work with the Fire Protection Team in Son Tra, Da Nang to simulate fire protection 
at the construction site (7/2017)

5
PANORAMA NHA 
TRANG

Work with the Fire Protection Team in Nha Trang, Khanh Hoa to simulate fire 
protection at the construction site (8/2017)

6
BAC NINH 
WAREHOUSE

Work with the Fire Protection Team in Tien Son, Bac Ninh to simulate fire protection 
at the construction site (3/2017)



SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT150 ANNUAL REPORT 2016 
www.coteccons.vn

151

With the topic being 
“Constructing sustainable 
values”, 2016 was the 

first year Coteccons initiated a 
standardization of sustainable values 
in our business activities, including 
our commitments to environmental 
conservation. Environmental 
objective shall be emphasized in 
the evaluation of Coteccons’ supply 
chain, investment, and risk control. 
Coteccons believes that this goal 
shall be more achievable with a full 
involvement and collaboration of all 
stakeholders, especially those who 
are in the Company’s value chain 
such as Partners, Sub-contractors, 
and Construction teams. Hence, 

as a Market leader, coteccon 
deterMines to focUs on long-terM 
sUstainable yet environMental 
friendly solUtions.  tHe 
coMPany fUlly acknowledges 
tHe iMPortance of botH direct 
and indirect cooPeration witH 
tHe coMMUnity to work Hand in 
Hand towards a clean, safe and 
sUstainable environMent for tHe 
good of oUr fUtUre generations.

besides evaluation criteria on 
management and social aspects, 
environment criterion is among 
Coteccons’ highest concerns in 
order to minimize advese impacts 
on the environment.

At present, statistical figures about 
environment reports are not yet 
available as all evaluation criteria and 
processes are in the development 
stage and to be piloted in Coteccons 
and on several construction sites 
in 2017. To lay a premise for the 
standardization of sustainable values 
in the Company’s business activities, 
in 2016, Coteccons performed the 
following practices:

In 2017, Coteccons shall actively 
partake and encourage employees’ 
participation in environmental 

movements such as planting 
trees at local areas or running for 
environment. To raise employee 
awareness, Coteccons shall apply 
strict regulations and principles 
to avoid any wasteful practices in 
offices and on construction sites.

Additionally, Coteccons shall 
continually research and develop 
new construction techniques and 
materials to minimize adverse 
impacts on the environment during 

Construction site Practice

 » Promote education about environmental conservation.

 » Improve construction sanitation by covering 
construction sites to protect the neighborhood, and 
by cleaning the construction surface.

 » Educate about water, electricity and paper saving on 
construction sites.

 » Through communication and conversations on 
construction sites.

 » Through new processes proposed by Coteccons’ 
Safety Department for wide adoption and control.

 » Through encouragement on the efficient use of clean 
water to avoid excessiveness.

Office Practice

 » Educate and improve employee awareness about the 
efficient use of energy.

 » Promote water, electricity and paper saving in office 
buildings.

 » Through system-wide communication via different 
channels: online news, internal disclosures, etc.

 » Through encouragement on switching off the 
electricity and air conditioners if not in use.

construction. With an upcoming 
trend of using 50% baked and 50% 
unbaked bricks, Coteccons shall 
experiment the use of ACC bricks 
(Autoclaved aerated concrete brick) 
in early 2017 on several construction 
sites. The Company is also planning 
to use 100% unbaked bricks within 
the course of 5 years to reduce 
emission gas into the surrounding 
environment.

Moreover, Coteccons is 
experimenting some new 
construction techniques such as 
concrete cover walls to connect 

the block with the floor, reducing 
plastering and dust on construction 
sites and the neighborhood.

On the basis of evaluating 
Coteccons’ impacts on environment, 
in 2017, Coteccons shall conduct 
idea collection and develop 
“Environmential Conservation 
Guide” to alleviate severe impacts 
of the Company’s business activities 
on environment. The Guide provides 
instructions on technological 
and specific solutions in the 
environmental conservation aspect 
of Coteccons.

environMental conservation
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environMental conservation (continUed)

Pollution sources Technological solutions Specific solutions

solid waste from administrative 
activities: broken printer, pens, 
carton boxes, fruit peels, etc.

 » Appoint certain trash bins at each 
storey and collect trash at the end 
of office hour.

 » Regularly clean both the inside 
and the outside areas of the 
building.

 » Sign contracts with units 
specializing in domestic garbage 
collection.

 » Educate and improve employee 
awareness in printing to reduce the 
amount of paper waste

 » Encourage the use of recycled 
stationeries such as pen and plastic 
stationeries.

Fumes from vehicles of employees 
and machines at construction sites.

Dust coming from construction 
sites that worsens environmental 
pollution, eventually resulting 
in adverse health effects on the 
surrounding residents.

 » Equip air ventilation to control air 
flows in parking lots in building 
and on construction sites.

 » Carefully cover construction sites 
to prevent dust from affecting the 
neighborhood.

 » Partake in environmental activities 
organized by local authorities.

 » Promote 5S program: developing 
a green, clean and scientific 
working environment.

 » Adopt strictly regulations on 
occupational safety such as 
wearing safety clothes, protection 
glasses, masks, gloves, etc.

pollutants from construction 
activities such as liquid, dust, fumes 
and construction waste (slabs, cover 
canvas, etc.)

 » Carefully control procedures for 
environmental sanitation.

 » Carefully cover construction sites 
to prevent dust from affecting the 
neighborhood.

 » Sign contracts with units 
specializing in domestic garbage 
collection.

 » Each construction site has to 
plan how to use clean water and 
how to control waste water as 
well as how to treat sewage and 
construction waste in each stage 
of construction.

 » Educate on-site workers to use 
materials efficiently, and avoid 
excessiveness.

 » Adopt strictly regulations on 
occupational safety such as 
wearing safety clothes, protection 
glasses, masks, gloves, etc.

Dangerous waste such as 
fluorescent bulbs, oily cloths and 
cleaning chemicals used in the 
construction process.

 » Contain, categorize and collect 
in accordance with the circular 
12/2011/TT-BTNMT dated 18th 
April 2011 about hazardous waste.

 » Sign contracts with units 
specializing in containing and 
transporting hazardous waste.

 » Strictly comply with rules about 
the time allowed for containing 
hazardous waste and chemicals.

 » Plan for an efficient use, and avoid 
any excessive uses.

 » Contain hazardous waste and 
chemicals in separate containers 
in isolated places, and carefully 
label as dangerous.

 » Improve supervision on 
construction sites, especially at 
places containing hazardous 
materials and equipment.

 » Adopt strictly regulations about 
occupational safety such as 
wearing safety clothes, protection 
glasses, masks, gloves, etc.

ProdUct resPonsibility

Check on the compatibility among Architecture Drawings, Structure and MEP.
Develop detailed construction drawing to identify differences or incompatible 
features for prompt adjustment before implementation.

Based on the detailed construction drawing to make a construction sample 
and re-assess the compatibility and adjust accordingly (if necessary).

The detailed construction drawing is the basis for project construction and 
later acceptance. Construction must be performed in accordance with the 
detailed drawing to deliver a proper project quality.

process  oF proJect 
QuAlIty control 

All inputs have to go through a rigorous testing process from the very first 
step of choosing prestigious suppliers in order to ensure the fulfillment of all 
project requirements. The qualified materials will then be carefully tested for 
re-assessment before putting into a mass use for projects.

Regulations on using and testing materials are approved by Technology 
Division, and then instructed to Project Management Teams on construction 
sites before implementation.

rAw mAterIAls
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coteccons’ contribUtion to tHe social develoPMent 

contribUtion to  
tHe national bUdget in 2016 vnd 586 billion

70,000 

3,000 

Aside from direct economic values, in 2016, Coteccons and our affiliates 
continued to make a considerable contribution to the National Budget.

In 2016, Coteccons created 
jobs for approximately 

Coteccons has attracted nearly 

LOCAL WORKERS

partners committed to be a part of 
Coteccons’ long-term partnerships.

With 70 projects (on-going and finished) spreading from Quang Ninh to Phu 
Quoc, Coteccons is currently attracting a considerable number of workers 
to our construction sites. In 2016, Coteccons created jobs for approximately 
70,000 local workers. The figure increased by 30% compared with that of 2015 
and is projected to continually increase by another 30% in 2017. Creating jobs 
and offering stable earnings for tens thousands local households is a positive 
contribution of the Company to the society’s prosperity and welfare.

As a leading construction company in Viet Nam, Coteccons always strives to 
maintain the most favorable policies and commitments for partners, including 
Suppliers, Sub-contractors and Construction teams. Our partnerships are 
built upon a concrete foundation of Clarity, Transparency and Sincerity 
towards long-term beneficial cooperative relationships. Every year, Coteccons 
organizes meetings to engage with construction teams and a year-end 
celebration to express our gratitude to partners, closing off a successful year 
of effective cooperation. Moreover, the Company arranges regular meetings 
to communicate Coteccons’ policies and culture with construction teams 
to enhance their understanding and engagement with the Company. With 
nation – wide projects throughout different provinces in Viet Nam, Coteccons 
confidently commits to creating a stable and sustainable workforce for our 
partners. Thanks to our wholehearted commitments, Coteccons has attracted 
nearly 3,000 partners committed to be a part of Coteccons’ long-term 
partnerships. 

creAtIng JoBs At locAl 
AreAs

engAgIng In communAl AnD 
socIAl ActIvItIes

commIttIng to creAte A 
long-term worKForce For 
pArtners

VnD1.5 billion

VnD1.6 billion

Total value of 600 gifts in 
nghe an – ha Tinh – nam 

Dinh and Thai binh

Total cash of Raised and 
contributed to the “To the 

Central of Viet Nam”

The charity was funded by voluntary donations partly from Coteccons’ 
employees’ salaries and partly from the Company’s Union Fund with details 
as follows:

 » Gave more than 600 gifts for the poor and difficult househoulds, severely 
illed people, solitary elderly, disabled children in Nghe An – Ha Tinh – Nam 
Dinh and Thai Binh with a total value of VND 1.6 billion.

 » Equipped 15 computers with a total value of VND 200,000,000 for students 
in Kindergartens, Primaries and Secondaries in Binh Minh Town, Nam Truc 
Ward, Nam Dinh Province with an aim of providing a proper access to and 
nurture the dreams of information technologies for students in remote 
areas.

 » Conributed to “Hearts Connect Hearts Fund” and sponsored “Binh Thanh 
Gratitude Fund” with a total amount of VND 200,000,000.

 » Raised and contributed a total of VND 1,500,000,000 in cash (equivalent 
to one-day salary per employee), and clothes as well as other necessities 
to the “To the Central of Viet Nam” program to support the 2 flood-prone 
areas of Quang Binh and Ha Tinh with a shared spirit of “The leaves protect 
tattered ones” to assist the local people in recovering from the passing 
flood and preparing for upcoming one.

 » In addition, Coteccons directly worked with Binh Thanh District Union to 
give presents for unfortunate children in Binh Loi Warmhouse (Binh Thanh 
District), bringing them a warm and cheerful Rooster New year of 2017. 
Coteccons also sponsored hospital fees for severely-illed employees with a 
total value of 150,000,000 VND.

in addition to bUsiness sUccess, 
in 2016, coteccons actively 
contribUted to tHe develoPMent 
of tHe coMMUnity via social 
cHarity activities. tHis was a 
good oPPortUnity for coteccons 
to eXPress oUr goodwill and 
resPonsibility towards tHe 
society develoPMent, and oUr 
wisHes to sHare and HelP difficUlt 
and UnfortUnate circUMstances. 
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big uniVersiTies in 
VieT nam5

Cotecons has been collaborating 
in a recruitment program named 

“Talented engineers” with

in recent years, cotecons Has been collaborating 
witH 5 big Universities in viet naM, inclUding HcM 
PolytecHnologies University, HcM arcHitectUre 
University, danang PolytecHnologies University, 
Hn PolytecHnogy University, and constrUction 
University, in a recrUitMent PrograM naMed “talented 
engineers”: vnd 3.5 billion.

With training courses and seminars organized by 
Coteccons at these Universities and scholarships and 
internship granted for the students, the collaboration 
between Coteccons and the universities did and will 
enable the Company to train and recruit selective talents. 

In 2017, Coteccons shall continue the “Talented 
engineers” recruitment program not only to build up 
a young and talented team of employees but also to 
inspire students to follow their career in the construction 
industry, making the program ultimately become a 
necessary and practical contribution to the development 
of the community and society.

contrIButIng to unIversItIes

coteccons’ contribUtion to tHe social develoPMent (continUed)



Since our first days, Coteccons’ Board of Management has managed and 
operated the Company in accordance with a transparency orientation. 
Procedures of payment and signed contracts are clearly developed 
and disclosed for Investors and Shareholders. Every year, the Company 
organizes Development Cooperation Meeting for sub-contractors, 
construction workforce under a spirit of transparent and fair sharing 
of policies. In the meantime, as a listed company, Coteccons always 
obliges strictly regulations on information disclosure. Transparency 
in management shall appeal more customers, partners and 
shareholders to join and accompany with Coteccons in the long 
run, as well shall lay a concrete foundation for the Company’s 
sustainable development.

TRANSPARENCY

Masteri tHao dien

financial stateMents
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the compAny

Coteccons Construction joint Stock Company (“the Company”) is a shareholding company incorporated under the 
Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to Business Registration Certificate (“BRC”) No. 4103002611 issued by the 
Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City on 24 August 2004 and the following amended BRC and 
Enterprise Registration Certificate (“ERC”):

Amended BRC/ERC No. Date
4103002611 – 1st 10 january 2005
4103002611 – 2nd 19 April 2006
4103002611 – 3rd 24 October 2006
4103002611 – 4th 5 june 2007
4103002611 – 5th 20 August 2007
4103002611 – 6th 5 january 2008
4103002611 – 7th 22 May 2009
0303443233 – 8th 7 September 2009
0303443233 – 9th 23 August 2010
0303443233 – 10th 10 September 2010
0303443233 – 11th 7 May 2012
0303443233 – 12th 25 june 2013
0303443233 – 13th 24 August 2015
0303443233 – 14th 6 May 2016
0303443233 – 15th 9 june 2016
0303443233 – 16th 5 September 2016
0303443233 – 17th 10 November 2016
0303443233 – 18th 30 November 2016

According to the 15th amended ERC, the Company’s name has been changed to Coteccons Construction joint Stock Company 
from Cotec Construction joint Stock Company.

The Company was listed its shares on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange with trading code as CTD in accordance with Decision 
No. 155/QD-SGDHCM issued by the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange on 9 December 2009.

The current principal activities of the Company are to provide designing and construction services, equipment installation, 
interior decoration, office leasing and trading of real estate.

The Company’s head office is located at 236/6 Dien Bien Phu Street, Ward 17, Binh Thanh District, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam..

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr. Nguyen Ba Duong Chairman
Mr. Tran Quang Tuan Member
Mr. Tran Quang Quan Member
Mr. Giuseppe Maniscalco Ferrara Member
Mr. Bolat Duisenov Member appointed on 12 April 2016
Mr. Tran Quyet Thang Member appointed on 12 April 2016
Mr. Vu Duy Lam Member appointed on 1 june 2016
Mr. Talgat Turumbayev Member resigned on 12 April 2016
Mr. Tony Xuan Diep Member resigned on 12 April 2016
Mr. Hoang Xuan Chinh Member resigned on 1 june 2016

general inforMation 
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BOARD OF SuPERVISION

Members of the Board of Supervision during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr. Nguyen Duc Canh Head of Board of Supervision appointed on 22 April 2016

Ms. Nghiem Bach Huong Head of Board of Supervision resigned on 12 April 2016

Ms. Nguyen Thi Phuc Long Member appointed on 12 April 2016

Ms. Phan Cam Ly Member appointed on 12 April 2016

Mr. Nguyen Duc Canh Member resigned on 22 April 2016

Mr. Ho Van Chi Thanh Member resigned on 12 April 2016

MANAGEMENT

Members of the Management during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr. Nguyen Ba Duong General Director

Mr. Tran Quang Quan Deputy General Director

Mr. Tran Quang Tuan Deputy General Director

Mr. Tran Van Chinh Deputy General Director

Mr. Tu Dai Phuc Deputy General Director

Mr. Phan Huy Vinh Deputy General Director

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Company during the year and at the date of this report is Mr. Nguyen Ba Duong.

AuDITORS

The auditor of the Company is Ernst & young Vietnam Limited.

Management of Coteccons Construction joint Stock Company (“the Company”) is pleased to present its report and the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary (“the Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the consolidated financial statements of each financial year which give a true and fair 
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and of consolidated results of its operations and its consolidated 
cash flows for the year. In preparing those consolidated financial statements, management is required to:

•	 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

•	 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

•	 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed 
and explained in the consolidated financial statements; and

•	 prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume 
that the Group will continue its business.

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with reasonable 
accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Group and to ensure that the accounting records comply with 
the applied accounting system. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Management confirmed that it has complied with the above requirements in preparing the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements.

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true 
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and of the consolidated results 
of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting 
Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and 
presentation of consolidated financial statements.

For and on behalf of management:

Nguyen Ba Duong
General Director

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam 

28 February 2017 

rePort of ManageMent 
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Reference: 60813343/18591958-HN

TO: THE SHAREHOLDERS OF COTECCONS CONSTRuCTION JOINT STOCk COMPANY

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Coteccons Construction joint Stock Company 
(“the Company”) and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “the Group”) as prepared on 28 February 2017 and set 
out on pages 6 to 42, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated 
income statement and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and the notes thereto. 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and 
the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements, and 
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AuDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group's preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

indePendent aUditors’ rePort 

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the 
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of the consolidated results of its operations 
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, 
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of 
the consolidated financial statements.

ERNST & YOuNG VIETNAM LIMITED

Tran Nam Dung
Deputy General Director
Audit Practicing Registration Certificate
No. 3021-2014-004-1

Ngo Hong Son
Auditor 
Audit Practicing Registration Certificate
No. 2211-2013-004-01

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

28 February 2017
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VND

Code ASSETS Notes Ending balance Beginning  
balance

100 A. CuRRENT ASSETS 9,943,464,944,899 6,485,874,716,823

110 I. Cash and cash equivalents 4 1,996,627,577,169 1,461,621,853,393

111 1. Cash  716,627,577,169 906,621,853,393

112 2. Cash equivalents 1,280,000,000,000 555,000,000,000

120 II. Short-term investment 2,675,000,000,000 928,100,000,000

123 1. Held-to-maturity investments 5 2,675,000,000,000 928,100,000,000

130 III. Current accounts receivable 3,483,690,579,494 2,608,589,628,142

131 1. Short-term trade receivables 6 3,345,759,405,855 2,605,698,634,082

132 2. Short-term advances to suppliers 7 175,416,870,761 202,857,498,603

136 3. Other short-term receivables 8 225,997,460,583 112,776,947,256

137 4. Provision for doubtful short-term receivables 6, 8 (263,483,157,705) (312,743,451,799)

140 IV. Inventory 9 1,240,877,076,159 1,051,277,324,227

141 1. Inventory 1,240,877,076,159 1,051,277,324,227

150 V. Other current assets 547,269,712,077 436,285,911,061

151 1. Short-term prepaid expenses 10 4,005,229,349 18,026,746,448

152 2. Value-added tax deductibles 542,683,814,702 418,244,088,256

153 3. Tax and other receivables from the State 18 580,668,026 15,076,357

200 B. NON-CuRRENT ASSETS 1,797,406,246,208 1,329,221,251,200

210 I. Long-term receivable 253,976,000 248,976,000

216 1. Other long-term receivables 253,976,000 248,976,000

220 II. Fixed assets 585,367,558,531 439,783,731,702

221 1. Tangible fixed assets 11 492,919,469,629 340,259,899,558

222  Cost 761,234,552,099 575,511,779,810

223  Accumulated depreciation (268,315,082,470) (235,251,880,252)

227 2. Intangible assets 12 92,448,088,902 99,523,832,144

228  Cost 102,365,530,801 108,679,038,268

229  Accumulated amortisation (9,917,441,899) (9,155,206,124)

230 III. Investment properties 13 78,054,175,594 91,813,818,041

231 1. Cost 95,184,189,935 105,619,003,648

232 2. Accumulated depreciation (17,130,014,341) (13,805,185,607)

240 IV. Long-term asset in progress 18,354,164,656 26,019,018,249

242 1. Construction in progress 14 18,354,164,656 26,019,018,249

250 V. Long-term investments 714,783,616,306 492,937,092,625

252 1. Investments in associates 15 194,783,616,306 124,937,092,625

255 2. Held-to-maturity investments 5 520,000,000,000 368,000,000,000

260 VI. Other long-term assets 400,592,755,121 278,418,614,583

261 1. Long-term prepaid expenses 10 396,065,656,914 274,878,346,127

262 2. Deferred tax assets 29.3 4,527,098,207 3,540,268,456

270 TOTAL ASSETS 11,740,871,191,107 7,815,095,968,023

consolidated balance sHeet 
as at 31 December 2016 B01-DN/HN

VND

Code RESOURCES Notes Ending balance Beginning  
balance

300 C. LIABILITIES 5,507,243,351,828 4,572,560,185,669

310 I. Current liabilities 5,495,199,216,604 4,559,132,890,228

311 1. Short-term trade payables 16 3,228,154,146,494 1,962,369,570,532

312 2. Short-term advances from customers 17 795,653,018,908 1,107,822,409,888

313 3. Statutory obligations 18 244,479,991,421 116,914,020,796

315 4. Short-term accrued expenses 19 822,046,183,940 1,098,234,426,509

318 5. Short-term unearned revenues 20 95,301,132,287 24,026,122,901

319 6. Other short-term payables 21 147,219,837,037 121,558,744,015

321 7. Short-term provisions 22 60,163,598,312 71,491,247,162

322 8. Bonus and welfare fund 102,181,308,205 56,716,348,425

330 II. Non-current liabilities 12,044,135,224 13,427,295,441

337 1. Other long-term liabilities 21 1,794,179,213 2,458,289,430

342 2. Long-term provisions 22 10,249,956,011 10,969,006,011

400 D. OWNERS’ EQuITY 6,233,627,839,279 3,242,535,782,354

410 I. Capital 23.1 6,233,627,839,279 3,242,535,782,354

411 1. Share capital 770,500,000,000 468,575,300,000

411a - Shares with voting rights 770,500,000,000 468,575,300,000

412 2. Share premium 2,958,550,175,385 1,385,223,930,000

415 3. Treasury shares (1,741,460,000) (1,741,460,000)

418 4. Investment and development fund 1,070,951,960,122 751,424,960,122

421 5. Undistributed earnings  1,435,367,163,772 639,053,052,232

421a - Undistributed earnings of prior years 13,223,245,232 250,480,097,719

421b - Undistributed earnings of current year 1,422,143,918,540 388,572,954,513

440 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQuITY 11,740,871,191,107 7,815,095,968,023

consolidated balance sHeet 
as at 31 December 2016 (continued) B01-DN/HN

Vu Thi Hong Hanh Vu Thi Hong Hanh Nguyen Ba Duong

Preparer Chief Accountant General Director

28 February 2017

prepArer
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VND

Code ITEmS Notes Current year Previous year

10 1. Net revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services  24.1 20,782,721,033,541 13,668,916,257,891

11 2. Cost of goods sold and services rendered 25 (18,983,319,033,277) (12,557,080,138,880)

20 3. Gross profit from sale of goods and rendering of services 1,799,402,000,264 1,111,836,119,011

21 4. Finance income 24.2 170,167,561,778 126,103,176,681

22 5. Finance expenses 26 (281,190,168) (1,590,712,601)

- In which: Interest expenses 153,055,556 -

24 6. Share of profit of associates 15 32,592,114,614 13,861,863,201

25 7. Selling expenses (1,887,854,700) -

26 8. General and administrative expenses 27 (297,253,276,693) (362,816,863,648)

30 9. Operating profit 1,702,739,355,095 887,393,582,644

31 10. Other income 28 62,697,300,620 41,100,416,921

32 11. Other expenses 28 (2,514,752,597) (1,825,477,319)

40 12. Other profit 28 60,182,548,023 39,274,939,602

50 13. Accounting profit before tax 1,762,921,903,118 926,668,522,246

51 14. Current corporate income tax expense 29.1 (341,764,814,329) (194,398,661,290)

52 15. Deferred corporate income tax income  29.3 986,829,751 532,792,461

60 16. Net profit after tax 1,422,143,918,540 732,802,653,417

61
17. Net profit after tax attributable to shareholders of the 
parent

1,422,143,918,540 666,080,628,989

62 18. Net profit after tax attributable to non-controlling interests  - 66,722,024,428

70 19. Basic earnings per share 31 20,669 10,708

71 20. Diluted earnings per share 31 20,669 10,708

consolidated incoMe stateMent
for the year ended 31 December 2016 B02-DN/HN

VND

Code ITEmS Notes Current year Previous year

I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

01 Accounting profit before tax 1,762,921,903,118 926,668,522,246

Adjustments for:

02 Depreciation and amortisation 11, 12, 13 53,782,443,059 45,201,994,948

03 Provisions (36,138,040,739) 89,928,869,020

04
Unrealised foreign exchange gains arisen from reval-
uation of monetary accounts denominated in foreign 
currency

(344,190,103) (146,078,821)

05 Profit from investing activities (205,141,007,759) (142,310,719,120)

06 Interest expense 26 153,055,556 -

08 Operating profit before changes in working capital 1,575,234,163,132 919,342,588,273

09 Increase in receivables (914,835,439,171) (969,292,851,723)

10 Increase in inventories (189,599,751,932) (706,683,514,062)

11 Increase in payables 823,723,127,088 2,345,105,757,590

12 Increase in prepaid expenses (100,137,187,236) (187,083,189,824)

14 Interest paid (153,055,556) -

15 Corporate income tax paid 18 (289,098,318,843) (164,187,105,229)

17 Other cash outflows from operating activities (4,071,927,469) (8,669,374,227)

20 Net cash flows from operating activities 901,061,610,013 1,228,532,310,798

II. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

21 Purchases and construction of fixed assets (189,440,496,481) (242,227,710,286)

22 Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets 6,459,592,060 1,504,193,579

23 Payments for term deposits at banks and bonds (1,898,900,000,000) -

24 Collections from bank term deposits - 12,980,000,000

25 Payments for investments in another entity (42,000,000,000) (8,085,000,000)

26 Proceeds from sale of investments in another entity - 38,238,062,386

27 Interest and dividends received 139,754,616,316 83,106,235,283

30 Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,984,126,288,105) (114,484,219,038)

consolidated casH flow stateMent  
for the year ended 31 December 2016 B03-DN/HN

Vu Thi Hong Hanh Vu Thi Hong Hanh Nguyen Ba Duong

Preparer Chief Accountant General Director

28 February 2017
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VND

Code ITEmS Notes Current year Previous year

III. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

31 Issuance of shares 1,875,250,945,385 45,815,000,000

33 Drawdown of borrowings 50,000,000,000 -

34 Repayment of borrowings (50,000,000,000) -

36 Dividends paid (257,186,590,275) (167,264,407,250)

40 Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 1,618,064,355,110 (121,449,407,250)

50 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 534,999,677,018 992,598,684,510

60 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,461,621,853,393 469,023,469,430

61 Impact of exchange rate fluctuation 6,046,758 (300,547)

70 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4 1,996,627,577,169 1,461,621,853,393

consolidated casH flow stateMent  
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B02-DN/HN

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Coteccons Construction joint Stock Company (“the Company”) is a shareholding company incorporated under 
the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to Business Registration Certificate (“BRC”) No. 4103002611 issued by 
the Department of Planning and Investment (“DPI”) of Ho Chi Minh City on 24 August 2004 and the following 
amended BRCs and Enterprise Registration Certificate (“ERC”):

Amended BRC/ERC No. Date
4103002611 - 1st 10 january 2005
4103002611 - 2nd 19 April 2006
4103002611 - 3rd 24 October 2006
4103002611 - 4th 5 june 2007
4103002611 - 5th 20 August 2007
4103002611 - 6th 5 january 2008
4103002611 - 7th 22 May 2009
0303443233 - 8th 7 September 2009
0303443233 - 9th 23 August 2010
0303443233 - 10th 10 September 2010
0303443233 - 11th 7 May 2012
0303443233 - 12th 25 june 2013
0303443233 - 13th 24 August 2015
0303443233 - 14th 6 May 2016
0303443233 - 15th 9 june 2016
0303443233 - 16th 5 September 2016
0303443233 - 17th 10 November 2016
0303443233 - 18th 30 November 2016

According to the 15th amended ERC, the Company’s name has been changed to Coteccons Construction joint 
Stock Company from Cotec Construction joint Stock Company.

The Company was listed its shares on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange with trading code as CTD in accordance 
with Decision No. 155/QD-SGDHCM issued by the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange on 9 December 2009.

The current principal activities of the Company and its subsidiary (“the Group”) are to provide designing and 
construction services, equipment installation, interior decoration, office leasing, trading of real estate and 
trading of construction materials. 

The Company’s registered head office is located at 236/6 Dien Bien Phu Street, Ward 17, Binh Thanh District, Ho 
Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

The number of the Group’s employees as at 31 December 2016 was 2,043 (31 December 2015: 1,573).

Group structure

The Company has a subsidiary, Unicons Investment Construction Company Limited (“Unicons”), a one-member 
limited liability company incorporated under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to BRC No. 4103005020 
issued by the DPI of Ho Chi Minh City on 14 july 2006, as amended.

According to the 12th and 13th amended ERC issued by the DPI of Ho Chi Minh City on 16 May 2016 and 24 
May 2016, Unicons has been transformed its ownership form from a shareholding company to a one-member 
limited liability company, and changed its name to Unicons Investment Construction Company Limited.

Unicons’s registered office is located at 236/6 Dien Bien Phu Street, Ward 17, Binh Thanh District, Ho Chi Minh 
City, Vietnam. Unicons’s principal activities are to providing construction services, equipment installation 
services and trading of construction materials.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company holds 100% equity interest in Unicons.

notes to tHe consolidated financial stateMents 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 B09-DN/HN

Vu Thi Hong Hanh Vu Thi Hong Hanh Nguyen Ba Duong

Preparer Chief Accountant General Director

28 February 2017

170 ANNUAL REPORT 2016 
www.coteccons.vn

171Báo cáo TÀI cHÍNH HỢP NHẤT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Accounting standards and system

The consolidated financial statements of the Group expressed in Vietnam dong (“VND”), are prepared in 
accordance with Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and Vietnamese Accounting Standards issued by 
the Ministry of Finance as per:

•	 Decision No. 149/2001/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2001 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Four 
Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 1); 

•	 Decision No. 165/2002/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2002 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Six 
Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 2); 

•	 Decision No. 234/2003/QD-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Six 
Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 3); 

•	 Decision No. 12/2005/QD-BTC dated 15 February 2005 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Six Vietnamese 
Accounting Standards  (Series 4); and

•	 Decision No. 100/2005/QD-BTC dated 28 December 2005 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Four 
Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 5).

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements, including their utilisation are not designed for 
those who are not informed about Vietnam’s accounting principles, procedures and practices and furthermore 
are not intended to present the financial position and results of operations and cash flows in accordance with 
accounting principles and practices generally accepted in countries other than Vietnam.

2.2 Applied accounting documentation system

The Group’s applied accounting documentation system is the General journal.

2.3 Fiscal year

The Group’s fiscal year applicable for the preparation of its consolidated financial statements starts on 1 january 
and ends on 31 December.

2.4 Accounting currency

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in VND which is also the Group’s accounting currency. 

2.5 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the parent company and its 
subsidiary as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016. 

Subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, 
and continued to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. 

The financial statements of the subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company, 
using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-company balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains or losses resulting from intra-company 
transactions are eliminated in full.

Impact of change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is recorded in undistributed 
earnings.

B09-DN/HN

3. SuMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOuNTING POLICIES

3.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in banks and short-term, highly liquid investments with 
an original maturity of less than three months that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and that 
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.2 Receivables

Receivables are presented in the consolidated financial statements at the carrying amounts due from customers 
and other debtors, after provision for doubtful receivables.

The provision for doubtful receivables represents amounts of outstanding receivables at the balance sheet date 
which are doubtful of being recovered. Increases or decreases to the provision balance are recorded as general 
and administrative expense in the consolidated income statement.

3.3 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition, 
and net realisable value. 

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated 
costs to complete and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Raw materials, merchandise goods - cost of purchase on a weighted average basis

Construction work-in-process - cost of direct materials and labour plus attributable construction overheads

Provision for obsolete inventories

An inventory provision is created for the estimated loss arising due to the impairment of value (through 
diminution, damage, obsolescence, etc.) of inventories owned by the Group, based on appropriate evidence of 
impairment available at the balance sheet date.

Increases or decreases to the provision balance are recorded into the cost of goods sold account in the 
consolidated income statement.

3.4 Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of a tangible fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the 
tangible fixed asset to working condition for its intended use.

Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are added to the carrying amount of the assets and 
other expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred. 

When tangible fixed assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal (the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is included in the consolidated income statement.

3.5 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation.

The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of preparing the 
intangible asset for its intended use. 

Expenditures for additions, improvements are added to the carrying amount of the assets and other expenditures 
are charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN

3. SuMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOuNTING POLICIES (CONTINuED)

3.5 Intangible assets (continued)

When intangible fixed assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal (the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is included in the consolidated income statement.

Land use rights

Land use right is recorded as an intangible asset on the consolidated balance sheet when the Group obtained 
the land use right certificates. The costs of land use right comprise all directly attributable costs of bringing the 
land to the condition available for intended use and is not amortised when having indefinite useful life.

3.6 Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets and amortisation of intangible assets are calculated on a straight-line basis 
over the estimated useful life of each asset as follows:

Buildings & structures 6 - 42 years
Machinery & equipment  3 - 10 years
Means of transportation  6 - 8 years
Office equipment  3 - 5 years
Land use rights 45 - 49 years
Softwares 3 years
Others 5 - 6 years

3.7 Investment properties 

Investment properties are stated at cost including transaction costs less accumulated depreciation. Investment 
properties held for capital appreciation are not depreciated but subject to impairment review.

Subsequent expenditure relating to an investment property that has already been recognised is added to the 
net book value of the investment property when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the 
originally assessed standard of performance of the existing investment property, will flow to the Group.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each 
asset as follows:

Office building 30 - 45 years
Others 25 years

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment 
properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. 
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets is recognised in the 
consolidated income statement in the year of retirement or disposal. 

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by 
ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of construction 
or development. Transfers are made from investment properties when, and only when, there is change in use, 
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a view to sale. 
The transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories does not change the cost or 
the carrying value of the property for subsequent accounting at the date of change in use.

3. SuMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOuNTING POLICIES (CONTINuED)

3.8 Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents tangible fixed assets purchasing and under construction which have not 
yet been completed as at the balance sheet date and is stated at cost. This includes costs of construction, 
installation of equipment and other direct costs. Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time as 
the relevant assets are completed and put into use.

3.9 Leased assets

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of specific assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where the Group is the lessee

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term.

Where the Group is the lessor

Assets subject to operating leases are included as the Group’s investment property in the consolidated balance 
sheet. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are recognised in the consolidated income 
statement as incurred. 

Lease income is recognised in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of 
funds. Borrowing costs are recorded as expense during the year in which they are incurred, except to the extent 
that they are capitalized as explained in the following paragraph.

3.11 Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses are reported as short-term or long-term prepaid expenses on the consolidated balance sheet 
and amortised over the period for which the amounts are paid or the period in which economic benefits are 
generated in relation to these expenses.

Tools and supplies used for construction are amortised to the consolidated income statement over the period 
of two (2) to six (6) years on the straight-line basis. 

3.12 Investments

Investments in associates

The Group’s investment in its associates is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. An associate 
is an entity in which the Group has significant influence that is neither subsidiaries nor joint ventures. The Group 
generally deems they have significant influence if they have over 20% of the voting rights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN

3. SuMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOuNTING POLICIES (CONTINuED)

3.12 Investments (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

Under the equity method, the investment is carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost plus post 
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associates. Goodwill arising on acquisition of the 
associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment. Goodwill is not amortised and subject to annual 
review for impairment. The consolidated income statement reflects the share of the post-acquisition results of 
operation of the associate.

The share of post-acquisition profit or loss of the associates is presented on face of the consolidated income 
statement and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative 
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividend or profit 
sharing received or receivable from associates reduces the carrying amount of the investment.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting year and use the same accounting 
policies as the Group’s. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with 
those of the Group.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are stated at their acquisition costs. After initial recognition, held-to-maturity 
investments are measured at recoverable amount. Any impairment loss incurred is recognised as expense in 
the consolidated financial statements and deducted against the value of such investments.

3.13 Provision for diminution in value of investments

Provision is made for any diminution in value of the investments at the balance sheet date in accordance with 
the guidance under Circular No. 228/2009/TT-BTC dated 7 December 2009 and Circular No. 89/2013/TT-BTC 
dated 28 june 2013 issued by the Ministry of Finance. Increases and decreases to the provision balance are 
recorded as finance expense in the consolidated income statement.

3.14 Payables and accruals

Payables and accruals are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, 
whether or not billed to the Group.

3.15 Accrual for severance allowance pay

The severance pay to employee is accrued at the end of each reporting year for all employees who have 
been in service for more than 12 months up to the balance sheet date at the rate of one-half of the average 
monthly salary for each year of service up to 31 December 2008 in accordance with the Labour Code and 
related implementing guidance. The average monthly salary used in this calculation is revised at the end of each 
reporting year following the average monthly salary of the 6-month period up to the reporting date. Increases 
or decreases to the accrued amount other than actual payment to employee will be taken to the consolidated 
income statement.

This accrued severance pay is used to settle the termination allowance to be paid to employee upon termination 
of their labour contract following Article 48 of the Labour Code.

3. SuMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOuNTING POLICIES (CONTINuED)

3.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provision for warranty obligation of construction project is estimated from 0.3% to 1% on value of project based 
on the specification of each project and actual experience.

3.17 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the Group’s reporting currency of VND are recorded at the actual 
transaction exchange rates at transaction dates which are determined as follows:

•	 transactions resulting in receivables are recorded at the buying exchange rates of the commercial banks 
designated for collection; 

•	 transactions resulting in liabilities are recorded at the selling exchange rates of the transaction of commercial 
banks designated for payment; and

•	 payments for assets or expenses without liabilities initially being recognised is recorded at the buying 
exchange rates of the commercial banks that process these payments.

At the end of the year, monetary balances denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the actual 
transaction exchange rates at the balance sheet dates which are determined as follows: 

•	 monetary assets are translated at buying exchange rate of the commercial bank where the Group conduct 
transactions regularly; and

•	 monetary liabilities are translated at selling exchange rate of the commercial bank where the Group 
conduct transactions regularly.

All foreign exchange differences incurred during the year and arisen from the revaluation of monetary accounts 
denominated in foreign currency at year-end are taken to the consolidated income statement.

3.18 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit after tax for the year attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of the Company (after adjusting for the bonus and welfare fund) by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to ordinary 
equity holders of the Company (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. 

3.19 Treasury shares 

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from 
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s 
own equity instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN

3. SuMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOuNTING POLICIES (CONTINuED)

3.20 Appropriation of net profits

Net profit after tax is available for appropriation to investors as proposed by the Board of Director and subject 
to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, and after making appropriation to reserve funds in 
accordance with the Company’s Charter and Vietnamese regulatory requirements.

The Group maintains the following reserve funds which are appropriated from the Group’s net profit as proposed 
by the Board of Directors and subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

•	 Investment and development fund

This fund is set aside for use in the Group’s expansion of its operation or of in-depth investment.

•	 Bonus and welfare fund

This fund is set aside for the purpose of pecuniary rewarding and encouraging, common benefits and 
improvement of the employees’ benefits, and presented as a liability on the consolidated balance sheet.

3.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and 
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable, excluding trade discount, rebate and sales return. The following specific recognition criteria must 
also be met before revenue is recognised:

Construction contracts

For the construction contracts specifying that the contractor will receive payments according to the completed 
work, where the outcome of a construction contract can be determined reliably and accepted by the customers, 
revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance 
sheet date which is accepted by the customers and reflected in the sales invoices. 

For the construction contracts specifying that the progress payments are made as originally agreed, where the 
outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to 
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date, as measured by the proportion that 
contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs, except where this 
would not be representative of the stage of completion.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have been 
agreed with the customer.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised 
to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as 
expenses in the year in which they are incurred.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the 
buyer, usually upon the delivery of the goods.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight line basis over the terms of the lease.

3. SuMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOuNTING POLICIES (CONTINuED)

3.21 Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues (taking into account the effective yield on the asset) unless 
collectability is in doubt.

Dividend

Revenue is recognised when the Group is entitled to receive dividends.

3.22 Taxation  

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to 
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount 
are those that are enacted as at the balance sheet date.

Current income tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when it relates to 
items recognised directly to equity, in which case the current income tax is also dealt with in equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right for the Group to set 
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the Group intends to settle its current tax assets 
and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between 
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised 
for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credit and unused tax losses, to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences, carried 
forward unused tax credit and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Previously unrecognised deferred income tax assets are re-assessed at 
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit 
will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted at the 
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when it relates to items 
recognised directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in the equity account.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right for the Group to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied on the same taxable 
entity by the same taxation authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN

4. CASH AND CASH EQuIVALENTS

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Cash on hand 419,131,108 179,130,421

Cash in banks 716,208,446,061 906,442,722,972

Cash equivalents (*) 1,280,000,000,000 555,000,000,000

TOTAL 1,996,627,577,169 1,461,621,853,393

(*)  Cash equivalents represent deposits at commercial banks with original maturity of less than three (3) months 
and earn interest at the applicable rates.

5. HELD-TO-MATuRITY INVESTMENTS

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Short-term

Term deposits (i) 2,575,000,000,000 928,100,000,000

Bonds (ii) 100,000,000,000 -

2,675,000,000,000 928,100,000,000

Long-term

Term deposits (iii) 520,000,000,000 368,000,000,000

TOTAL 3,195,000,000,000 1,296,100,000,000

(i) These represent deposits at commercial banks with original maturity of three (3) months or more but under 
one (1) year and earn an interest at the applicable rates.

(ii) Details of investments in bonds are as follows:

Issuer Ending 
balance maturity date Interest Collateral

VND % p.a.

ACB Securities Company Limited 100,000,000,000
One (1) year from 
18 February 2016

8.5 Unsecured

(iii) These represent deposits at commercial banks with original maturity of more than one (1) year and earn an 
interest at the applicable rates.

6. SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Receivables from other parties 3,332,147,622,731 2,562,527,917,898

- TCO Vietnam Investment Joint Stock Company 551,463,238,291 -

- Other customers 2,780,684,384,440 2,562,527,917,898

Receivables from related parties (Note 30) 13,611,783,124 43,170,716,184

TOTAL 3,345,759,405,855 2,605,698,634,082

Provision for doubtful short-term receivables (237,445,195,011) (286,705,489,105)

NET 3,108,314,210,844 2,318,993,144,977

Movements of provision for doubtful short-term receivables:

VND

Current year Previous year

Beginning balance 286,705,489,105 193,214,749,815

Add:   Provision created during the year 209,498,197 112,646,178,775

Less: Reversal of provision during the year (49,469,792,291) (19,155,439,485)

Ending balance 237,445,195,011 286,705,489,105

7. SHORT-TERM ADVANCES TO SuPPLIERS

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

QH Plus joint Stock Company 41,049,888,814 -

BM Windows joint Stock Company 31,939,082,148 -

Other suppliers 102,427,899,799 202,857,498,603

TOTAL 175,416,870,761 202,857,498,603
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN

8. OTHER SHORT-TERM RECEIVABLES

VND 

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Interest receivable 104,762,712,513 68,752,849,670

Advances to construction teams and employees 97,495,040,302 36,353,752,806

Short-term deposits 2,365,763,612 2,485,592,959

Others 21,373,944,156 5,184,751,821

TOTAL 225,997,460,583 112,776,947,256

Provision for doubtful short-term receivables (26,037,962,694) (26,037,962,694)

NET 199,959,497,889 86,738,984,562

Movements of provision for doubtful short-term receivables:

VND

Current year Previous year

Beginning balance 26.037.962.694 1.284.194.115

Add:    Provision created during the year - 24.753.768.579

Ending balance 26.037.962.694 26.037.962.694

9. INVENTORIES

  VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Construction work in process (*) 1,240,877,076,159 1,049,794,658,824

Merchandise goods - 1,482,665,403

TOTAL 1,240,877,076,159 1,051,277,324,227

9.  INVENTORIES (CONTINuED)

(*) The details of work in process of on-going construction projects are as follows:

 VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Masteri Thao Dien High-class Apartment 132,193,863,779 162,782,230,796

The One Ho Chi Minh City Tower 107,520,142,497 31,323,472,415

T&T Vinh Hung Services, Trade and Apartment Complex zone 106,235,853,675 14,883,840,102

Masteri Villas (Vinhomes Thang Long) 99,391,229,985 -

Dai Quang Minh Highrise, Office Tower 88,547,863,476 92,695,482,019

Vinhomes Metropolis Lieu Giai Tower 68,561,509,754 -

Vinhomes Times City Park Hill 9, 10 58,482,065,320 19,737,763,867

Park City Ha Noi - Area 2 52,711,282,702 7,841,543,600

Masteri Thao Dien High-class Apartment - CT 5 Tower 52,631,929,166 3,487,170,626

Panaroma Nha Trang Project 52,535,522,690 -

Preche Apartment 48,349,713,466 -

HH01 Nam Cuong Complex 40,923,045,201 -

The Goldview High-class Apartment 40,379,352,543 18,381,367,473

Diamond Island High-class Apartment 28,542,004,559 2,895,178,815

Others 263,871,697,346 695,766,609,111

TOTAL 1,240,877,076,159 1,049,794,658,824
 

10. PREPAID EXPENSES

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Short-term

Office rental and maintenance expenses 3,616,093,518 2,857,903,244

Tools and supplies used for construction works 389,135,831 15,168,843,204

4,005,229,349 18,026,746,448

Long-term

Tools and supplies used for construction works 364,973,778,452 253,095,850,847

Others 31,091,878,462 21,782,495,280

396,065,656,914 274,878,346,127

TOTAL 400,070,886,263 292,905,092,575
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN
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9 12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

VND

Land use 
rights Software Total

Cost:

Beginning balance 102,603,924,366 6,075,113,902 108,679,038,268

New purchase - 1,153,697,500 1,153,697,500

Transfer from construction in progress - 622,850,000 622,850,000

Disposal - (368,054,967) (368,054,967)

Reclassification to long-term prepaid expenses (7,722,000,000) - (7,722,000,000)

Ending balance 94,881,924,366 7,483,606,435 102,365,530,801

In which:

Fully depreciated - 3,154,970,119 3,154,970,119

Accumulated amortisation:

Beginning balance (4,934,163,270) (4,221,042,854) (9,155,206,124)

Amortisation for the year (611,007,240) (1,217,677,050) (1,828,684,290)

Disposal - 368,054,967 368,054,967

Reclassification to long-term prepaid expenses 698,393,548 - 698,393,548

Ending balance (4,846,776,962) (5,070,664,937) (9,917,441,899)

Net carrying value:

Beginning balance 97,669,761,096 1,854,071,048 99,523,832,144

Ending balance 90,035,147,404 2,412,941,498 92,448,088,902

Land use rights include the cost of land use rights with carrying amount of VND 64,662,555,400 which are 
indefinite and accordingly not amortised.

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Investment properties for rent (Note 13.1) 78,054,175,594 78,100,252,075

Investment properties for capital appreciation (Note 13.2) - 13,713,565,966

TOTAL 78,054,175,594 91,813,818,041
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINuED)

13.1 Investment properties for rent

VND

 Office  
building Others Total

Cost:

Beginning balance 73,285,073,773 18,620,363,909 91,905,437,682

Transfer from tangible fixed assets 3,278,752,253 - 3,278,752,253

Ending balance 76,563,826,026 18,620,363,909 95,184,189,935

Accumulated depreciation:

Beginning balance (12,214,178,950) (1,591,006,657) (13,805,185,607)

Depreciation for the year (2,507,153,013) (744,814,560) (3,251,967,573)

Transfer from tangible fixed assets (72,861,161) - (72,861,161)

Ending balance (14,794,193,124) (2,335,821,217) (17,130,014,341)

Net carrying amount:

Beginning balance 61,070,894,823 17,029,357,252 78,100,252,075

Ending balance 61,769,632,902 16,284,542,692 78,054,175,594

The fair value of the investment properties was not formally assessed and determined as at 31 December 2016. 
However, given the present occupancy rate of these properties, it is management’s assessment that these 
properties’ market values are higher than their carrying value as at the balance sheet date.

13.2 Investment properties for capital appreciation
 
 VND

Current year Previous year

Beginning balance 13,713,565,966 23,507,517,231

Disposal during the year (13,713,565,966) (9,793,951,265)

Ending balance - 13,713,565,966

14. CONSTRuCTION IN PROGRESS

Constructions in progress represent assets purchased during the year which are under installation and the value 
of warehouse which is under construction.

15. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Investments in associates 194,783,616,306 124,937,092,625

The details of investment in associates are as follows:

Ending balance Beginning balance

% of  
interest 

Amount 
(VND)

% of  
interest 

Amount 
(VND)

FCC Infrastructure Investment joint Stock 
Company (“FCC”)

35 98,051,443,745 35 55,825,749,951

Ricons Construction Investment joint 
Stock Company (“Ricons”)

19.20 96,563,534,057 20.16 68,937,394,271

Quang Trong Commercial joint Stock 
Company (“Quang Trong”)

36 168,638,504 36 173,948,403

TOTAL 194,783,616,306 124,937,092,625

FCC is a shareholding company established in accordance with BRC No. 0106605407 issued by the DPI of Ha Noi 
City on 21 july 2014 and as amended. FCC’s principal activities are to provide civil and industrial construction 
services. According to ERC, the register charter capital of FCC is VND 369,000,000,000, in which the Group 
contributes VND 129,150,000,000 equivalent to 35% (Note 33.2).

Ricons, formerly known as Phu Hung Gia Construction Investment joint Stock Company, is a shareholding 
company established in accordance with BRC No. 4103002810 issued by the DPI of Ho Chi Minh City on 27 
October 2004 and amended BRC and Enterprise Registration Certificate (“ERC”). Ricons’s principal activities are 
to provide civil and industrial construction services, trade of construction materials and trade real estate. The 
Group has significant influence on the financial and operating policies of Ricons.

Quang Trong is a shareholding company established in accordance with BRC No. 4903000474 issued by the 
DPI of Ba Ria – Vung Tau Province on 18 December 2007 and amended BRC and ERC. Quang Trong’s principal 
activities are to trade real estate and provide project management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN

15. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINuED)

Details of investments in associates are as follows:

VND

Total

Cost of investment:

Beginning balance 94,160,000,000

Increase during the year 42,000,000,000

Ending balance 136,160,000,000

Accumulated share in post-acquisition profit of the associates:

Beginning balance 30,777,092,625

Share in post-acquisition profit of the associates for the year 32,592,114,614

Unrealised profits during the year 1,302,409,067

Dividend during the year (6,048,000,000)

Ending balance 58,623,616,306

Net carrying amount:

Beginning balance 124,937,092,625

Ending balance 194,783,616,306

16. SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES 

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Payables to other parties 2,564,002,861,778 1,716,847,501,185

Payables to related parties (Note 30) 664,151,284,716 245,522,069,347

TOTAL 3,228,154,146,494 1,962,369,570,532

17. SHORT-TERM ADVANCES FROM CuSTOMERS 

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Vinh Hoi Investment and Development joint Stock Company 162,247,819,016 -

Viet Star Co., Ltd 117,958,586,503 -

Phu Hung Real Estate Investment Company Limited 104,388,827,700 -

Tan Lien Phat Construction Investment Corporation 92,024,799,038 506,705,846,046

Saigon Garment - Match joint Stock Company 86,349,301,230 -

Ho Chi Minh City Investment Service Trading joint Stock Company 81,507,394,583 -

Other customers 151,176,290,838 601,116,563,842

TOTAL 795,653,018,908 1,107,822,409,888

18. STATuTORY OBLIGATIONS

VND

Beginning  
balance

Số phải nộp  
trong năm

Số đã nộp  
trong năm

Ending bal-
ance

Payables

Corporate income tax 62,243,845,728 341,764,814,329 (289,098,318,843) 114,910,341,214

Value-added tax 26,325,980,844 290,767,011,671 (235,012,724,575) 82,080,267,940

Personal income tax 28,344,194,224 80,557,871,917 (61,412,683,874) 47,489,382,267

Others - 6,000,000 (6,000,000) -

TOTAL 116,914,020,796 713,095,697,917 (585,529,727,292) 244,479,991,421

Receivable

Import tax (15,076,357) 18,273,143,230 (18,838,734,899) (580,668,026)

19. SHORT-TERM ACCRuED EXPENSES 

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Accrual for on-going construction projects 822,046,183,940 1,097,870,861,106

Others - 363,565,403

TOTAL 822,046,183,940 1,098,234,426,509

20. SHORT-TERM uNEARNED REVENuE 

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Unearned revenue from construction works 95,285,980,772 23,496,188,501

Unearned revenue from office leasing 15,151,515 529,934,400

TOTAL 95,301,132,287 24,026,122,901
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN

21. OTHER PAYABLES

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Short-term

Payable to construction teams 136,784,948,612 119,209,888,142

Remuneration to Board of Directors, Board of Supervision 8,520,000,000 931,600,000

Dividend payables 419,737,325 256,520,600

Others 1,495,151,100 1,160,735,273

147,219,837,037 121,558,744,015

Long-term

Deposits 1,794,179,213 2,458,289,430

TOTAL 149,014,016,250 124,017,033,445

22. PROVISIONS
  

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Short-term

Provisions for construction warranty 60,163,598,312 71,491,247,162

Long-term

Severance allowance 10,249,956,011 10,969,006,011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN

23. OWNERS’ EQuITY (CONTINuED)

23.1 Increase and decrease in owners’ equity (continued)

(*)  During the year, the Company issued an aggregate of 30,192,470 new shares, details are as follows:  

•	 2,339,540 new shares to its employees in accordance with the Employee Stock Ownership Plan program 
in accordance with the approved Shareholders’ Resolution No. 01/2016/NQ-DHCD dated 12 April 2016 
to increase its share capital. This increase was approved by the Department of Planning and Investment 
of Ho Chi Minh City through the issuance of the 16th amended Enterprise Registration Certificate dated 5 
September 2016;

•	 16,376,179 bonus shares to its existing shareholders at the bonus ratio of 3:1, equivalent to 3 existing shares 
were swapped for 1 new ordinary share in accordance with the approved Shareholders’ Resolution No. 
01/2016/NQ-DHCD dated 12 April 2016 to increase its share capital. This increase was approved by the 
Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City through the issuance of the 17th amended 
Enterprise Registration Certificate dated 10 November 2016; and

•	 11,476,751 new shares to its strategic investors in accordance with the approved Shareholders’ Resolution 
No. 01/2016/NQ-DHCD dated 12 April 2016 to increase its share capital. This increase was approved by the 
Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City through the issuance of the 18th amended 
Enterprise Registration Certificate dated 30 November 2016.

23.2 Capital transactions with owners and distribution of dividends

VND

Current year Previous year

Contributed share capital

Beginning balance 468,575,300,000 422,000,000,000

Increase 301,924,700,000 46,575,300,000

Ending balance 770,500,000,000 468,575,300,000

Dividends 

Dividends declared 257,349,807,000 210,666,720,000

Dividends paid by cash (257,186,590,275) (158,487,607,250)

Dividends paid by net-off receivable - (73,010,000,000)

23.3 Shares

Shares

Number of shares

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Authorised shares 77,050,000 46,857,530

Shares issued and fully paid 77,050,000 46,857,530

Ordinary shares 77,050,000 46,857,530

Treasury shares (66,656) (66,656)

Ordinary shares (66,656) (66,656)

Shares in circulation 76,983,344 46,790,874

Ordinary shares 76,983,344 46,790,874

24. REVENuES

24.1 Net revenues from sale of goods and rendering of services

VND

Current year Previous year

Rendering of construction services (*) 20,549,705,176,425 13,228,949,551,678

Revenue from sales of construction materials 130,902,685,758 403,912,845,442

Revenue relating to investment properties 80,926,401,380 24,137,591,131

Rental of construction equipment 21,186,769,978 11,916,269,640

TOTAL 20,782,721,033,541 13,668,916,257,891

In which:

Sales to other parties 20,588,831,890,063 13,565,247,977,663

Sales to related parties 193,889,143,478 103,668,280,228

(*) Revenue from construction contracts recognised during the year are as follows:

VND

Current year Previous year

Revenue recognised during the year of the completed construction contracts 1,064,259,584,923 1,174,284,035,323

Revenue recognised during the year of the on-going construction contracts 19,485,445,591,502 12,054,665,516,355

TOTAL 20,549,705,176,425 13,228,949,551,678

24.2 Finance income

VND

Current year Previous year

Bank interest income 156,383,677,158 100,592,069,813

Late payment interest 13,332,802,001 25,178,394,514

Foreign exchange gains 451,082,619 332,712,354

TOTAL 170,167,561,778 126,103,176,681

24.3 Revenue and expense relating to investment properties

VND

Current year Previous year

Rental revenue from investment properties 14,445,902,426 14,535,092,129

Revenue from transferring of investment properties for capital appreciation 66,480,498,954 9,602,499,002

TOTAL 80,926,401,380 24,137,591,131
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN

25. COST OF GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES RENDERED
VND

Current year Previous year

Cost of rendered of construction services 18,781,543,879,308 12,141,612,759,314

Cost of construction materials sold 127,466,520,639 393,880,343,919

Operating cost of investment properties 62,572,524,519 16,153,990,431

Cost of construction equipment leased 11,736,108,811 5,433,045,216

TOTAL 18,983,319,033,277 12,557,080,138,880

26. FINANCE EXPENSES 
VND

Current year Previous year

Interest expense 153,055,556 -

Foreign exchange losses 128,134,612 1,590,712,601

TOTAL 281,190,168 1,590,712,601

27. CHI PHÍ QuẢN LÝ DOANH NGHIỆP
  VND

Current year Previous year

General and administrative expenses

 - Staff costs 222,459,436,467 161,763,233,259

 - Expenses for external services 48,019,178,239 20,605,287,098

 - Depreciation and amortisation 15,353,179,663 14,511,401,848

 - Provision expense 209,498,197 137,399,947,354

 - Other expenses 60,391,131,840 47,692,433,574

Deduction of general and administrative expenses

 - Reversal of provision for doubtful debts (49,179,147,713) (19,155,439,485)

TOTAL 297,253,276,693 362,816,863,648

28. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
VND

Current year Previous year

Other income 62,697,300,620 41,100,416,921

Reversal of construction warranty provisions 21,000,770,524 24,408,226,383

Reversal of over accrued construction costs 20,098,320,752 6,618,592,622

Utilities 15,374,042,866 7,865,210,772

Proceeds from disposal of tools and supplies 3,343,263,500 -

Gain from disposal of fixed assets 1,530,004,919 928,659,748

Others 1,350,898,059 1,279,727,396 

Other expense (2,514,752,597) (1,825,477,319)

Cost of disposed of tools and supplies (875,423,169) -

Others (1,639,329,428) (1,825,477,319)

NET OTHER PROFIT 60,182,548,023 39,274,939,602

29. CORPORATE INCOME TAX 

The statutory corporate income tax (“CIT”) rate applicable to the Group is 20% of taxable profits (for the year 
ended 31 December 2015: 22%).

The tax returns filed by the Group are subject to examination by the tax authorities. As the application of tax laws 
and regulations is susceptible to varying interpretations, the amounts reported in the consolidated financial 
statements could change at a later date upon final determination by the tax authorities.

29.1 CIT expense

VND

Current year Previous year

Current CIT expense 340,259,649,269 194,253,381,291

Adjustment for under accrual of tax from prior years 1,505,165,060 145,279,999

Deferred tax income (986,829,751) (532,792,461)

TOTAL 340,777,984,578 193,865,868,829

Reconciliation between CIT expense and the accounting profit multiplied by CIT rate is presented below:

VND

Current year Previous year

Accounting profit before tax 1,762,921,903,118 926,668,522,246

At CIT rate 352,584,380,624 203,867,074,894

Adjustments to increase (decrease):

Non-deductible expenses (6,793,138,183) (7,096,876,160)

Share of profit from associates (6,518,422,923) (3,049,609,904)

Adjustment for under accrual of tax from prior years 1,505,165,060 145,279,999

CIT expense 340,777,984,578 193,865,868,829

29.2 Current tax 

The current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the current year. The taxable profit of the Group for the 
year differs from the profit as reported in the consolidated income statement because it excludes items of 
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable 
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the 
balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN

29. CORPORATE INCOME TAX (CONTINuED)

29.3 Deferred tax

The following are the deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized by the Group, and the movements thereon, 
during the current and previous years:

VND

Consolidated 
balance sheet

Consolidated 
income statement

Ending  
balance

Beginning  
balance Current year Previous 

year

Deferred tax assets

Unrealised profit 2,553,747,800 1,423,112,375 1,130,635,425 837,844,403

Severance allowance 2,049,991,203 2,193,801,203 (143,810,000) (238,958,745)

Profit of unearned revenue - - - (290,810,747)

Unrealised foreign exchange differences (64,436) (68,762) 4,326 217,059,914

Provision for investments (76,576,360) (76,576,360) - 7,657,636

4,527,098,207 3,540,268,456

Deferred tax income 986,829,751 532,792,461

30. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Significant transactions of the Group with related parties during the current and previous years were as follows: 

VND

Related party Relationship Nature of transaction Current year Previous year

Ricons Construction 
Investment 
joint Stock Company

Associate Construction cost 2,515,804,510,845 1,242,043,301,719

Purchase of construction 
materials

642,150,732,847 443,031,752,554

Sales of construction materials 37,017,908,182 73,498,988,633

Dividend received 6,048,000,000 -

Equipment rental income 6,044,444,600 2,927,736,167

Disposal of tools and supplies 5,075,582,832 -

Office rental income 3,623,393,147 849,907,092

Utilities 814,091,892 830,026,376

Rental expense 544,470,264 -

Equipment rental expense 55,869,550 595,366,842

Construction services - 6,064,649,440

FCC Infrastructure 
Investment 
joint Stock Company

Associate Construction services 147,203,397,549 19,496,972,520

Capital contribution 42,000,000,000 8,085,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN

30. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (CONTINuED)

The outstanding balances due from and due to related parties as at balance sheet dates were as follows:

VND

Related party Relationship Nature of  
transaction

Ending  
balance

Beginning  
balance

Short-term trade receivables 

FCC Infrastructure Investment joint 
Stock Company

Associate Construction services 9,168,524,076 21,446,669,772

Ricons Construction  Investment 
joint Stock Company

Associate Construction services,  
equipment rental 

4,443,259,048 21,724,046,412

13,611,783,124 43,170,716,184

Short-term trade payable

Ricons Construction  Investment 
joint Stock Company

Associate Construction cost and 
purchase of materials

664,151,284,716 245,522,069,347

Transactions with other related parties

Remuneration to members of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervision and Board of Management: 

VND

Current year Previous year

Remuneration, salaries and bonus 28,572,438,362 21,575,959,498

31. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

VND

Current year Previous year
(restated)

Net profit after tax attributable to shareholders of the parent 1,422,143,918,540 666,080,628,989

Less: Bonus and welfare fund (*) (71,107,195,927) (31,953,000,000)

Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary equity holders 1,351,036,722,613 634,127,628,989

Weighted average number of ordinary shares during the year (shares) (**) 65,364,583 59,219,499

Basic and diluted earnings per share (VND/share) 20,669 10,708

There have been no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the year and up to the date of these consolidated 
financial statements.

(*) Profit used to compute earnings per share for the year 2016 was adjusted for the provisional allocation to 
bonus and welfare fund from 2016 profit following the plan as approved in the resolution of the shareholders 
meeting No. 01/2016/NQ-DHCD dated 12 April 2016.

 Profit used to compute earnings per share for the year 2015 as presented in the financial statements for the 
year 2015 was restated to reflect the actual allocation to bonus and welfare fund from 2015 profit following 
the resolution of the shareholders meeting No. 01/2016/NQ-DHCD dated 12 April 2016.

(**) The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year ended 31 December 2015 was adjusted to 
reflect the additional issuance of 16,376,179 bonus shares on 27 October 2016 appropriated from share 
premium following the plan as approved in the resolution of the shareholders meeting No. 01/2016/NQ-
DHCD dated 12 April 2016.

32. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The primary segment reporting format is determined to be business segments as the Group’s risks and rates of 
return are affected predominantly by differences in the products and services rendered. Secondary information 
is reported geographically. The operating businesses are organised and managed separately according to the 
nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that 
offers different products and serves different markets.

Construction services segment

Construction materials trading segment

Investment properties activities segment

Transfer prices between business segments are set on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions 
with other parties. Segment revenue, segment expense and segment result include transfers between business 
segments. Those transfers are eliminated in preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued) B09-DN/HN

33. COMMITMENTS

33.1 Operating lease commitments

The Group leases premises and office under operating lease arrangements. The minimum lease commitments 
as at the balance sheet dates under the operating lease agreements are as follows:

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Less than 1 year 251,614,067 626,482,069

From 1 to 5 years 392,959,090 569,564,637

More than 5 years 2,414,322,489 2,477,168,194

TOTAL 3,058,895,646 3,673,214,900

The Group lets out its Coteccons Building property under operating lease arrangements. The future minimum 
rental receivable as at the balance sheet dates under the operating lease agreements is as follows:

VND

Ending balance Beginning  
balance

Less than 1 year 4,245,645,110 6,496,221,360

From 1 to 5 years 5,067,993,112 1,043,595,000

TOTAL 9,313,638,222 7,539,816,360

33.2  Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had capital contribution commitment as follows:

VND

Name of investee
Charter  
capital 

Capital contribution  
commitment

Contributed
amount

Remaining  
commitment

Amount % Amount Amount

FCC Infrastructure Invest-
ment joint Stock Company

369,000,000,000 129,150,000,000 35 98,000,000,000 31,150,000,000

34. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There have been no significant events occurring after the balance sheet date which would require adjustments 
or disclosures to be made in the consolidated financial statements.

Vu Thi Hong Hanh Vu Thi Hong Hanh Nguyen Ba Duong

Preparer Chief Accountant General Director

28 February 2017
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REPORT ON THE USE OF CAPITAL RAISED FROm PRIVATE 
PLACEmENT FOR STRATEgIC PARTNERS

On 10th March 2017
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ABOuT THE COMPANY

Coteccons Construction joint Stock Company (“The Company”) is a joint stock enterprise established in accordance 
with Vietnam Corporate Law as per the Business Registration Certificate (BRC) no. 4103002611 issued by the Department 
of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City on 24th August 2005 and other BRCs and Enterprise Registration 
Certificate amended afterwards.

The Company was listed at Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange with the stock symbol of CTD in accordance with the Decision 
No.155/ QĐ-SGDHCM issued by Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange on 9th December 2009.

At present, the Company’s core business is to provide design and construction service, MEP installation, interior 
decoration, office leasing and real estates. 

The Company’s Head Office is located at No.236/6 Dien Bien Phu Street, Ward 17, Binh Thanh District, Ho Chi Minh City, 
Vietnam.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors in tenure and on the date of this report are listed as follows:

Mr. Nguyen Ba Duong Chairman   
Mr. Tran Quang Tuan Member 
Mr. Tran Quang Quan Member 
Mr. Giuseppe Maniscalco Ferrara Member 
Mr. Bolat Duisenov Member 
Mr. Tran Quyet Thang Member 
Mr. Vu Duy Lam Member 

BOARD OF SuPERVISORS

Members of the Board of Supervisors in tenure and on the date of this report are listed as follows:

Mr. Nguyen Duc Canh Chairman 
Mrs. Nguyen Thi Phuc Long Member 
Mrs. Phan Cam Ly Member 

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Members of the Board of Management in tenure and on the date of this report are listed as follows:

Mr. Nguyen Ba Duong General Director 
Mr. Tran Quang Quan Deputy General Director 
Mr. Tran Quang Tuan Deputy General Director
Mr. Tran Van Chinh Deputy General Director
Mr. Tu Dai Phuc Deputy General Director
Mr. Phan Huy Vinh Deputy General Director

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The Company’s legal representative in tenure and on the date of this report is Mr. Nguyen Ba Duong

AuDITOR

The Company’s authorised auditor is Ernst & young Vietnam Ltd. Company. 



Reference no.: 60813343/18591958-CTD-AUP

rePort on eMPirical findingsrePort of tHe board of ManageMent

TO: SHAREHOLDERS OF COTECCONS CONSTRuCTION JOINT STOCk COMPANY

We successfully fulfilled the agreed procedures stipulated  in the Appendix of the Contract No. 60813343/18591958-CTD-
AUP dated on 8th March 2017 with Coteccons Construction joint Stock Company (“The Company”) and pleasurably 
presents hereafter a report on the schedule of using capital as of 10th March 2017, raised from private placement for 
stratetic partners from 18th October 2016 to 16th November 2016, with proceeds of VND1.761.910.813.520 to increase the 
Company’s charter capital, presented from page 5 to page 7 (which is hereby called “Report on the Use of Capital”). Our 
duty was perfomed in accordance with Vietnam Standards of Relevant Services No. 4400 – Contract of conducting the 
agreed procedures for financial information. The procedures were conducted to facilitate the Company in evaluating 
the compatibility of the above-mentioned Report on the Use of Capital and were presented briefly as follows:

1. We collected the Report on the Use of Capital prepared by the Company’s Board of Management;

2. We compared the purposes of using capital presented by the Company’s Board of Management with the 
purposes of using capital approved and announced in the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting No. 
01/2016/NQ-ĐHCĐ dated 12th April 2016, the Resolution of the Board of Directors No. 17/2016/NQ-HĐQT 
dated 4th October 2016 and relevant records of capital increase; and

3. We carefully reviewed details of all documents ranging from capital raising to spending as listed in the Report 
on the Use of Capital collected as mentioned in Section 1 above, with relevant accouting documents such as 
contracts, records, receipts, etc.

We would like to present our empirical findings as below:

1. The Report on the Use of Capital is presented on page 5 and page 6;

2. According to the clarification of the Company’s Board of Management, the purpose of using capital is to peform 
business expansion and below are three main investment categories:

a. To establish a new company, or to buy shares (M&A) of appropriate companies to expand Coteccons’ business.

b. To perform direct investment or cooperate with other companies to develop infrastructure projects and real 
estate projects including offices, hotels, and apartments.

c. To invest in equipment and tools to optimally facilitate the Company’s business.

These above-mentioned purposes were correspondent with the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting 
No. 01/2016/NQ-ĐHCĐ dated 12th April 2016, the Resolution of the Board of Directors No. 17/2016/NQ-HĐQT 
dated 4th October 2016 and relevant records of capital increase.

3. We carefully reviewed details of the following documents:

- The proceeds of VND 1.761.910.813.520: we reviewed and compared its compatibilitiy with relevant 
accounting document such as bank notes, bank sub-books; and

- The spending of VND 1.761.910.813.520: we reviewed and compared its compatibilitiy with relevant 
accounting document such as payment receipts, bank notes, contracts, records, etc. 
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The Board of Management of Coteccons Construction joint Stock Company (“The Company”) plesurably presents this 
report and the report on the schedule of using the capital as of 10th March 2017, raised from the private placement 
for strategic partners from 18th October 2016 to 16th November 2016, with the proceeds of VND 1.761.910.813.520 to 
increase the Company’s charter capital (“Report on the Use of Capital”).

REPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management is responsible for preparing and presenting the Report on the Use of Capital, genuinely and 
appropriately reflecting the Company’s use of capital.

The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that accounting books are recorded properly to appropriately 
reflect the schedule of using capital as of 10th March 2017, raised from private stock placement for strategic partners from 
18th October 2016 to 16th November 2016, with proceeds of VND 1.761.910.813.520 to increase the Company’s charter 
capital and for ensuring that the Report on the Use of Capital were prepared properly to genuinely and appropriately 
reflect the Company’s use of capital in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Enterprise 
Accounting System, the Decree No. 58/2012/NĐ-CP dated on 20th july 2017 of the Government (“Decree 58”) specifying 
and instructing the practice of some regulations in the Securities Law and the Amendment  of the Securities Law, and 
the Decree No. 60/2015/NĐ-CP dated on 26th june 2015 of the Government amending and supplementing the Decree 
58; and in accordance with the foundation of preparing and presenting the Report on the Use of Capital on page 209.

On behalf of the Board of Management:

Nguyen Ba Duong
General Director

Ho Chi Minh, Vietnam

10th March, 2017.



Because the above-mentioned procedures did not lead to an official audit or review of financial statement in accordance 
with Vietnam Accounting Standards or Vietnam Standards on Contract of Financial Review Service, we did not give any 
auditing opinions or conclusions about The Report on the Use of Capital.

Our report is for the Company to present to the Shareholders and the State Security Commission of Vietnam in 
accordance with regulations in Section II, Term 8, Circular No. 155/2015/TT-BTC dated 6th October 2015 of the 
Department of Finance about the Guidelines for information disclosure on stock market; and is not used for any other 
purposes or disclosed to any other parties. This report should be refered separately and irrelevantly from the Company’s 
Financial Statement.
 
VIETNAM ERNST & YOuNG LTD.CO.

Tran Nam Dung 
Deputy General Director
Certified Financial Service Auditor Certification 
No: 3021-2014-004-1

Ho Chi Minh, Vietnam

10th March, 2017 

1. REPORT ON THE RESuLT OF PRIVATE PLACEMENT

No. Contents Information

1 Stock name Stock of Coteccons Construction joint Stock 
Company

2 Stock symbol CTD

3 Stock type Common share

4 Par value VND 10.000 per share

5 Number of stock registered to be issued 14.430.000 shares

6 Number of issued stock 11.476.751 shares

7 Total capital raised VND1.761.910.813.520

8 Opening date 18th October 2016

9 Closing date 16th November 2016

2. THE uSE OF CAPITAL RAISED FROM PRIVATE STOCk PLACEMENT

2.1 The announced purpose of the private placement and use of capital

In accordance with the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting No. 01/2016/NQ-ĐHCĐ dated 12th April 2016, 
the Resolution of the Board of Directors No. 17/2016/NQ-HĐQT dated 4th October 2016, the purpose of private 
placement was to increase charter capital for business expansion. In particular, the capital raised was projected 
to range from VND 1.500 to 1.800 billion and to be invested in the following categories:

No. Description Projected value 
(billion VND)

1
To establish a new company, or to buy shares (M&A) of appropriate 
companies to expand Coteccons’ business.

from 600 to 700

2
To perform direct investment or cooperate with other companies 
to develop infrastructure projects and real estate projects including 
offices, hotels, and apartments.

from 600 to 700

3
To invest in equipment and tools to optimally facilitate the Com-
pany’s business.

from 300 to 400

The Board of Directors is authorised to manage the raised capital for each pupose as mentioned above, to 
decide the allocation and adjustment for each purpose, to decide proper schedule and disbursement timeframe 
corresponding to real demands of the Company’s strategy.

rePort on tHe Use of caPital
on 10th March 2017
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descriPtion of rePort on tHe Use of caPital
on 10th March 2017

rePort on tHe Use of caPital
on 10th March 2017 (continued)

2. THE uSE OF CAPITAL RAISED FROM PRIVATE PLACEMENT (Cont.)

2.2  Current schedule of using capital

On the date of this report, the Company distributed capital raised from private placement into the following 
categories:

No. Contents Amount
(VND)

1
Deposit at Techcombank Vietnam with a term of 12 months 
dated from 1st December 2016 and annual interest of 6,8%.

650,000,000,000

2
Deposit at BIDV Vietnam with a term of 13 months 
dated from 1st Decebmer and annual interest of 7,0% (*)

644,291,705,385

3
Deposit at Techcombank Vietnam with a term of 12 months 
dated from 27th February 2017 and annual interest of 6,8%.

450,000,000,000

TOTAL 1,744,291,705,385

(*)  The deposit balance at BIDV Vietnam on 10th March 2017 was VND 650.000.000.000. Of which, capital raised 
from private placement was VND 644.291.705.385.

Besides, the Company reported the use of capital raised from the above private placement for purposes 
approved by Shareholders Annual General Meeting as follows:

No. Contents Amount  
(VND)

A Capital raised from private placement 1,761,910,813,520

B Cost of stock issuance 17,619,108,135

C Net capital from private stock placement 1,744,291,705,385

Capital allocation:

1 To establish a new company, or to buy shares (M&A) of appropriate com-
panies to expand Coteccons’ business.

-

2 To perform direct investment or cooperate with other companies to 
develop infrastructure projects and real estate projects including offices, 
hotels, and apartments; and

-

3 To invest in equipment and tools to optimally facilitate the Company’s business. -

D Cummulated capital used within the period (1+2+3) -

E Capital Balance (C-D) 1,744,291,705,385

 
 

Ha Thi Thuy Hang
Commissioner

Vu Thi Hong Hanh
Chief Accountant

Nguyen Ba Duong
General Director

10th March, 2017

1. FOuNDATION OF PREPARING AND PRESENTING
 

1.1 Foundation of preparing and presenting

The Report on the schedule of using capital raised from private placement for stratetic partners (“Report 
on the Use of Capital“) was prepared in accordance with regulations in the Decree No. 58/2012/NĐ-CP 
dated 20th july 2012 specifying and instructing the practice of some regulations in the Securities Law and 
the Amendment of Securities Law, and the Decree No. 60/2015/NĐ-CP dated on 26th june 2015 of the 
Government amending and supplementing Decree 58, and relevant legislature of preparing and presenting 
the Report on the Use of Capital.

The Report on the Use of Capital was prepared on the basis of the real earning and spending considered as a 
vital part of the Company’s cash flow.

1.2 Report term

The Report on the Use of Capital was prepared for the use of capital raised from private placement for strategic 
partners with the proceeds of VND 1.761.910.813.520 to increase the Company’s charter capital from 18th 
October 2016 to 16th November 2016, and for the use of capital from 17th November 2016 to 10th March 2017.

1.3 Purpose of Report

The Report on the Use of Capital is used only for presenting the schedule of using capital in accordance with 
the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting No. 01/2016/NQ-ĐHCĐ dated 12th April 2016, the Resolution of 
the Board of Directors No. 17/2016/NQ-HĐQT dated 4th October 2016.

The Report on the Use of Capital was prepared for the Company to present to the Annual General Meeting 
and to the State Security Commission of Vietnam in accordance with the Circular No. 155/2015/TT-BTC dated 
6th October 2015 of the Department of Finance about Guidelines of information disclosure on stock market. 
Therfore, the Report on the Use of Capital is not suitable for any other purposes.

Ha Thi Thuy Hang
Commissioner

Vu Thi Hong Hanh
Chief Accountant

Nguyen Ba Duong
General Director

10th March, 2017
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QUALITY
With the area of 3,000 square meters and the depth of 8.4m, including 17,000 cubic meters 
of concrete and nearly 5,000 tons of steel, the approximated weight of concrete foundation 
of the Landmark 81 Tower can be compared or even superior than many world-knowned 
buildings. Initial evaluation shows that the foundation of The Landmark 81 is the biggest 
foundation in Veitnam up to date and ranked 2nd in the world. With the participation of 
hundreds of engineers and more than 800 skillful workers working continuously 3 shifts a 
day, making up the total working time to 41 hours, The Landmark 81’s foundation was made 
to successfully support the rise of the 8th world’s highest building. Coteccons has been 
recited by our unstoppable learning and challenge-welcoming attitude which in their 
turns, lay the most concrete foundation for the Company’s future developments.

tHe evericH 

tyPical Projects
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tyPical Projects
condotel da nang city garden - HcM city

novotel PHU qUoc dai qUang MinH - HcM city
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diaMond lotUs - HcM city
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PanoraMa nHa trang
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tHe MillenniUM tHe goldview - HcM city
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gP coMPleX trang an - Ha noi Ho traM - vUng taU

HH01 naM cUong - Ha noi vinHoMes tHang long - Ha noi
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t&t vinH HUng - Ha noi vinHoMes gardenia - Ha noi

sssa - HcM city vinHoMes MetroPolis - Ha noi
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vinHoMes golden river - HcM city vinMec danang

vinHoMes tiMes city Park Hill - Ha noi regina - Hai PHong
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General symbols:
 : Available
 : Not available

gRI index  gRI description Available 
in AR 2016

Reference 
Page

generAl stAnDArD DIsclosures

strAtegy AnD AnAlysIs

G4-1

Provide a statement from the most senior decision-maker of the organization 
(such as CEO, chair, or equivalent senior position) about the relevance 
of sustainability to the organization and the organization’s strategy for 
addressing sustainability.

8-9

G4-2 Provide a description of key impacts, risks, and opportunities. 134-143

orgAnIZAtIonAl proFIle

G4-3 Report the name of the organization. 12

G4-4 Report the primary brands, products, and services. 12

G4-5 Report the location of the organization’s headquarters. 12

G4-6
Report the number of countries where the organization operates, and names 
of countries where either the organization has signifcant operations or that 
are specifically relevant to the sustainability topics covered in the report.

14-17

G4-7 Report the nature of ownership and legal form. 32-35

G4-8 Report the markets served (including geographic breakdown, sectors served, 
and types of customers and beneficiaries).

17, 63

G4-9 Report the scale of the organization. 16

G4-10 Report the human resource. 46-47

G4-11 Report the percentage of total employees covered by collective bargaining 
agreements.

46-47

G4-12 Report the percentage of total employees covered by collective bargaining 
agreements.

G4-13 Report any significant changes during the reporting period regarding the 
organization’s size, structure, ownership, or its supply chain.

commItments to externAl InItIAtIves

G4-14 Report whether and how the precautionary approach or principle is 
addressed by the organization.

112-119

G4-15
List externally developed economic, environmental and social charters, 
principles, or other initiatives to which the organization subscribes or which 
it endorses.

26-27

G4-16 List memberships of associations (such as industry associations) and national 
or international advocacy organizations in which the organization.

131, 140

IDentIFIeD mAterIAl Aspects AnD BounDArIes

G4-17

List all entities included in the organization’s consolidated financial statements 
or equivalent documents.

Report whether any entity included in the organization’s consolidated 
financial statements or equivalent documents is not covered by the report.

22-23

gRI index  gRI description Available 
in AR 2016

Reference 
Page

G4-18
Explain the process for defining the report content and the Aspect Boundaries.

Explain how the organization has implemented the Reporting Principles for 
Defning Report Content.

122-123

G4-19
List all the material Aspects identifed in the process for defining report 
content.

122-123

G4-20 For each material Aspect, report the Aspect Boundary within the organization. 123

G4-21 For each material Aspect, report the Aspect Boundary outside the organization 123

G4-22
Report the effect of any restatements of information provided in previous 
reports, and the reasons for such restatements.

199

G4-23
Report significant changes from previous reporting periods in the Scope and 
Aspect Boundaries.

16-17

stAKeholDer engAgement

G4-24 Provide a list of stakeholder groups engaged by the organization. 126-129

G4-25
Report the basis for identification and selection of stakeholders with whom 
to engage.

126-129

G4-26

Report the organization’s approach to stakeholder engagement, including 
frequency of engagement by type and by stakeholder group, and an 
indication of whether any of the engagement was undertaken specifically as 
part of the report preparation process.

130-131

G4-27

Report key topics and concerns that have been raised through stakeholder 
engagement, and how the organization has responded to those key topics 
and concerns, including through its reporting. Report the stakeholder groups 
that raised each of the key topics and concerns.

130-131

report proFIle

G4-28 Reporting period (such as fiscal or calendar year) for information provided. 123

G4-29 Date of most recent previous report (if any) 123

G4-30 Reporting cycle (such as annual, biennial). 123

G4-31 Provide the contact point for questions regarding the report or its contents. 123

G4-32

a. Report the ‘in accordance’ option the organization has chosen.

b. Report the GRI Content Index for the chosen option (see tables below).

c. Report the reference to the External Assurance Report, if the report has 
been externally assured. GRI recommends the use of external assurance but 
it is not a requirement to be ‘in accordance’ with the guidelines.

 228-239
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gRI index  gRI description Available 
in AR 2016

Reference 
Page

AssurAnce

G4-33

a. Report the organization’s policy and current practice with regard to seeking 
external assurance for the report.

b. If not included in the assurance report accompanying the sustainability 
report, report the scope and basis of any external assurance provided.

c. Report the relationship between the organization and the assurance 
providers.

d. Report whether the highest governance body or senior executives are 
involved in seeking assurance for the organization’s sustainability report.

governAnce

G4-34
Report the governance structure of the organization, including committees 
of the highest governance body.

104-109

G4-35
Report the process for delegating authority for economic, environmental 
and social topics from the highest governance body to senior executives and 
other employees.

G4-36
Report whether the organization has appointed an executive-level position 
or positions with responsibility for economic, environmental and social topics, 
and whether post holders report directly to the highest governance body.

G4-37

Report processes for consultation between stakeholders and the highest 
governance body on economic, environmental and social topics. If 
consultation is delegated, describe to whom and any feedback processes to 
the highest governance body.

131-132

G4-38 Report the composition of the highest governance body and its committees. 36-45

G4-39
Report whether the Chair of the highest governance body is also an executive 
ofcer (and, if so, his or her function within the organization’s management 
and the reasons for this arrangement).

36

G4-40
Report the nomination and selection processes for the highest governance 
body and its committees, and the criteria used for nominating and selecting 
highest governance body members.

G4-41
Report processes for the highest governance body to ensure conflicts of 
interest are avoided and managed.

Report whether conflicts of interest are disclosed to stakeholders.

G4-42

Report the highest governance body’s and senior executives’ roles in the 
development, approval, and updating of the organization’s purpose, value 
or mission statements, strategies, policies, and goals related to economic, 
environmental and social impacts.

G4-43
Report the measures taken to develop and enhance the highest governance 
body’s collective knowledge of economic, environmental and social topics.

gRI index  gRI description Available 
in AR 2016

Reference 
Page

G4-44

a. Report the processes for evaluation of the highest governance body’s 
performance with respect to governance of economic, environmental and 
social topics. Report whether such evaluation is independent or not, and its 
frequency. Report whether such evaluation is a self-assessment.

b. Report actions taken in response to evaluation of the highest governance 
body’s performance with respect to governance of economic, environmental 
and social topics, including, as a minimum, changes in membership and 
organizational practice.

100-101

G4-45

a. Report the highest governance body’s role in the identification and 
management of economic, environmental and social impacts, risks, 
and opportunities. Include the highest governance body’s role in the 
implementation of due diligence processes.

b. Report whether stakeholder consultation is used to support the 
highest governance body’s identification and management of economic, 
environmental and social impacts, risks, and opportunities.

112-119

G4-46
Report the highest governance body’s role in reviewing the effectiveness of 
the organization’s risk management processes for economic, environmental 
and social topics.

112-119

G4-47
Report the frequency of the highest governance body’s review of economic, 
environmental and social impacts, risks, and opportunities.

106

G4-48
Report the highest committee or position that formally reviews and approves 
the organization’s sustainability report and ensures that all material Aspects 
are covered.

G4-49
Report the process for communicating critical concerns to the highest 
governance body.

G4-50
Report the nature and total number of critical concerns that were 
communicated to the highest governance body and the mechanism(s) used 
to address and resolve them.

G4-51

Report the remuneration policies for the highest governance body and 
senior executives for the below types of remuneration.

Report how performance criteria in the remuneration policy relate to the 
highest governance body’s and senior executives’ economic, environmental 
and social objectives.

110

G4-52

Report the process for determining remuneration. Report whether 
remuneration consultants are involved in determining remuneration and 
whether they are independent of management. Report any other relationships 
which the remuneration consultants have with the organization.

108

G4-53
Report how stakeholders’ views are sought and taken into account regarding 
remuneration, including the results of votes on remuneration policies and 
proposals.

108, 110

G4-54

Report the ratio of the annual total compensation for the organization’s 
highest-paid individual in each country of signifcant operations to the 
median annual total compensation for all employees (excluding the highest-
paid individual) in the same country.

G4-55

Report the ratio of percentage increase in annual total compensation for 
the organization’s highest-paid individual in each country of signifcant 
operations to the median percentage increase in annual total compensation 
for all employees (excluding the highest-paid individual) in the same country.
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gRI index  gRI description Available 
in AR 2016

Reference 
Page

ethIcs AnD IntegrIty

G4-56
Describe the organization’s values, principles, standards and norms of 
behavior such as codes of conduct and codes of ethics.

136-149

G4-57
Report the internal and external mechanisms for seeking advice on ethical 
and lawful behavior, and matters related to organizational integrity, such as 
helplines or advice lines.

144-149

G4-58

Report the internal and external mechanisms for reporting concerns about 
unethical or unlawful behavior, and matters related to organizational integrity, 
such as escalation through line management, whistleblowing mechanisms 
or hotlines.

cAtegory: economIc

economIc perFormAnce

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach. 136

EC1 Direct economic value generated and distributed. 61-62

EC2
Financial implications and other risks and opportunities for the organization’s 
activities due to climate change.

EC3 Coverage of the organization’s defined benefit plan obligations. 154-157

EC4 Financial assistance received from government.

mArKet presence

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

EC5
Ratios of standard entry level wage by gender compared to local minimum 
wage at significant locations of operation.

EC6
Proportion of senior management hired from the local community at 
significant locations of operation.

InDIrect economIc ImpActs

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

EC7
Development and impact of infrastructure investments and services 
supported.

154-157

EC8 Significant indirect economic impacts, including the extent of impacts. 154-157

procurement prActIces

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach

EC9 Proportion of spending on local suppliers at significant locations of operation

gRI index  gRI description Available 
in AR 2016

Reference 
Page

cAtegory: envIronmentAl

mAterIAls

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach. 153

EN1 Materials used by weight or volume. 153

EN2 Percentage of materials used that are recycled input materials.

energy

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach. 151

EN3 Energy consumption within the organization.

EN4 Energy consumption outside of the organization.

EN5 Energy intensity.

EN6 Reduction of energy consumption. 151

EN7 Reductions in energy requirements of products and services.

wAter

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach. 151

EN8 Total water withdrawal by source.

EN9 Water sources significantly affected by withdrawal of water.

EN10 Percentage and total volume of water recycled and reused.

BIoDIversIty

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

EN11
Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to, protected areas 
and areas of high biodiversity value outside protected areas.

EN12
Description of significant impacts of activities, products, and services on 
biodiversity in protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value outside 
protected areas.

EN13 Habitats protected or restored.

EN14
Total number of IUCN red list species and national conservation list species 
with habitats in areas affected by operations, by level of extinction risk.

emIssIons

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

EN15 Direct greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (Scope 1).
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gRI index  gRI description Available 
in AR 2016

Reference 
Page

EN16 Energy indirect greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (Scope 2).

EN17 Other indirect greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (Scope 3).

EN18 Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions intensity.

EN19 Reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions.

EN20 Emissions of ozone-depleting substances (ODS).

EN21 NOx, SOx, and other significant air emissions.

eFFluents AnD wAste

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

EN22 Total water discharge by quality and destination.

EN23 Total weight of waste by type and disposal method.

EN24 Total number and volume of significant spills.

EN25
Weight of transported, imported, exported, or treated waste deemed 
hazardous under the terms of the basel convention 2 annex i, ii, iii, and viii, 
and percentage of transported waste shipped internationally.

EN26
Identity, size, protected status, and biodiversity value of water bodies and 
related habitats significantly affected by the organization’s discharges of 
water and runoff.

proDucts AnD servIces

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

EN27 Extent of impact mitigation of environmental impacts of products and 
services.

EN28 Percentage of products sold and their packaging materials that are reclaimed 
by category.

complIAnce

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

EN29 Monetary value of significant fines and total number of non-monetary 
sanctions for non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations.

trAnsport

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

EN30
Significant environmental impacts of transporting products and other goods 
and materials for the organization’s operations, and transporting members of 
the workforce.

overAll

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

gRI index  gRI description Available 
in AR 2016

Reference 
Page

EN31 Total environmental protection expenditures and investments by type.

supplIer envIronmentAl Assessment

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

EN32 Percentage of new suppliers that were screened using environmental criteria.

EN33
Significant actual and potential negative environmental impacts in the 
supply chain and actions taken.

envIronmentAl grIevAnce mechAnIsms

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

EN34
Number of grievances about environmental impacts filed, addressed, and 
resolved through formal grievance mechanisms.

cAtegory: socIAl

lABor prActIces AnD Decent worK

employment

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach. 144-146

LA1
Total number and rates of new employee hires and employee turnover by 
age group, gender and region.

50-51

LA2
Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not provided to temporary 
or part-time employees, by significant locations of operation.

48-49

LA3 Return to work and retention rates after parental leave, by gender.

lABor/mAnAgement relAtIons

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

LA4
Minimum notice periods regarding operational changes, including whether 
these are specified in collective agreements.

occupAtIonAl heAlth AnD sAFety

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach. 85

LA5
Percentage of total workforce represented in formal joint management–
worker health and safety committees that help monitor and advise on 
occupational health and safety programs

85-86 
113

LA6
Type of injury and rates of injury, occupational diseases, lost days, and 
absenteeism, and total number of work-related fatalities, by region and by 
gender.

LA7
Workers with high incidence or high risk of diseases related to their 
occupation.

LA8 Health and safety topics covered in formal agreements with trade unions. 85-87
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gRI index  gRI description Available 
in AR 2016

Reference 
Page

trAInIng AnD eDucAtIon

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach. 50-51

LA9
Average hours of training per year per employee by gender, and by employee 
category.

51

LA10
Programs for skills management and lifelong learning that support the 
continued employability of employees and assist them in managing career 
endings.

LA11
Percentage of employees receiving regular performance and career 
development reviews, by gender and by employee category.

DIversIty AnD eQuAl opportunIty

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

LA12
Composition of governance bodies and breakdown of employees per 
employee category according to gender, age group, minority group 
membership, and other indicators of diversity.

47

eQuAl remunerAtIon For women AnD men

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

LA13
Ratio of basic salary and remuneration of women to men by employee 
category, by significant locations of operation.

supplIer Assessment For lABor prActIces

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

LA14 Percentage of new suppliers that were screened using labor practices criteria.

LA15
Significant actual and potential negative impacts for labor practices in the 
supply.

lABor prActIces grIevAnce mechAnIsms

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

LA16
Number of grievances about labor practices filed, addressed, and resolved 
through formal grievance mechanisms.

humAn rIghts

Investment

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

HR1
Total number and percentage of significant investment agreements and 
contracts that include human rights clauses or that underwent human rights 
screening.

HR2
Total hours of employee training on human rights policies or procedures 
concerning aspects of human rights that are relevant to operations, including 
the percentage of employees trained.

gRI index  gRI description Available 
in AR 2016

Reference 
Page

non-DIscrImInAtIon 

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

HR3 Total number of incidents of discrimination and corrective actions taken.

FreeDom oF AssocIAtIon AnD collectIve BArgAInIng

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

HR4
Operations and suppliers identified in which the right to exercise freedom of 
association and collective bargaining may be violated or at significant risk, 
and measures taken to support these rights.

chIlD lABor

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

HR5
Operations and suppliers identified as having significant risk for incidents of 
child labor, and measures taken to contribute to the effective abolition of 
child labor.

ForceD or compulsory lABor

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

HR6
Operations and suppliers identified as having significant risk for incidents of 
forced or compulsory labor, and measures to contribute to the elimination of 
all forms of forced or compulsory labor.

securIty prActIces

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

HR7
Percentage of security personnel trained in the organization’s human rights 
policies or procedures that are relevant to operations.

InDIgenous rIghts

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

HR8
Total number of incidents of violations involving rights of indigenous peoples 
and actions taken.

Assessment

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

HR9
Total number and percentage of operations that have been subject to human 
rights reviews or impact assessments.

supplIer humAn rIghts Assessment

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

HR10 Percentage of new suppliers that were screened using human rights criteria.

HR11
Significant actual and potential negative human rights impacts in the supply 
chain and actions taken.
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gRI index  gRI description Available 
in AR 2016

Reference 
Page

humAn rIghts grIevAnce mechAnIsms

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

HR12
Number of grievances about human rights impacts filed, addressed, and 
resolved through formal grievance mechanisms.

socIety

locAl communItIes

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach. 154-157

SO1
Percentage of operations with implemented local community engagement, 
impact assessments, and development programs.

154-157

SO2
Operations with significant actual and potential negative impacts on local 
communities.

AntI-corruptIon

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

SO3
Total number and percentage of operations assessed for risks related to corruption 
and the significant risks identified.

SO4 Communication and training on anti-corruption policies and procedures.

SO5 Confirmed incidents of corruption and actions taken.

puBlIc polIcy

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

SO6 Total value of political contributions by country and recipient/beneficiary.

AntI-competItIve BehAvIor

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

SO7
Total number of legal actions for anti-competitive behavior, anti-trust, and 
monopoly practices and their outcomes.

complIAnce

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

SO8
Monetary value of significant fines and total number of non-monetary 
sanctions for non-compliance with laws and regulations.

supplIer Assessment For ImpActs on socIety

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

SO9
Percentage of new suppliers that were screened using criteria for impacts 
on society.

SO10
Significant actual and potential negative impacts on society in the supply 
chain and actions taken.

gRI index  gRI description Available 
in AR 2016

Reference 
Page

grIevAnce mechAnIsms For ImpActs on socIety

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

SO11
Number of grievances about impacts on society filed, addressed, and 
resolved through formal grievance mechanisms.

proDuct responsIBIlIty

customer heAlth AnD sAFety

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach

PR1
Percentage of significant product and service categories for which health 
and safety impacts are assessed for improvement.

PR2
Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary 
codes concerning the health and safety impacts of products and services during 
their life cycle, by type of outcomes.

proDuct AnD servIce lABelIng

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

PR3

Type of product and service information required by the organization’s 
procedures for product and service information and labeling, and percentage 
of significant product and service categories subject to such information 
requirements.

PR4
Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary 
codes concerning product and service information and labeling, by type of 
outcomes.

PR5 Results of surveys measuring customer satisfaction.

mArKetIng communIcAtIons

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

PR6 Sale of banned or disputed products.

PR7
Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary 
codes concerning marketing communications, including advertising, 
promotion, and sponsorship, by type of outcomes.

customer prIvAcy

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

PR8
Total number of substantiated complaints regarding breaches of customer 
privacy and losses of customer data.

complIAnce

G4-DMA Disclosures on Management Approach.

PR9
Monetary value of significant fines for non-compliance with laws and 
regulations concerning the provision and use of products and services.
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Throughout 12 years, Coteccons has 
become a leader in construction in 
Vietnam market thanks to the 
outstanding values proposition brought 
to our customers and ourselves by 
designing and constructing activities.  
Sustainable construction from years to 
years represents strong commitment to 
our jobs.

CONSTRUCTING
SUSTAINABLE
VALUES


